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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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2022 2021 Change in %
= T —T=—F Z1t%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET T8 T
Revenue g 30,645 73,232 (58.2%)
From asset management REEEER 28,274 85,450 (66.9%)
From investment and financial R B #& & MBI 5% 3
advisory services AR 7 531 4,030 (86.8%)
From underwriting and placing KRB ZF 5B #H LKES
of securities 1,560 - NA
Sales of goods & B m 29,341 46,509 (36.9%)
From securities trading and RKEFFEBERKE
investments (29,061) (62,757) (53.7%)
Net loss from operations REBEBFEE (73,229) (107,218) (31.7%)
Net loss for the year REFFEE (78,211) (122,622) (36.2%)
EBITDA BRAME -HE -TER
# 34 51 & T (EBITDA) (65,859) (101,146) (34.9%)
Loss per share BREE
— basic (HK cents) —EARCGEA) (5.05) (8.18) (38.3%)
Total Asset BERE 417,562 544,669 (23.3%)
Net Asset BEFE 293,640 372,793 (21.2%)

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year
Under Review"”) decreased by approximately 58.2% to
HK$30.65 million (2021: HK$73.23 million). The decrease
in revenue was mainly due to the decrease in income from
asset management services, investment and financial advisory
services and trading of wines and beverage which was
offset by the decrease in net loss from securities trading and
investments business.

After impairment losses on financial assets of HK$25.11
million (2021: HK$3.96 million) and provision for
post-completion guarantee of nil (2021: HK$58.57 million),
loss from operations for the Year Under Review amounted to
HK$73.23 million (2021: HK$107.22 million).

For the same token, loss for the Year Under Review decreased
from HK$122.62 million for the year ended 31 December
2021 to HK$78.21 million. EBITDA was a loss of HK$65.86
million for the Year Under Review (2021: loss of HK$101.15
million).

Loss per share (basic) attributable to owner of the Company
decreased from HK8.18 cents for the year ended 31
December 2021 to HK5.05 cents for the Year Under Review.

BE-_E-_—_#+-_A=+-—B1LEFE(M@
BEFEEDK =R #582%£30.658H &8
T(ZE-—F 7323888 x)  KERM D
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of OCI International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”), | hereby present to our Shareholders the annual
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2022 (the “Year Under Review").

REVIEW OF OPERATION

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of asset
management services, provision of investment and financial
advisory services, provision of securities underwriting and
placing services, securities trading and investments and
trading of wines and beverage.

The Group commenced its asset management business in May
2018 and generated revenue by providing asset management
services and advisory services through the expertise of the
Group’s investment team with Type 4 (advising on securities)
and Type 9 (asset management) licenses granted by the
Securities and Future Commission of Hong Kong (the “SFC").
Over the past few years, assets under management (“AUM")
managed by the Group increased from US$662 million with
2 funds as at 31 December 2018 to US$736 million with 3
funds as at 31 December 2019, representing an increment
of 11.2% and further increased to US$824 million with 6
funds as at 31 December 2020, representing an increment
of 12.0%. The AUM as at 31 December 2021 was US$668
million and the number of funds under our management
increased to 16. However, the AUM managed by the Group
as at 31 December 2022 lowered to US$270 million from
11 funds and asset management income for the Year Under
Review was HK$28.27 million (year ended 31 December 2021:
HK$85.45 million). The decrease in number of funds, AUM
and the asset management income was mainly attributed to
the partial redemption of investment by investors, maturity
and termination of funds.

After obtaining Type 1 (dealing in securities) license granted
by SFC on 28 July 2021, the Group is able to provide
underwriting, sub-underwriting and placing of securities
services. During the Year Under Review, the Group was
engaged as the Joint Global Coordinator in the issuance of
US$200 million bonds by a bank and generated fee income of
HK$1.56 million.

REBEBZERERAT

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FTRHES
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OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FTRHES

Investment advisory services fee income amounting to
HK$0.53 million was recorded by the Group for the Year
Under Review (year ended 31 December 2021: HK$4.03
million). On the other hand, loss from securities trading and
investments segment decreased from HK$62.76 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021 to HK$29.06 million for
the Year Under Review.

The Group had expanded its wine product portfolio to a
broader range and other beverage categories (including red
wine, white wine, champagne and sparkling wine, whisky,
Moutai and Chinese tea leaf) to capture the demand of
young consumer in addition to the existing target group of
customers. However, affected by the COVID-19 pandemic and
related government control policies, revenue from trading of
wines and beverage decreased to HK$29.34 million for the
Year Under Review as compared to HK$46.51 million for last
year.

The Group recorded total revenue of HK$30.65 million for
the Year Under Review (year ended 31 December 2021:
HK$73.23 million). The decrease in revenue was mainly due
to the decrease in income from asset management services,
investment and financial advisory services and trading of
wines and beverage which was offset by the decrease in net
loss from securities trading and investments business.

The consolidated net loss of HK$78.21 million was incurred
by the Group for the Year Under Review (year ended 31
December 2021: HK$122.62 million). The decrease in
consolidated net loss was mainly due to the decrease in
provision for a post-completion value guarantee from
HK$58.57 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
to nil for the Year Under Review which was offset by the
decrease in revenue as discussed above and the increase
in impairment loss on financial assets by HK$21.15 million
(mainly arising from the Group’s investment in the senior
secured guaranteed notes issued by Sanpower (Hong Kong)
Company Limited and the guaranteed bonds issued by CFLD
(Cayman) Investment Limited).
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FUTURE OUTLOOK

Global economy has been affected by the COVID-19
pandemic for over three years. Following the relaxation
of most of the pandemic-related control measures and
reopening of borders all over the world, most of the
commercial activities have gradually resumed normal.
However, economic recovery and long-term prosperity have
been loomed over by various uncertainties, including but
not limited to, the pace and extent of interest rate hikes and
monetary tightening by major central banks amid persistent
global inflationary pressures; worries about global economic
slowdown; prolonged geopolitical risks related to Ukraine;
and energy supply issues in Europe, etc. Looking ahead,
the general economies and the Group’s operations and
development are still challenging.

The Group will stay focus on development of asset
management business and actively optimise its investment
portfolio with high potential with a view to realising
synergetic effect with existing clients and strategic partners
in order to help investors to achieve their wealth appreciation
goals through asset management. During the Year Under
Review, an investment fund was set up with a targeted
capital commitment to be raised ranging from US$1.5 billion
to US$1.9 billion, and is expected to invest in the healthcare
industry. On the other hand, in addition to the acquisition of
60% equity interestin LR RMRAKREETEBR QA
(Shandong Civil Aviation Dongsheng Investment Management
Co., Ltd.), a company incorporated in the PRC and principally
engaged in the provision of asset management and advisory
services in the PRC, on 23 May 2022, the Group will continue
to explore other potential business in the PRC so as to expand
the existing business and enhance the Group’s performance.

The creation of a listing regime by The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for special
purpose acquisition companies (“SPACs”) since 1 January
2022 provides another means for the Group to expand its
asset management business through turning structured
project funds into listed companies. The Group has already
submitted an application to the Stock Exchange for listing of
a SPAC, named Pisces Acquisition Corporation, on 2 March
2022, and the application of listing was still in progress.

REBEBZERERAT

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FTRHES
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OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FTRHES

The Group had obtained Type 1 (dealing in securities) license
granted by SFC on 28 July 2021, more resources will be
allocated for the development of this business, including
participating in underwriting, sub-underwriting and placing
of securities transactions, to diversify the income source of
the Group.

For trading of wines and beverages, the Group will
keep on with the existing strategy in expanding its wine
product portfolio to a broader range and other beverage
categories. Attributed to the recent relaxation of most of
the pandemic-related control measures in Hong Kong and
reopening of borders, especially with Mainland China, it
is expected that both commercial and social activities will
gradually resume normal, leading to an increase in demand
and consumption of wine and beverage products. In order
to capture the sales opportunities, the Group has hired
additional sales person and plans to conduct more marketing
and promotion activities, such as wine tasting campaigns, in
the year 2023.

In addition to the existing businesses, the Board will
cautiously and diligently explore new potential expansion
opportunities, such as Fintech related business, in order to
diversify income sources, bring in profits and sustainable
growth to the Group.
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clients, banks and investors for their trust, encouragement
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REBEBZERERAT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activities of the Group are provision of asset
management services, provision of investment and financial
advisory services, provision of securities underwriting and
placing services, securities trading and investments and
trading of wines and beverage.

During the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year Under
Review"), the Group continued to focus on the development
of asset management and investment and financial advisory
businesses. Apart from Type 4 (advising on securities) and
Type 9 (asset management) licenses issued by the Securities
and Future Commission of Hong Kong (the “SFC") which
were granted to the Group in May 2018, the Group had
obtained Type 1 (dealing in securities) license granted by
SFC on 28 July 2021. The Group’s asset management and
financial advisory businesses target high-net-worth individuals
and institutional investors such as financial institutions, asset
management companies and other investment companies.
Over the past few years, assets under management (“AUM")
managed by the licensed asset management subsidiary of
the Group, namely OCI Asset Management Company Limited
("OCIAM"), increased from US$662 million with 2 funds as
at 31 December 2018 to US$736 million with 3 funds as at
31 December 2019, representing an increment of 11.2% and
further increased to US$824 million with 6 funds as at 31
December 2020, representing an increment of 12.0%. The
AUM as at 31 December 2021 was US$668 million and the
number of funds under our management increased to 16.
However, the AUM managed by OCIAM as at 31 December
2022 lowered to US$270 million from 11 funds mainly due to
partial redemption of investment by investors, maturity and
termination of funds.
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OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
E12 @857 7 ifr

The Group had expanded its wine product portfolio to a
broader range and other beverage categories (including red
wine, white wine, champagne and sparkling wine, whisky,
Moutai and Chinese tea leaf) to capture the demand of
young consumer in addition to the existing target group of
customers. However, affected by the COVID-19 pandemic and
related government control policies, revenue from trading of
wines and beverage decreased to HK$29.34 million for the
Year Under Review as compared to HK$46.51 million for last
year.

On 29 March 2022, the Company entered into a non-legally
binding strategic cooperation agreement with Beijing Bicai
Big Data Technology Company Limited and Bicai Big Data
Technology (HK) Company Limited (“BicaiHK") for Fintech
related business. Subsequent to entering into the cooperation
agreement, a Hong Kong company was established in April
2022 owned as to 50% by the Group and 50% by BicaiHK.
The strategic cooperation was in an early stage and yet to
generate any revenue for the Year Under Review.

Facilitated by the creation of a listing regime by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for
special purpose acquisition companies (“SPACs”) taking effect
on 1 January 2022, the Group has submitted an application
to the Stock Exchange for listing of a SPAC, named Pisces
Acquisition Corporation, on 2 March 2022. Pisces Acquisition
Corporation is a Cayman Islands exempted company and is
incorporated for the purpose of effecting an initial business
combination with one or more businesses. Up to the date of
this report, the application of listing was still in progress.
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REBEBZERERAT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group recorded total revenue of HK$30.65 million for
the Year Under Review (year ended 31 December 2021:
HK$73.23 million). The decrease in revenue was mainly due
to the decrease in income from asset management services,
investment and financial advisory services and trading of
wines and beverage which was offset by the decrease in net
loss from securities trading and investments business.

The consolidated net loss of HK$78.21 million was incurred
by the Group for the Year Under Review (year ended 31
December 2021: HK$122.62 million). The decrease in
consolidated net loss was mainly due to the decrease in
provision for a post-completion value guarantee from
HK$58.57 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
to nil for the Year Under Review which was offset by the
decrease in revenue as discussed above and the increase
in impairment loss on financial assets by HK$21.15 million
(mainly arising from the Group’s investment in the senior
secured guaranteed notes issued by Sanpower (Hong Kong)
Company Limited and the guaranteed bonds issued by CFLD
(Cayman) Investment Limited).

Asset Management Services

Since May 2018, the Group carries on its asset management
business through providing a range of asset management
services and investment advisory services to qualified
corporate and financial institutional professional investors
under Type 4 (advising on securities) and Type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities by the SFC.

As at 31 December 2022, OCIAM was engaged in the
management of 11 funds (31 December 2021: 16) including
the self-invested US Dollar Debt Fund with fund size
varying from US$0.22 million to US$83.77 million. The
number of institutional investors reduced from 35 to 24.
Asset management income for the Year Under Review
was HK$28.27 million (year ended 31 December 2021:
HK$85.45 million). The decrease in number of funds and
the asset management income was mainly attributed to the
partial redemption of investment by investors, maturity and
termination of funds.
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On 23 May 2022, the Group acquired 60% paid up capital of
IR RMEAKEEEAFRAQA (Shandong Civil Aviation
Dongsheng Investment Management Co., Ltd.) (“Shandong
Civil Aviation Dongsheng”) from a third party at a cash
consideration of RMB3.15 million. Shandong Civil Aviation
Dongsheng is a company incorporated in the PRC and
principally engaged in the provision of asset management
and advisory services in the PRC. Shandong Civil Aviation
Dongsheng is classified as a joint venture company of the
Group and for the Year Under Review, the Group recorded
share of profits of the joint venture of HK$1.01 million.

During the Year Under Review, an investment fund was set
up with a targeted capital commitment to be raised by the
limited partners ranging from US$1.5 billion to US$1.9 billion
(the “Healthcare Investment Fund”) where YZ Healthcare
GP Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, is
the general partner. The Healthcare Investment Fund targets
to invest in the healthcare industry. Up to the date of this
report, the fund raising was in progress.

Investment and Financial Advisory Services

The Group's investment advisory services mainly relate
to advising US dollar debts related investments. As at 31
December 2022, OCIAM was not engaged in advising any
funds (31 December 2021: was engaged in advising 3 funds
with fund size from US$19.05 million to US$60.39 million).

Investment advisory services fee income amounting to
HK$0.53 million was recorded by the Group for the Year
Under Review (year ended 31 December 2021: HK$4.03
million).
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REBEBZERERAT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Underwriting and Placing Services

After obtaining Type 1 (dealing in securities) license granted
by SFC on 28 July 2021, the Group is able to provide
underwriting, sub-underwriting and placing of securities
services. The Group had participated in total of 5 bond
issuance transactions during the Year Under Review (year
ended 31 December 2021: 2). These provided opportunities
for the Group to build up relationship with leaders in
underwriting business and acquaint with the market practice
in underwriting business. During the Year Under Review, the
Group recorded income from underwriting and placing of
securities of HK$1.56 million (year ended 31 December 2021:
nil).

Trading of wines and beverage

The COVID-19 pandemic prevention and control measures
like entry restrictions, compulsory quarantine for inbound
travelers, social distancing practices and restrictions on group
gathering had hindered most of the consumption activities
during the Year Under Review, the Group recorded a turnover
of HK$29.34 million (year ended 31 December 2021:
HK$46.51 million). Loss attributable to this business segment
amounted to HK$1.12 million for the Year Under Review (year
ended 31 December 2021: profit of HK$2.12 million).

The Group had expanded its wine product portfolio to a
broader range and other beverage categories (including red
wine, white wine, champagne and sparkling wine, whisky,
Moutai and Chinese tea leaf) to capture the demand of
young consumer in addition to the existing target group of
customers. The Group is conducting its sales through three
channels: (i) direct sales; (ii) online sales; and (iii) wholesale.
The Group will also maintain business relationship with
reputable distributors for sale of premium wine.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
E12 @857 7 ifr

Fund Investment
As at/during the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
had the following investment in funds:

(i)

On 23 May 2019, the Company entered into the
subscription agreement with the ICBC AMG China
Fund | SPC, in respect of its segregated portfolio, ICBC
US Dollar Debt Fund SP (the “Sub-Fund”) managed by
ICBC Asset Management (Global) Company Limited,
pursuant to which the Company subscribed for the
Class B Shares issued by the Sub-Fund in an amount
of US$20 million (equivalent to approximately HK$156
million). The fund size was US$60 million including
both Class A Shares of US$40 million and Class B
Shares of US$20 million. Both Class A and Class B
Shares are entitled to a fixed return accruing on each
anniversary of 3 June 2019 (“Distribution Date”) at 4%
per annum on its subscription amount. Provided that
the portfolio has sufficient distributable assets after
payment of the Class A fixed return and deduction of
all fees, expenses and other liabilities of the Sub-Fund
(including but not limited to management fees),
each Class B Share carries the right to a fixed return
accruing on each Distribution Date calculated at the
rate of 4% per annum on the subscription amount.
On redemption, Class A Shares will not be entitled to
any amount in excess of the subscription price and any
accrued and unpaid fixed return. Class B Shares are
entitled to the remaining portion of the NAV of the
Sub-Fund. The Sub-Fund will generate income through
investing in US dollar-denominated bonds (including,
but not limited to, investment-grade bonds, high-yield
bonds, and convertible bonds), notes and other fixed
income products and money market instruments issued
by companies based in or with their headquarters in
the PRC (each an “Issuer”). Target Issuers are stated
to include qualified real estate bond issuers; financial
institutions with high incomes and other corporate
bonds and local government financing vehicles.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 23 June 2021, the Company as the Vendor and
Orient Finance Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited (“Orient
Finance”) as the Purchaser entered into a Sale and
Purchase Agreement, pursuant to which the Company
conditionally agreed to sell and Orient Finance
conditionally agreed to purchase the Company’s entire
right, title and interest in certain amount of Class B (“Sale
Shares”) in the Sub-Fund of SPC at the consideration
of no more than US$8,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$62,400,000) with a post-completion
guarantee clause that in the event that the SPC redeems
the participating shares held by the Purchaser at the
expiry of the investment term of the Sub-Fund (i.e. 2
June 2022), the sum of entitlement of the Purchaser as
the holder of the Sale Shares comprising the aggregate
of all the returns, distributions, income, and other
payments received or accrued on the Sale Shares since
completion plus the redemption proceeds paid or
payable to the Purchaser is less than the consideration
paid by the Purchaser, the Vendor shall pay to the
Purchaser such shortfall within five (5) business days
upon receipt of written notice from the Purchaser.
Proceeds of the disposal will be used to repay the
outstanding loan in the amount of US$6,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$46,590,000), together
with all accrued interest, owing from the Company to
Orient Finance under a revolving loan facility granted
by Orient Finance to the Company on 1 January
2018 pursuant to the facility agreement. As Orient
Finance is a connected person of the Company and
the disposal constitutes a connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and is
therefore subject to the reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
the Listing Rules. The transaction was approved by
independent shareholders in an EGM held on 12 August
2021. At 27 August 2021, 7,900 shares was sold to
Orient Finance at the consideration of US$7.51 million.
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The Fund’s fair value dropped substantially in the last
quarter of 2021 due to the market value of those bonds
issued by PRC properties developers in the Fund’s
portfolio decreased sharply upon the PRC government’s
tightened control policies over credit. Hence, the
fair value of the fund investment was reduced to
approximately HK$28.83 million as at 31 December
2021 representing 5.3% of the total asset of the Group.

The NAV of Class B shares of the Fund continued to
decrease further as the prices of those bonds and
notes in the Fund’s portfolio dropped further in early
2022. The value of Class B shares turned to zero by
31 January 2022 and further cut loss actions were
taken by the Fund Manager. The NAV of the Fund
decreased further. The NAV of Class B shares as at 28
February 2022 is zero. The chance of regaining value to
acquisition value by the expiry of the Fund is remote,
hence a full provision for the post-completion guarantee
on the 7,900 Class B shares sold to Orient Finance on
their acquisition value of US$7.51 million, equivalent
to HK$58.57 million was made in the year ended 31
December 2021.

The Fund Manager decided not to extend the Fund in
May 2022 and the maturity date fell on 2 June 2022. As
Class B shares value was zero by that time, the Company
and the Purchaser get nil return from the Fund. The
Company recorded a loss from this fund investment
of approximately HK$28.83 million for the Year Under
Review.

For the provision of the post-completion guarantee of
US$7.51 million payable to Orient Finance, US$1.50
million was settled during the Year Under Review. Based
on the repayment terms agreed with Orient Finance,
the remaining balance of US$6.01 million (equivalent to
HK$46.93 million) will be settled within the year 2023.
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REBEBZERERAT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group launched a US dollar debt fund (the “US
Dollar Debt Fund”) in February 2020 through injection
of two investment bonds valued at approximately
US$15.42 million at the date of injection. The aim of
the US Dollar Debt Fund is to invest in medium to long
term notes to obtain steadily interest income as well as
capital appreciation. The US Dollar Debt Fund is open
to external professional investors and is managed by
OCIAM. The fund manager closely monitors the market
value of the investment notes within the portfolio of
the fund and try to capture any opportunities to acquire
investment notes at low value and to dispose those
investment notes at a higher price to obtain capital gain
in addition to obtain interest return. Further details of
the investment portfolio of the US Dollar Debt Fund is
set out under “Securities Trading and Investments — US
Dollar Debt Fund” below.

On 2 March 2021, the Group through its subsidiary, OCI
Capital Limited, subscribed for 100 Class A Shares of
OCI Equities Fund SP (“the Sub-Fund”) at a consideration
of HK$95,000,000 (representing approximately 19%
of the investment funds raised). Class B shareholder
and Class C shareholder will contribute HK$80,000,000
(representing approximately 16% of the investment
funds raised) and HK$325,000,000 (representing
approximately 65% of the investment funds raised)
to subscribe for Class B Shares and Class C Shares,
respectively.

Provided that the Sub-Fund has sufficient distributable
assets, each Class A Share is entitled in priority (over
Class B Shares) to a simple fixed return of 5% per
annum on its initial offer price or its subscription price
as at the closing day or the relevant subscription day
(“Class A Expected Fixed Return”). The Class A Expected
Fixed Return will be payable annually. After payment of
the Class A Expected Fixed Return, each Class B Share
is entitled to a simple fixed return of 10.5% per annum
on its initial offer price or its subscription price as at
the closing day or the relevant subscription day (“Class
B Expected Fixed Return”). The Class B Expected Fixed
Return will be payable annually. The Group received the
first annual Class A Expected Fixed Return of HK$4.75
million in April 2022.

(i)

(iii)
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Investment objective of the Sub-Fund is to achieve
medium to long-term capital appreciation through direct
or indirect acquisition, holding, and distribution or
other disposition of a properties development project in
Foshan, the PRC through the three years term.

As at 31 December 2022, the fair value of the fund
investment was HK$92.01 million (31 December 2021:
HK$96.92 million), representing 22.0% of the total
assets of the Group (31 December 2021: 17.8%).
The fair value was determined by the present value of
expected cash flows with the appropriate discount rate
of each cash flow and adjusted for fund specific credit
risk.

Securities Trading and Investments

Dividend income, income from debt investments, gain or loss
on disposal of financial assets, and the change in fair value
of the financial assets recognized under this segment for the
Year Under Review, in total, amounted to a loss of HK$29.06
million (year ended 31 December 2021: HK$62.76 million).
Loss attributed to this business segment amounted to
HK$58.30 million (year ended 31 December 2021: HK$130.72
million), mainly due to the fair value loss of investments
amounting to HK$30.16 million (year ended 31 December
2021: HK$69.50 million), impairment losses on fixed income
investment notes amounting to HK$24.33 million (year ended
31 December 2021: HK$4.54 million), and a provision for
post-completion value guarantee of nil (31 December 2021:
HK$58.57 million).

Fixed Income Products

The key factors considered by the Group when making the
investment decisions included, but not limited to, (i) the credit
rating of the issuers; (ii) the financial position and financial
performance of the underlying assets; (iii) the returns offered
by and the relevant costs in association with the fixed income
products; (iv) the terms of the fixed income products; (v) any
guarantor or collaterals in association with the fixed income
products; (vi) leverage which can be applied in the fixed
income products; (vii) the economic environment; and (viii)
government policies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group obtains leverage on the fixed income products
through entering into financial arrangements with financial
institutions through US dollar bond linked notes and
repurchase agreements. Through these arrangements, the
Company only needs to pay part of the market value of the
underlying assets as upfront payment, upon maturity, the
Company will receive the return of the underlying asset net
of the pre-agreed funding cost.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group held interests in the
following investments which were recognised as debt
investments at amortised cost or financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss in the consolidated statement of
financial position of the Group:

(i)  US$15 million 10% senior secured guaranteed notes
(“RD Note”) issued by Rundong Fortune Investment
Limited (“RD Note Issuer”) matured on 15 April 2019.
The RD Note was secured by a charge over 78,000,000
shares of China Rundong Auto Group Limited (China
Rundong Charged Shares), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1365). The Group issued
an EOD Notice to the RD Note Issuer and demanded for
payment from RD Note Issuer on 16 April 2019. Then
the Group sold 2,019,000 China Rundong Charged
Shares and subsequently also contracted with LanHai
International Trading Limited (E BB & 5 B R
A A]) and Ms. Ding Yi (T 1&) (“RD Charged Share
Purchasers”), to sell the remaining 75,981,000 China
Rundong Charged Shares (“Remaining RD Shares”) for
HK$80 million. On 16 August 2019, a Writ of Summons
to RD Charged Share Purchasers was filed to the high
court of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region,
details of which was set out in the Group’s annual
report 2019. Up to the date of this report, 8,310,000
China Rundong Charged Shares was disposed in open
market for cash return of HK$8.76 million. The total
exposure as at 31 December 2022 was HK$108.33
million (31 December 2021: HK$107.53 million) after
amounts recovered from the sale of part of collateral
and exchange difference arising from translation of US$
to HKS.
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20 MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERE R

(i)

B 53 ifr

The legal proceedings between the Group against the
RD Charged Share Purchasers is still in progress. During
the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
attended the mediation but no agreement was reached
with the RD Charged Share Purchasers. Further Witness
Statement was exchanged and our case management
conference hearing was held on 29 November 2021.

The case trial date is fixed on 5 October 2023.

As the trading of the China Rundong Charged Shares
was suspended since 1 April 2021 and subsequently
delisted on 31 October 2022, full impairment provision
was made against the Group’s investment in RD Note as
at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

US$13 million of 8% senior secured guaranteed notes
("SP Note”) issued by Sanpower (Hong Kong) Company
Limited (“SP Note Issuer”) matured on 30 July 2019.

In October 2018, the Group issued an EOD Notice to
the SP Note Issuer and demanded for payment from
the Sanpower Group Co., Ltd. and Mr. Yuan Yafei as
guarantors, in respect of all outstanding sums owing
by the SP Note Issuer under the SP Note. The SP Note
is secured also by charges over a total of 131,000,000
shares of C.banner International Holdings Limited
(“C.banner Shares"”), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1028). On 9 January 2019, the
Group submitted an application to the Intermediate
People’s Court for the enforcement of amounts
due under the Mediation Order and the Settlement
Agreement, details of which were set out in the Group's
annual report 2018 and 2019. The Company received
notice from the Sanpower Group on 8 December 2021
that the Restructuring Plan of Sanpower Group was
passed. The Restructuring Plan scheduled to resolve the
defaulted debts and part of the related interest due
through business restructuring and improving fund pool
through disposal of certain assets or investments. The
Restructuring Plan will last through 2021 to 2028. The
Company is registered as one of the Sanpower’s debtors
and will be notified by Sanpower Group for their
updates on the Restructuring Plan.

(ii)
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REBEBZERERAT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The total exposure of the SP Note as at 31 December
2022 was HK$101.53 million (31 December 2021:
HK$101.36 million).

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of the
SP Note was HK$15.04 million (31 December 2021:
HK$33.47 million), after a provision for impairment
loss as at 31 December 2022 of HK$86.49 million
(31 December 2021: provision HK$67.89 million),
representing 3.6% of the consolidated total asset of the
Group (31 December 2021: 6.1%).

Valuation of the carrying amount of the SP Note was
based on the closing price as at 31 December 2022
of 131,000,000 C.banner Shares (31 December 2021:
131,000,000) that secured the SP Note of HK$0.164
per share (31 December 2021: HK$0.365) and a lack
of marketability discount of 30% (31 December 2021:
30% discount) was applied.

US Dollar Debt Fund

As at 31 December 2022, the Group was the only investor
of this fund and all the debt investments in this fund were
regarded as proprietary trade in the Group’s financial
statements. Carrying value of each of those debt investments
in the fund was less than 5% of the consolidated total assets
of the Group. The details of the debt investments in the US
Dollar Debt Fund were as follows:

(i)

US$2.69 million (face value) of 9% guaranteed bond
was issued by CFLD Cayman Investment Ltd. maturing
on 31 July 2021 (“CFLD Note"”). On 9 March 2021,
the Group received a notification from our fund
administrator that the CFLD Note was defaulted due
to a cross default terms of the CFLD Note. On 24
January 2023, a restructuring scheme was approved
by the court, under which the creditors were offered
with different new bonds for selection by 9 January
2024 to exchange for the CFLD Note. Up to the date of
this report, the Group was making assessment on the
offer and yet to decide the selection of the new bonds.
Independent valuer was engaged to assess the expected
credit loss of the CFLD Note.
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As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of the
CFLD Note was HK$2.31 million (31 December 2021:
HK$8.03 million), after a provision for impairment
loss from expected credit loss assessment as at 31
December 2022 of HK$18.68 million (31 December

2021: HK$12.93 million), representing 0.6% of the
consolidated total assets of the Group (31 December
2021: 1.5%).

(i)  US$1.3 million (face value) of 7.25% senior unsecured
bond issued by Greenland Global Investment Limited
maturing on 12 March 2022 (“GL Note").

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of the GL
Note was HK$10.14 million, representing 1.9% of the
consolidated total assets of the Group.

During the Year Under Review, the GL Note was
redeemed upon maturity.

HK Dollar fund linked note

On 26 June 2021, the Group through its subsidiary, OCI
Capital Limited (“the Noteholder”), invested HKD20,000,000
in Total Return OCI Investment Fund SPC — OCI Real
Estate Fund | SP (Class B) Linked Notes issued by Essence
International Products & Solutions Limited (“the Issuer”)
due 2022 (subject to extension) comprising, for designation
purpose only, 20,000,000 units of the Notes with a principal
amount of HKD20,000,000, each linked to the Class B
participating shares in a segregated portfolio entitled “OCI
Real Estate Fund | SP” (“the Fund”) of OCI Investment Fund
SPC, an exempted segregated portfolio company established
under the laws of the Cayman Islands. Cash dividend is
expected to be 8% per annum to be received semi-annually
pursuant to the applicable PPM Supplement of the Fund at
that time. The Issuer shall pay to the Noteholder the relevant
dividend amount (if any) on each dividend payment date.
Furthermore, the Issuer shall pay to the Noteholder the
relevant extension fee balance (if any) within five (5) business
days following the actual receipt of the extension fee balance
by the Issuer pursuant to the PPM Supplement of the Fund.
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REBEBZERERAT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 27 December 2021, half of the investment in the Fund
was redeemed by the Issuer, hence the Group also redeemed
half of investment, i.e. HK$10 million in the said HK Dollar
Fund Linked Note in early January 2022. Income from the HK
Dollar Fund Linked Note amounted to HK$1.05 million was
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2021.

On 27 June 2022, 40% of the remaining investment in the
Fund was redeemed by the Issuer, hence the Group also
redeemed 40% of investment, i.e. HK$4 million in the said
HK Dollar Fund Linked Note.

During the second half year of 2022, the Group redeemed all
remaining investment in the said HK Dollar Fund Linked Note
in exchange of corresponding linked Class B participating
shares of the Fund. Income from the HK Dollar Fund Linked
Note amounted to approximately HK$0.95 million was
recognised for the Year Under Review. As at 31 December
2022, the carrying amount of the Group's investment in the
Fund was HK$4.62 million.

Equity Securities

During the Year Under Review, the Group invested HK$14.80
million in the listed shares and warrants of three listed Special
Purpose Acquisition Companies (“SPACs”) in the Stock
Exchange with the prospect of making capital gain when the
SPACs go for De-SPACs within a pre-defined time period after
listing. As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of the
investments in SPACs was HK$13.63 million. A net fair value
loss on the investments in SPACs amounting to HK$1.17
million was recorded for the Year Under Review.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL ANALYSIS AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has one fixed-rate,
unsecured revolving facilities of US$100 million from Cheer
Hope Holdings Limited, one of the Group’s substantial
shareholders. The outstanding principal amount of the loan
as at 31 December 2022 amounted to US$6 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
E12 @857 7 ifr

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2022 was
21.5% (31 December 2021: 24.6%), calculated based on
total amount of borrowings and lease liabilities of HK$63.09
million (31 December 2021: HK$91.59 million) divided by
total equity of HK$293.64 million (31 December 2021:
HK$372.79 million) as at that date. After taking into account
of the amount due to a related party of HK$46.93 million
(31 December 2021: Nil), the gearing ratio of the Group was
37.5% (31 December 2021: 24.6%).

The Group’s bank balances and cash as at 31 December
2022 amounted to HK$230.57 million (31 December 2021:
HK$313.01 million). Its total assets as at the same date were
HK$417.56 million (31 December 2021: HK$544.67 million).

The Group recorded net current assets of HK$274.23 million
(31 December 2021: HK$367.21 million) and inventories
decreased from HK$7.29 million as at 31 December 2021 to
HK$6.26 million as at 31 December 2022. The current ratio of
3.4 times (31 December 2021: 3.1 times) is calculated based
on the current assets of HK$389.02 million (31 December
2021: HK$539.09 million) over the current liabilities of
HK$114.79 million (31 December 2021: HK$171.88 million).

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the issued
capital of the Company was HK$15 million.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Save as disclosed in this report, the Group had no material
event after the reporting period.
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REBEBZERERAT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

Saved as disclosed in Fund Investment above and in this
report, there is no other significant investment held at 31
December 2022.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

As disclosed in the Business Review section above, on 23 May
2022, the Group acquired 60% paid up capital of Shandong
Civil Aviation Dongsheng from a third party at a cash
consideration of RMB3.15 million.

On 27 June 2022, the Group transferred 49% equity
interest of Title Success Limited which indirectly hold 60%
equity interest of Shandong Civil Aviation Dongsheng to
a BVI company wholly owned by a senior management of
Shandong Civil Aviation Dongsheng at nil consideration as
a motivation of such senior management to continuously
enhance the market competitiveness of Shandong Civil
Aviation Dongsheng on the conditions that he shall remain
as the legal representative, director and general manager of
Shandong Civil Aviation Dongsheng within three years from
27 June 2022.

Saved as disclosed above and elsewhere in this report, the
Group did not carry out any material acquisition nor disposal
of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the Year
Under Review.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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PROSPECTS FOR THE YEAR 2023 AND DEVELOPMENT
PLAN

Global economy has been affected by the COVID-19
pandemic for over three years. Following the relaxation
of most of the pandemic-related control measures and
reopening of borders all over the world, most of the
commercial activities have gradually resumed normal.
However, economic recovery and long-term prosperity have
been loomed over by various uncertainties, including but
not limited to, the pace and extent of interest rate hikes and
monetary tightening by major central banks amid persistent
global inflationary pressures; worries about global economic
slowdown; prolonged geopolitical risks related to Ukraine;
and energy supply issues in Europe, etc. Looking ahead,
the general economies and the Group's operations and
development are still challenging.

The Group will stay focus on development of asset
management business and actively optimize its investment
portfolio with high potential with a view to realizing
synergetic effect with existing clients and strategic partners
in order to help investors to achieve their wealth appreciation
goals through asset management. During the Year Under
Review, the Healthcare Investment Fund was set up with
a targeted capital commitment to be raised ranging from
US$1.5 billion to US$1.9 billion, and is expected to invest in
the healthcare industry. On the other hand, in addition to the
acquisition of 60% equity interest in Shandong Civil Aviation
Dongsheng on 23 May 2022, the Group will continue to
explore other potential business in the PRC so as to expand
the existing business and enhance the Group’s performance.

The creation of a listing regime by the Stock Exchange for
SPAC since 1 January 2022 provides another means for the
Group to expand its asset management business through
turning structured project funds into listed companies. The
Group has already submitted an application to the Stock
Exchange for listing of a SPAC, named Pisces Acquisition
Corporation, on 2 March 2022, and the application of listing
was still in progress.
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REBEBZERERAT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group had obtained Type 1 (dealing in securities) license
granted by SFC on 28 July 2021,
allocated for the development of this business, including
participating in underwriting, sub-underwriting and placing
of securities transactions, to diversify the income source of
the Group.

more resources will be

For trading of wines and beverages, the Group will
keep on with the existing strategy in expanding its wine
product portfolio to a broader range and other beverage
categories. Attributed to the recent relaxation of most of
the pandemic-related control measures in Hong Kong and
reopening of borders, especially with Mainland China, it
is expected that both commercial and social activities will
gradually resume normal, leading to an increase in demand
and consumption of wine and beverage products. In order
to capture the sales opportunities, the Group has hired
additional sales person and plans to conduct more marketing
and promotion activities, such as wine tasting campaigns, in
the year 2023.

In addition to the existing businesses, the Board will
cautiously and diligently explore new potential expansion
opportunities, such as Fintech related business, in order to
diversify income sources, bring in profits and sustainable
growth to the Group.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

The Group's operations are conducted (and its borrowings are
denominated) in Hong Kong dollars and US dollars while wine
trading billings are mainly settled in Hong Kong dollars, Euro
and Sterling Pound. However, the operations of the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries are conducted in RMB. Therefore, the Group
is exposed to fluctuations in foreign exchange rate to a
certain extent. Currently, the Group has no formal hedging
policies in place. The Group has not entered into any foreign
currency exchange contracts or derivatives to hedge against
the Group’s currency risks. However, the Group will continue
to closely monitor and manage its exposure to foreign
exchange and will consider engaging hedging instruments as
and when appropriate.
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DIVIDEND

No dividends were paid, declared or proposed during the
Year Under Review (year ended 31 December 2021: Nil). The
Board did not recommend any dividend payment for the Year
Under Review (year ended 31 December 2021: Nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021,
were outstanding after the secured term loan of HK$155

no secured borrowings

million with a local bank was fully settled when fall due.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had an outstanding
commitment of RMB3,000,000 for the capital injection to
Shandong Civil Aviation Dongsheng.

As at 31 December 2021,
reported.

no capital commitments were

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the
Directors are not aware of any material contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEE POLICY

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed 7 employees
in the PRC and employed 26 employees in Hong Kong. The
Group has maintained good relationship with its staff and has
not experienced any major disruptions of its operations due
to labour disputes. The Group contributed to the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme of Hong Kong and provided medical
benefits programme for its employees in Hong Kong. It
also contributed to the retirement insurance, medicare,
unemployment insurance and housing funds according to the
applicable laws and regulations of the PRC for its employees
in the PRC.

The Group remunerates its employees in accordance with
their work performance and experience. The Board has
designated the duties of determining Directors’ service
contracts, reviewing of Directors’ and senior management’s
emoluments and awarding of discretionary bonuses of the
Company to the remuneration committee of the Company.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of OCI International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is committed to
maintaining and ensuring a high standard of corporate
governance. The Board takes the view that a high standard
of corporate governance lays down a solid foundation for
enhancing a high degree of accountability and transparency,
maintaining sound and effective internal control, improving
the performance of the Group and safeguarding the interests
of the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

The Board has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). During the year ended 31 December 2022 (the
“Year"), the Company has complied with the CG Code.

THE BOARD

As at 31 December 2022, the Board was comprised of Mr.
Wu Guangze, Mr. Feng Hai and Mr. Wei Bin as executive
directors (“Executive Directors”); Mr. Jiao Shuge and Ms.
Zheng Xiaosu as non-executive directors (“Non-executive
Directors”); and Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan, Mr. Li Xindan and Dr.
Lo Wing Yan William as independent non-executive directors
(“Independent non-executive Directors” or “INED"). Mr.
Chang Tat Joel resigned as an INED on 23 December 2022
due to pre-occupation on his own personal business.

The Board is responsible for the overall strategic development
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
and is also responsible for the financial performance,
risk management, internal control policies and business
operations of the Group. The daily operations of the Group
are delegated to the Group’s management. All directors
of the Company (“Director(s)”) are provided with updated
information relating to corporate governance and regulatory
matters. During the Year, all Directors had been provided
with monthly management updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance,
position and prospects to enable the Directors to discharge
their duties under the Listing Rules.
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The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance
functions with written terms of reference. The primary duties
are:

1. To develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance.

2. To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management.

3. To review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements.

4.  To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
applicable to employees and Directors.

5. To review the Company’s compliance with code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

The biographies of the Directors are set out in pages 52 to
61.

2022 Annual Report

ExchARREEOBEEENTERER
BE-TERER:

1. BIERBAARAZEEXERK
e

o

K&

2. BRAREREENRSIREREAE Z2EI
RFEEEXER-

3. REREEAAAEETERREEH
EREZEERER

4. FlIE ROLAEEEEREFTER 27
A3 57 Al e

5. MEAATETTFIZERRRCEE
BWEZWE

EEREEHNES2E6GIA ©



O RRERERERAT
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 31

PHEBWRS
Attendance record of meetings: @ X FEEeE
The attendance records of each Director at the various HZ _-_Z - " F+ - A=+—HIEFE &

meetings of the Company during the year ended 31 December EEHFE AR A TR EZ 2L K H M T ¢
2022 are set out as below:

Directors' attendance record of the board meetings,
committees meetings, and general meetings in 2021

CRCCRESERY ZEGEERRRAGZESHRER

Extraordinary Annual Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration Investment
general general Committee Board Committee Committee Committee
meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting

ENZEE RAZE8E HMZEE  RHEZEe

RREHAE RREFAE g8 Ezded EE EE E

Number of meetings EEYR NA R iE B 1 2 8 2 1 3
Executive Director HrEes
Mr. Wy Guangze RERLE NA T B /1 NIAT i B 8/8 NIAT i B NAT & B 33
Mr. Feng Hai )i NA T 11 N/AZ i PR 6/8 /A & B NAT R NAL R
Mr. Wei Bin e NARER 11 NIAZ i B 6/8 NIAZ i R NAZRE R 23
Non-executive Director ~ FHTEZ
Mr. Jiao Shuge EHELE NA TR i NIAT i B 6/8 NIAZ E B NAT & B JIE;
Ms. Zheng Xiaosu® PPEt? NA T B R 11 N/AZ i F 8 N/AZ 8 PR NIAZR i A NAT B R
INED Bukyfnes
Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan EERfL NA R ER 11 N 58 0 0 NAT & R
Mr. Li Xindan FOREE NA T R 11 112 88 1/ N NAT & R
Dr.LoWing Yan Wiliam ~ ExX{fL NA TR i 0N 8/8 0N 1 NIAT i R
Mr. Chang Tat Joel gERrs NA &R 11 N 58 Jil N NAT &
! Mr. Chang Tat Joel resigned as an Independent 1 BEREER S -_—FE#+-_fF-+=
non-executive Director on 23 December 2022 BRIBYIESfTES

2 Ms. Zheng Xiaosu resigned as an non-executive Director 2 N ELTR _E_=—F=H=+—H
on 31 March 2023 BHEFNTES

During the Year, all Directors discharged their dutiesina WRAREEF 2 REEPLSEZEZ A ET -
dedicated, diligent and proactive manner with reasonable ZEB E T FHETHR S HERBELEZTFTES kK .
prudence. They have executed their duties in accordance AR A FAB=E=EMA([AEBE=R2Ha )R F
with statutory requirements, the articles of association of the FHAETH S 2B FE E R EEBRAQ T
Company (the “Articles of Association”) and the Listing Rules. @2 E/& WIR AT OB RE - BT A
All Directors have exercised due care in monitoring corporate £ & F7 /A & A 5 58 -

matters of the Company and provided sufficient time and

attention to all significant issues of the Group.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND PROCEEDING

The Executive Directors meet on a regular basis to discuss
the ordinary business of the Company. Board meetings are
held to discuss the overall development, operation, financial
performance, interim results, annual results and other
business of the Company that require approval from the
Board. Reasonable notice has been given to Board members
to give them an opportunity to attend. All Board members are
provided relevant documentation covering the subject matter
of the Board meetings. Board members are also provided
with sufficient information in a timely manner to review
and consider matters to be discussed at Board meetings and
also for passing written resolutions. The Company utilises
telephone conferencing for Directors who are not able to
attend in person. The Board held eight Board meetings during
the Year.

Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings
are drafted by the secretary of the meetings and recorded
in sufficient details the matters considered and decisions
reached, with draft and final versions being circulated to the
Directors for their comments and records within reasonable
time after the meetings are held. Originals of such minutes,
being kept by the company secretary of the Company
(the "Company Secretary”), are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be
considered by the Board which the Board has determined to
be material, the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board
meeting rather than a written resolution. That Director will
abstain from voting on the relevant Board resolution in which
he/she or any of his/her associates has a material interest and
that he/she shall not be counted in the quorum present at
such Board meeting.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate
effective management, certain functions of the Board
have been delegated by the Board to the audit committee
of the Company (the “Audit Committee”), remuneration
committee of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”),
nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) and investment committee of the Company (the
“Investment Committee”).

The members of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee are Independent
non-executive Directors. Clear written terms of reference of
all the Board Committees are given to the respective members
of these Committees. Details of the Board Committees are set
out below:

1. Audit Committee
The Audit Committee was established in 2001. The
Company adopted a set of revised written terms of
reference for the Audit Committee in December 2022.
During the Year and up to the date of this report,
the Audit Committee is comprised of the following
Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chong Ka Yee (Chairman)
(appointed on 23 March 2023)

Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan

Mr. Li Xindan

Dr. Lo Wing Yan William

Mr. Chang Tat Joel (Chairman)
(resigned on 23 December 2022)

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include,
among other things, review and supervision of the
financial reporting process, risk management and
internal control policies and procedures of the Company.
The Audit Committee also acts as the communication
bridge between the Board and the external auditors in
relation to the planning and scope of audit work. The
appointment of members to the Audit Committee was
based on members’ breadth of experience in various
commercial sectors and professional knowledge of
financial reporting and general management.

REBEBZERERAT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
FREBWS

0

=N

EE%8E
SHMEZEERTRELRREARERE &
FEMNETRECHESEREAQRASRE

g

“ZEe([BE%RZB8€)) ARAFHMEER
e((HFMZzEE]) ArrARBZES([R
2ZBeg kAR rEZBEG([RERER
g]) e

EZZBEE FTHZEERRERAZEENNX
Eﬂﬁ%j%ﬂﬁ%$ FFEEREZRBEN

HEEZERESEOR TZELZEST2HE
ME-ZEFEZEZ2HFBHIWOT :

1. BERZEEE
BREZEEEN _TT—FRIL AR
ER-_EBE__F+= Hh%—ﬁmWﬂ
MERREEEHREXZESEA -
AREERBEAREAH EREZE
HATEIIIFRTESHEMNX

@%

HEEELEE(EE)
(RZFZ=ZF=ZA=ZF+=ZHEZF)
BEEmLAE

=R E

ExCE L

BREA K E(EE)
(R=ZFZZF+=—F=+=HFF)

ERZRBEZIEREER(EREHE)
$ﬁ&?%$ATZW%ﬁ¢Ef*H
REEMAMBEERRNEF -BRZ
EENRETEFSRINTRBRME B
BITERINBENBEBR - BRZ
EEXBZZEDNREAEKERNER
LB 2 B e R R RS —
RER 2 EXMBMETE -

33



OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

34 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREBHRS

2022 Annual Report

During the Year, the Audit Committee held two
meetings to discuss the pre-audit planning and review
interim results and annual results of the Group,
internal control and risk management issues. The risk
management policies and procedures was adopted
in the year 2016 and the enterprise risk management
advising service and internal control review report were
prepared by an external advisor and were reviewed by
the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Board adopted a set of revised terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee which included changes in
line with the requirements of the CG Code in December
2022. During the Year and up to the date of this report,
the Remuneration Committee is comprised of the
following Independent non-executive Directors:

Dr. Lo Wing Yan William (Chairman)
@ppointed on 23 March 2023)
Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan
Mr. Li Xindan
Mr. Chong Ka Yee
(appointed on 23 March 2023)
Mr. Chang Tat Joel (Chairman)
(resigned on 23 December 2022)

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
include, among other things, determining the policy for
the remuneration of Directors, assessing performance of
Directors and approving the terms of Directors’ service
contracts. The Remuneration Committee reviews and
approves the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives to make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held one
meetings and recommended the remunerations of the
Directors and senior management.
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3.  Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee in
March 2012 and the Company adopted a set of revised
written terms of reference which included changes in
line with the requirements of the CG Code in December
2022. During the Year and up to the date of this
report, the Nomination Committee is comprised of the
following Directors:

Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan (Chairman)
Mr. Li Xindan
Dr. Lo Wing Yan William
Mr. Chong Ka Yee

(appointed on 23 March 2023)
Mr. Chang Tat Joel

(resigned on 23 December 2022)

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include
(i) reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board; (ii) to establish nomination policy to identify potential
directors by developing a list of desirable skills, perspectives
and experience; (iii) selection of individuals nominated for
directorships; (iv) to assess the independence of Independent
non-executive Directors; (v) make recommendations to
the Board; (vi) to review the nomination policy and board
diversity policy on regular basis; and (vii) to monitor the
implementation of the nomination policy and board diversity
policy and report in the corporate government report
annually.

The Nomination Committee has implemented the following
procedures and processes in respect of the nomination of
Directors:

1. The Nomination Committee may select potential
candidates for nomination by: (i) inviting the Board to
nominate suitable candidates, if any, for its consideration;
or (ii) nominating candidates who were not proposed by
the Board members; or (iii) engaging external recruitment
agencies to assist in identifying and selecting suitable
candidates, if considered necessary;

2. The Nomination Committee will conduct background
search on each potential candidates;
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3. After consideration, the Nomination Committee shall then
make recommendations of the suitable candidates for the
Board’'s consideration and approval. For the election of
candidates to stand for re-election at a general meeting,
the Nomination Committee shall make nominations to
the Board for its consideration and recommendation to
Shareholders; and

4. Shareholders may also nominate candidates for election
as a Director in accordance with the procedures posted
on the Company’s website.

The Nomination Committee will evaluate and recommend
retiring Director(s) to the Board for re-appointment in
accordance with the following procedures:

1. The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
review the overall contribution and service of the retiring
Director(s) to the Company and the level of participation
and performance on the Board, including but not limited
to the attendance of the meetings of the Board and/or
its committees and general meetings;

2.  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should also
review and determine whether the retiring Director(s)
continue(s) to satisfy the criteria of the Company; and

3.  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
then make recommendation to shareholders in respect
of the proposed re-election of director at the general
meeting.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held two
meetings to consider the re-appointment of the retired
Directors, the establishment of Investment Committee and
the appointment of Investment Committee members.
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4.

Investment Committee

The Company established the Investment Committee
in February 2022 and the Company adopted a set of
written terms of reference in February 2022. During the
Year and up to the date of this report, the Investment
Committee is comprised of the following Directors:

Mr. Jiao Shuge (Chairman)
(appointed on 23 February 2022)
Mr. Wu Guangze (appointed on 23 February 2022)

Mr. Wei Bin (appointed on 23 February 2022)

The primary duties of the Investment Committee include
(i) to advise from time to time on the Company’s
investment policies; (ii) to monitor the investment
activities and report the same to the Board; (iii) to
approve, review and assess the risks and returns
of investment projects; (iv) to review and evaluate
investment results and to take corrective actions when
necessary; (v) to consider such other projects and
matters relating to the Company’s investments; (vi) to
conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation
that contained in the constitutional documents of the
Company or imposed by laws, rules or regulations; and
(vii) to review the investment policy and to monitor the
implementation of the investment policy on regular
basis.

During the Year, the Investment Committee held three
meetings to consider the investment activities of the
Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company established the dividend policy aimed at setting
out the principles and guidelines that the Company intends to
apply in relation to the declaration, payment or distribution
of its profits as dividends to the Shareholders.
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In considering the payment of dividends, there shall be a balance
between maintaining sufficient capital for expanding the Group's
business and rewarding the shareholders of the Company.

The Board shall also take into account, among other things,
when considering the declaration and payment of dividends:

e the actual and expected financial performance of the
Group

e the capital and debt level of the Group
e the general market conditions

e any working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements and future development plans of the Group

e retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group

e the liquidity position of the Group

e any restrictions on dividend payouts imposed by any of the
Group's lenders

e the statutory and regulatory restrictions which the Group is
subject to from time to time

® any other relevant factors that the Board may deem
appropriate

Notwithstanding anything in this Dividend Policy, the declaration
and payment of dividends (if any) by the Company is subject to
the discretion of the Board, any restrictions under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands, the Listing Rules, the laws of
Hong Kong and the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of
Association and any other applicable laws and regulations.

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
distribution ratio. The Company’s dividend distribution
record in the past may not be used as a reference or basis to
determine the level of dividends that may be declared or paid
by the Company in the future.

The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally
binding commitment by the Group in respect of its future
dividend and/or in no way obligate the Group to declare a
dividend at any time or from time to time.
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DIRECTORS CONTINUOUS TRAININGS AND
DEVELOPMENT

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials
regarding to duties and responsibilities of being a Director,
the relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Directors,
duty of disclosure of interest and business of the Group
and such induction materials would also be provided to
newly appointed Directors shortly upon their appointment
as Directors. All Directors have been updated on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and enhance
their awareness of good corporate governance practices. There
is a procedure agreed by the Board to ensure Directors, upon
reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstance, at the Company’s expenses.

The Directors confirmed that they have completed with the
Code Provision C.1.4 of the CG Code and report on Directors’
training. All Directors have participated in continuous
professional development by the following means to develop
and refresh their knowledge during the Year.
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Reading materials/attending training course ] & # &t/ & 52 3l
Reading materials/attending training course i i& # 1,/ & £ 3

Reading materials/attending training course i i& # £/ & 5%
Reading materials/attending training course B i& # ¥t/ & £
Reading materials/attending training course i :& #1 £/ & 15

Reading materials/attending training course i i& # £,/ & £ 3
Reading materials/attending training course B i& #1 £,/ & 15 3l
Reading materials/attending training course ] & # &t/ & 52 3l

Tk Tk @ik

Directors Training received
BEs EEZ NI
Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Wu Guangze REERE

Mr. Feng Hai B EE

Mr. Wei Bin Bl k&

Non-executive Directors FHITES

Mr. Jiao Shuge EREEE

Ms. Zheng Xiaosu BNRULL

Independent non-executive

Directors BYFHTES

Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan EERETE

Mr. Li Xindan ELARE

Dr. Lo Wing Yan William EX{CHEL

Mr. Chong Ka Yee HREHEEAE

The topics on training covered the listing rules update, corporate
governance, finance and industry specific regulations.

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE BOARD MEMBERS

None of the members of the Board has any relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relations) among each other.

Reading materials/attending training course B #& #1 £,/ & 15 3

N ETERELTRAUEH EXER W
BREETERD -

ESEME HENERKR
ExeBECHBEEMNBERBREME %
B REXEMYE MEBEBR) -

39



40

OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREBHRS

DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Company (the “Model Code"”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Following
enquiries with the Directors, the Company has received
confirmation from each of the Directors confirming that he or
she has complied with the required standard of dealings set
out in the Model Code for the Year.

SEGREGATION OF DUTIES

In compliance with Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG code,
the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
positions are separated and performed by different
individuals, namely Mr. Jiao Shuge and Mr. Wu Guangze,
respectively.

The Chairman is responsible for the management of the
Board and the strategic developments of the Group. The
Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the Group’s
day-to-day management of the Group’s business and
corporate administration.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Independent non-executive Directors bring independent
judgement to the Board. Each Independent non-executive
Director sent a written confirmation of their independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules to the Company.
Based on these confirmations, the Board considers that
all Independent non-executive Directors have met the
qualifications of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for the Year.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
Directors are appointed in accordance with their qualifications
and experience to ensure they are capable to perform their
duties and protect the interests of the stakeholders. Every
appointed Director receives a comprehensive and formal
introduction to ensure that he/she has an understanding of
the Group’s business and operation, his/her responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements, and the Model Code.
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According to the provisions of the Articles of Association and
the Listing Rules, any Director appointed by the Board to fill
a casual vacancy shall hold office until the next following
general meeting of the Company, and in the case of an
addition to the existing Board, until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company (“AGM"). In addition, at
each AGM one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation. Furthermore, each Director, including those
appointed for a specific term or holding office as Chairman
and/or the Chief Executive Officer, are subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Nomination Committee is responsible for the selection of
individuals nominated as Director and senior management.
The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy
which is contained in the terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee that sets out the selection criteria and
process in relation to nomination of Directors and aims to
ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company and the
continuity of the Board and appropriate leadership at Board
level.

Detailed information relating to educational, professional
qualifications and relevant work experience are provided at
the Board meeting to approve the proposed appointment
of new Directors. The criteria for selecting Directors are
mainly based on the candidate’s qualifications, experience,
professional knowledge, ethics and integrity.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

In December 2022, the Board has adopted a set of revised
board diversity policy of the Company (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) pursuant to which the Board considers a number of
aspects, including but not limited to, gender, age, culture,
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge, diversity of perspectives and length of
services in designing the Board’s composition. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Nomination
Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness and to monitor the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy.
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As at 31 December 2022, Board diversification in terms of: R—_EBE-_—_FE+-_A=+—H EEFE€ %L
L TH o HEE S :
Gender % 3l
13% 87%

Female
i

Age Group F #& # Bl
25% 25% 37% 13%

Capacity &
38% 25% 37%

Executive Directors /7 &5 Independent Non-executive Directors
BAYFHTES

Length of Service in the Board R EE & Rk % &
75% 25%

0-3 years 0-34F

Nationality Bl &
87% 13%

Chinese R E

Educational Background #E R E
37% 38% 25%

Bachelor's degree 2Lt EE Doctor’s degree

BLRE

Professional Experience 5 ¥ £ B
25% 49% 13% 13%

Accounting Academic Biology
a5t 21l £

Market/Industry Experience T 5 /1T ¥ & &
36% 25% 13% 13% 13%
Real Estate Educational [ Technology;Mediaand

Investment && Telecommunications

FHE #E B4 BERED




2022 3R

INED’s other listed board roles:
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BYFHTEFHMM ELTESEAG:

Lo Wing

Tso Siu Yan
Lun Alan Li Xindan William
EEW =07 |

Executive director WITESE
Non-executive director FEMITES
Independent non-executive director BYUFRITES

Measurable Objectives
In terms of implementing the Board Diversity Policy, there are
the following measurable objectives:

(@) to comply with the requirements as specified under the
Listing Rules from time to time in relation to composition
of the Board;

(b) the number of independent non-executive Directors
appointed must not be less than three and must
represents at least one-third of the Board,;

(c) at least one of the independent non-executive Directors
must have appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise;
and

(d) must appoint a Director of a different gender on or
before the year ended 2024 to avoid single gender
board.

As at 31 December 2022, all the measurable objectives under
the Board Diversity Policy have been fulfilled.

Monitoring and Reporting

The Board reviews the Board Diversity Policy and the
measurable objectives for implementing such policy on a
regular basis and will review the progress on achieving these
objectives, developing successors to the Board, and the
implementation and effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy
on an annual basis.
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Gender diversity of Workforce

Gender diversity at workforce levels (including our senior
management) is disclosed in the Company’s “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” contained in this annual
report.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

In determining the remuneration of Directors and senior
management, the Company took into account of (i) the
prevailing market conditions; (ii) the time commitment
requirements; (iii) the duties and responsibilities; (iv) the
contribution to the Group; (v) the qualifications and (vi) the
experience, to ensure sufficient remuneration levels to attract
and retain high calibre personnel without paying excessively.

COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advices and services of the
Company Secretary, Mr. Chu Kin Ming. Mr. Chu Kin Ming
has confirmed that he had received no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training for the year ended 31 December
2022 in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

The primary corporate contact person at the Company is Mr.
Lui Kwok Wai, the Head of company secretarial department
of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Memorandum and the Articles of Association of the
Company are published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
Company general meetings are valuable platform to allow
the Board to communicate with Shareholders and answer
questions regarding proposed resolutions. Individual
resolutions stipulated at general meetings for each substantial
issue and Board members are available to answer questions
raised by Shareholders.
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The Board adopted a revised Shareholder’s communication
policy on 30 December 2022 aiming to provide Shareholders
and potential investors with ready and timely access to
balanced and understandable information of the Company.
Information of the Group was disseminated to Shareholders
and investors as follows:

e Delivery of interim reports and annual reports to all
Shareholders and other interested parties;

e Announce interim results and annual results on both
the websites of Stock Exchange and the Company; and
issue and publication of other announcements and
shareholders’ circulars in accordance with the continuing
disclosure obligation under the Listing Rules; and

e Inside Information is disclosed to the public by way of
announcement as required by the Listing Rules and
pursuant to Inside Information Provisions under Part
XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’” enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may direct enquiries to the Board at any time.
Such enquiries can be addressed to the Company Secretary
by mail to the Company’s principal office in Hong Kong at
Level 23, 28 Hennessy Road, Hong Kong.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings by Shareholders

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law or the Articles of Association. Shareholders
who wish to move a resolution may request the Company
to convene an extraordinary general meeting following the
procedures set out below.

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, any
one or more members holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require
for an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition.
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If the requisition is in order, then the meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for proposing a person for election as a Director
If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a
Director, for election as a new Director, the Shareholder must
deposit a written notice (the “Notice”) to the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Level 23, 28
Hennessy Road, Hong Kong for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

The Notice must state clearly the name, the contact
information of the Shareholder and his/her/their shareholding,
the full name of the person proposed for election as a
Director, including the person’s biographical details as
required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed
by the Shareholder concerned (other than the person to
be proposed). The Notice must also be accompanied by a
letter of consent (the “Consent Letter”) signed by the person
proposed to be elected on his/her willingness to be elected as
a Director.

The period for lodgement of the Notice and the Consent
Letter will commence no earlier than the day after the
dispatch of the notice by the Company of the general
meeting appointed for election of Directors and end no later
than seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting.

The Notice will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will forward the
relevant documents to the Nomination Committee and the
Board to consider to include the resolution in the agenda for
the general meeting proposing such person to be elected as a
Director.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
overseeing the preparation of the financial statements of the
Group and believe these statements give a true and fair view
of the Group’s affairs and its results. The Directors are also
responsible for the timely publication of financial statements
of the Group and to ensure they are prepared in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable financial
reporting standards. The Directors are also committed
to make appropriate announcements in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules, and to disclose all
information necessary for Shareholders to assess the financial
performance and other aspects of the Company.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited was appointed as the external
auditor of the Group for the Year and will continue as such
until the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The annual
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year
have been audited by Crowe (HK) CPA Limited. The auditors’
responsibilities for the Group’s financial statements are set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 130 to 138
of the Company’s 2022 Annual Report.

The Audit Committee is responsible for evaluating, including
but not limited to, their independence and objectivity of the
external auditors of the Group.

The fees of the external auditors of the Group for audit
services amounted to HK$1.23 million and for non-audit
services, being engagement on the Group’s interim financial
statements 2022 amounted to HK$0.17 million.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible to ensure that the Company
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems, and to review
its effectiveness through the Audit Committee. The internal
control systems are designed to meet the Group's particular
needs and the risks to which it is exposed, and by their nature
can only provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance
against misstatement or loss and to manage, but not to
eliminate, risks of failure in achieving the Group’s objectives.
Practicable and effective control systems and procedures
have been implemented by the Group to enhance internal
control in an ongoing basis. The Board, through the Audit
Committee, has conducted reviews of the effectiveness and
the adequacy of such systems at least annually.
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During the Year, the Executive Directors are responsible for
the overall risk management functions. In order to comply
with Code Provision D.2.5 of the CG Code contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, the Board has retained
an external advisor with a view to facilitating adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programs, financial reporting functions, Listing Rules
compliance and quality of internal control review to satisfy
the Group's internal audit function as required by Stock
Exchange and to assist the Board to perform annual reviews
on the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems for the Year. The
results of the assessment have been reported by management
to the Audit Committee. And areas of the recommended
actions have been identified and taken into consideration by
the Board for improvements.

The Company has developed its code of conduct which
provides a general guideline to the Company’s Directors and
relevant employees in handling confidential information,
monitoring information disclosure and responding to
enquiries.

Based on the risk management and internal control systems
established and maintained by the Group, the annual internal
control review conducted by external advisor to assist the
Group, and reviews of the internal audit function performed
by executive management, respective Board Committees and
the Board, the Audit Committee and the Board are of the
view that the Group has maintained sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems during the financial
period ended 31 December 2022.

During the Year, the Board has conducted a review and
assessment of risk management and appointed a professional
management consultancy firm, to provide internal controls
assessment services to assist Company to assess and
evaluate. The Audit Committee members, together with the
management, have reviewed, considered and discussed all the
findings and recommendations of the internal control review
relating to the internal control system that operates within
the Group, and the Audit Committee is satisfied that the
internal control system of the Group is sound and adequate.
Pursuant to the system improvement recommendations made
by external advisor, the Group will continue to improve its
internal management and control systems.
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The management and various departments conducted
periodic self-assessment of the effectiveness of the internal
control policies and procedures. During the year ended
31 December 2022, management of the Company had
conducted an internal control review on the systems of
internal control which is in compliance with CG Code under
Listing Rules Appendix 14 for the wine trading business and
follow up the highlighted areas in the year 2021 to ensure
compliance with procedures laid down by the Company and
the Group.

The Board is of the view that the systems of internal
control and risk management are effective and there are no
irregularities, improprieties, fraud or other deficiencies that
suggest there is no material deficiency in the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control and risk management system.

DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group is committed to a consistent practice of timely,
accurate and sufficiently detailed disclosure of material
information about the Group. The Group has in place a
policy on disclosure of inside information which sets out
the procedures and internal controls for handling and
dissemination of inside information. Such policy provides
guidelines to the Directors, officers and all relevant employees
of the Group to ensure proper safeguards exist to prevent
the Company from breaching the statutory disclosure
requirements. It also includes appropriate internal control
and reporting systems to identify and assess potential inside
information.

Key procedures in place include:

J define the requirements of periodic financial and
operational reporting to the Board and Company
Secretary to enable them to assess inside information
and make timely disclosures, if necessary;

. controls the access to inside information by employees
and safeguarding the
confidentiality of the inside information before it is
properly disclosed to public;

on a need-to-know basis,

J procedures of communicating with the Group’s
stakeholders, including shareholders, investors, analysts,
etc. in ways which are in compliance with the Listing Rules.
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To avoid uneven dissemination of inside information, the
dissemination of inside information of the Company shall
be conducted by publishing the relevant information on the
Stock Exchange’s website and on the Company’s website.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Company has put in place whistleblowing policy which
applies to all the directors, employees and those who deal
with the Company p (including but not limited to investors,
customers and suppliers etc.). The policy is designed
to provide the employees and any external parties with
confidential whistleblowing channels to report to the Group
the actual or possible improprieties in operation, corporate
financial reporting, internal control or other areas.

The nature, status and the results of the complaints received
under the whistleblowing policy are reported to the chairman
of the Audit Committee. The identity of the whistle-blower
and all the concerns or irregularities raised will be treated
with confidence and every effort will be made to ensure that
confidentiality is maintained throughout the process. The
Company is also committed to ensuring the protection of the
whistle-blower against detrimental or unfair treatment.

The Whistleblowing Policy is reviewed annually by the Audit
Committee to ensure its effectiveness.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Company is committed to achieving the highest
standards of integrity and ethical behavior in conducting
its business. The anti-corruption policy forms an integral
part of the Company’s corporate governance framework.
The anti-corruption policy sets out the specific behavioral
guidelines that the Group’s personnel and business partners
must follow to combat corruption. The anti-corruption policy
is reviewed and updated on a regular basis to align with
the applicable laws and regulations as well as the industry
best practices. In line with this commitment and to ensure
transparency in the Group’s practices, the Anti-corruption
Policy has been prepared as a guide to all Group employees
and third parties dealing with the Group.
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GOING CONCERN

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief and having made all reasonable
enquiries, they are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cause significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. The Board therefore continues to adopt the going
concern approach in preparing the financial statements for
the Year.

On behalf of the Board
OCl International Holdings Limited

Wu Guangze
Executive Director

31 March 2023
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Guangze, aged 45, was redesignated as an executive
Director in March 2021, and he was appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer in December 2020. He is also a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wu obtained a
Master of Science degree from the University of Reading in
2001 and a Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of
Hertfordshire in 2000. Mr. Wu is the managing partner of
China Consumer Capital Partners Limited (“CCC") since 2010.
He has over 14 years of experience in international investment
banking and private equity investment. He is familiar with
regulations in China and international capital market and
well-versed in the consumer and retail sectors in China with
strong fund operating experience. As the managing partner
of CCC, Mr. Wu is experienced in formulation of funds,
merger and acquisition, and follow by the execution of his
strategic plans, the corporate value are enhanced. Projects
led by Mr. Wu include Wumart Stores, Dmall, B&Q China,
NP Entertainment, YL Entertainment & Sports, Linekong
Interactive, Womai COFOC, C.banner, Benlai, Mixblu,
Etonkids, etc. Prior to joining CCC, he was a vice president of
Deutsche Bank Hong Kong's Investment Banking Department
from 2006 to 2009 when he was a key member of the
consumer industry group and led IPOs of several well-known
consumer goods companies.

Mr. Wu was a non-executive director of C.banner International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1028), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Feng Hai, aged 44, was appointed as an executive
Director in October 2020. Mr. Feng holds a Master degree in
Management Science from Fudan University and was awarded
both Bachelor degree of Law and Bachelor of management
degree from Nankai University in China. Mr. Feng has over 15
years of experience in private equity and investment banking
in China.

Mr. Feng currently serves as deputy general manager of
Shanghai Orient Securities Capital Investment Co., Ltd.
("Orient Securities Capital”). Mr. Feng started his career
in Shanghai office of Sinochem Corporation, and has
subsequently served at Orient Securities Capital, Morgan
Stanley Huaxin Securities Co., Ltd. and Citi Orient Securities
Co., Ltd. as an investment banker. Mr. Feng is a sponsor
representative registered under China Securities Regulatory
Commission (“CSRC") and Securities Association of China
("SAC"). Mr. Feng was appointed as an executive Director
and the chairman of the Company from 11 November 2016
to 24 April 2019.
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Mr. Wei Bin, aged 53, was appointed as an executive
Director and an authorised representative of the Company in
October 2020. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Wei has become a non-practicing member
of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since 1993, a Senior Auditor granted by the National Audit
Office of the People’s Republic of China since 2003 and a
Senior Accountant granted by the Beijing Municipal Bureau
of Personnel since 2003. Mr. Wei obtained his bachelor’s
degree in Auditing from Zhongnan University of Finance and
Economics in 1992, and his master’s degree in Finance from
Jinan University in 2001.

Mr. Wei currently serves as senior partner of asset
management of CDH Investments Management (Hong Kong)
Limited (“CDH") (Stock code: 0196). He has over 25 years’
operation and management experience in the finance and
accounting sector in Hong Kong and mainland China as well
as in complex transaction, mergers and acquisitions and
business development. He spearheaded several private equity
investment projects since join CDH.

Mr. Wei is currently an independent non-executive director of
Honghua Group Limited (stock code: 0196), a non-executive
director of Hao Tian International Construction Investment
Group Limited (stock code: 1341), an independent non-
executive director of Sinoheath Holding Ltd. (Stock code: 2361)
all of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and an independent director of Huize Holding Limited (NASDAQ
stock code: HUIZ).

Mr. Wei was the chief accountant and the chief financial
officer of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited
("CRH"). Mr. Wei held various senior management roles
within CRH and its affiliates (collectively “China Resources
Group”). He was the director of finance, chief accountant and
chief financial officer of China Resources Group from 2001
to 2017. He led several industrial restructuring and capital
operation projects.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. Jiao Shuge (£ & B), alias Jiao Zhen (£ &), aged 57,
was appointed as non-executive Director and the Chairman
of the Company in March 2021. Mr. Jiao received a Master
degree in Engineering from the No. 2 Research Institute of
Ministry of Aeronautics and Astronautics (fit 25 fin X T % 36
% — Hf 3t BT) and a Bachelor degree in Mathematics from
Shandong University (11l 3 K &)

Mr. Jiao is currently a director and chief executive officer
of CDH China Management Company Limited. Mr. Jiao has
a broad range of experience serving as director of various
listed companies. Mr. Jiao is a non-executive director
from February 2004 to April 2012 and as an independent
non-executive director from April 2012 to December 2021 of
China Mengniu Dairy Company Limited (stock code: 2319.
HK), a non-executive director from April 2006 and as the
deputy chairman from November 2016 to August 2018 of
WH Group Limited (stock code: 0288.HK), the chairman and
a non-executive director of Mabpharm Limited (stock code:
2181.HK) since July 2018, and an independent non-executive
of China Southern Airlines Company Limited (stock code:
1055.HK) from June 2015 to April 2021, all of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Jiao
also serves as a director of Henan Shuanghui Investment &
Development Co., Ltd. (N EEKREZE R D ER 2 7))
(stock code: 000895.57) from August 2012 to August 2021, a
director of Hainan Poly Pharm Co. Ltd. (/& F & F| #l 25 i% 15
AR A F]) (stock code: 300630.5Z) since June 2015 and was
a director of Joyoung Company Limited (J1LF% I 5 & R 2 7))
(stock code: 002242.57) from September 2007 to April 2020,
all of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr.
Jiao is also the chairman and an executive director of Ningbo
Akin Electronic Technology Co., Ltd (£ )X T2 88 & 7 &l &
% 7 B BR 2 &) since March 2016, a company listed on the
National Equities Exchange and Quotations. He served as the
vice general manager of the direct investment department of
China International Capital Corporation Ltd. (/1 R & R
B PR A &) from December 1995 to August 2002.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan, aged 39, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in May 2017. Mr. Tso
graduated from University of Cambridge with a Bachelor and
a Master degree in Land Economy, majoring in real estate
finance and property law. Mr. Tso is the founder of the China
Mini Storage Limited (“CMS"). Prior to establishing CMS,
based in Beijing, Mr. Tso worked as an investment director
of the Everbright Ashmore China Real Estate Fund, a joint
venture real estate private equity platform sponsored by China
Everbright Limited (stock code: 0165), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and Ashmore Group
PLC (LSE stock code: ASHM). Previously, based in Hong Kong,
Mr. Tso also worked at Merrill Lynch’s Global Commercial
Real Estate team where he was principally involved in the
firm’s principal investing activities in Asian real estate. He
also worked at the HSBC's Global Capital Markets — ABS &
Structured Bonds Team where he was principally involved in
the bank’s securitisation business. As for community services,
Mr. Tso has been invited to become the 11th session member
of the China People’s Political Consultative Conference
Beijing Haidian District, the 10th, 11th and 12th session
member of the Beijing Youth Federation, the 3rd and 4th
session member of the Beijing Overseas Friendship Association
Youth Committee, the 8th session council member of the
Beijing Haidian District Overseas Friendship Association, the
Innovation Committee Vice Chairman and a council member
of the HK Professionals (Beijing) Association, an executive
member of the Hong Kong Internet Professional Association
(iProA) and the board member of the Self-Storage Association
("SSAA").

Mr. Tso is was an independent non-executive director of Da
Sen Holdings Group Limited (stock code: 1580), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, and Shi Shi
Services Limited (Formerly known as Hang Sheng Holdings
Limited and Kong Shum Union Property Management
(Holding) Limited) (stock code: 8181), a company listed on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Li Xindan, aged 56, was appointed an independent
non-executive Director in December 2020. Mr. Li holds a
PhD in Finance, Professor, Doctoral Supervisor, and Special
Allowance Expert of the State Council. He was a professor
of School of Economics and Management of Southeast
University and Dean of the School of Engineering and
Management of Nanjing University. He is currently the Dean
of the New Finance Research Institute of Nanjing University,
the Deputy Director of the Humanities and Social Sciences
Academic Committee of Nanjing University, the Director
of the Academic Committee of the School of Engineering
Management and the Director of the Financial Engineering
Research Centre of Nanjing University. Mr. Li is also the
Director of the Expert Committee of Evaluation of Science
and Technology Innovation Board System, a member of SSE
Index Committee, Standing Director of the China Finance
Academy, the chairman of Jiangsu Capital Market Research
Association.

Mr. Li is currently served as an independent non-executive
director of Bank of Jiangsu Co., Ltd (stock code: 600919.
SH) and Nanjing Securities Co. Ltd. (stock code: 601990.SH),
both companies are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
Mr. Li was an independent non-executive director of
C.banner International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1028),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
an independent non-executive director of Yoozoo Games
Co., Ltd (stock code: 002174.5Z) a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and an independent non-executive
director of Holly Futures Co., Ltd. (stock code: 3678) a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Dr. Lo Wing Yan William, aged 61, was appointed an
independent non-executive Director in July 2021. Dr. Lo is
an experienced executive in the TMT (technology, media
and telecommunications) and the consumer sectors. He has
held senior positions in the past in China Unicom, Hongkong
Telecom, Citibank HK, I.T Limited and South China Media
Group. Dr. Lo graduated from Cambridge University with
a M.Phil. Degree in Pharmacology and a Ph.D. degree in
Molecular Neuroscience in the 80’s. He started his career in
McKinsey & Company Inc. as a management consultant.

Dr. Lo currently serves as an independent non-executive
director of a number of public companies listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”), including Dr. Lo is an independent non-executive
director of Television Broadcasts Ltd (Stock code: 511),
CSI Properties Limited (Stock code: 497), Jingrui Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 1862), South Shore Holdings Limited
(Stock code: 577) and Oshidori International Holdings Limited
(Stock code: 622). Dr. Lo is also an independent director of
Regencell Bioscience Holdings Limited (Stock code: RGC)
which is listed on the NASDAQ.

Dr. Lo also served as an independent non-executive director
for following companies, including SITC Int'l Holding
Company Limited (Stock code: 1308) from September 2010
to October 2020, Brightoil Petroleum (Holdings) Limited
(Stock code: 0933) from June 2019 to December 2020, Hsin
Chong Group Holdings Ltd (Stock code: 0404) from June
2018 to September 2019, Ronshine China Holdings Limited
(Stock code: 3301) from January 2016 to June 2019, South
Shore Holdings Limited (Stock code: 577) from June 2019 to
November 2022. Dr. Lo was the chairman in SMI Holdings
Group Limited (Stock code: 0198) from January 2019 to
April 2019. Dr. Lo was also an independent non-executive
director of Nam Tai Property Inc. (Stock code: BTP) from July
2003 to November 2021, which is listed on the New York
Stock Exchange. Dr. Lo is also the founding governor of
the Charles K. Kao Foundation for Alzheimer’s disease and
the ISF Academy as well as the present chairman of Junior
Achievement HK.
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Mr. Chong Ka Yee, aged 39,was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in March 2023. Mr.
Chong is graduated from The University of Melbourne in
Australia with a Bachelor degree in Commerce in 2004 and
he is currently a member of CPA Australia and a CFA Charter
Holder. He has been in the investment banking industry for
more than 15 years. Mr. Chong has extensive experience in
the area in financial management, capital markets, corporate
finance and corporate management through working in listed
companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. Chong was the chief executive officer of CSFG
International Securities Limited, a subsidiary of China
Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group (the shares of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 412)) and he was
the group executive vice president of Mason Group Holdings
Limited (the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 273)) and the chief executive officer of Mason
Securities Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mason
Group Holdings Limited. Mr. Chong was also the senior vice
president of leveraged and acquisition finance department
of Haitong International Securities Company Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Haitong International Securities
Group Limited (the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 665)). Mr. Chong was a non-executive
director of companies listed on Stock Exchange including
Million Stars Holding Limited (Stock code: 8093) and Pak Tak
International Limited (Stock code: 2668).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Toi Kin, was appointed as the Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company in
October 2020 and October 2022 respectively. Mr. Chan is a
Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) and a fellow member of
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Chan
holds a Bachelor degree of Business Administration with a
major in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Baptist University.
Mr. Chan has over 20 years of experience in accounting
and finance and specialised in corporate development and
management, fund setups and finance leasing etc. in recent
years. He has broad and deep knowledge in finance including
on-shore and off-shore corporate structure, investment and
risk control.

Mr. Chan was a managing director of GLY Capital
Management Limited, a subsidiary of Zhejiang Geely Group.
He was a director and the chief financial officer of China
Resources Capital Management Limited and the finance
director of China Resources Capital Holdings Company
Limited.

Mr Lui Kwok Wai was appointed as the Vice President
and the Head of company secretarial department of the
Company in November 2020 and May 2021 respectively.
He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company
and the Managing Director and Responsible Officers of OCI
Asset Management Company Limited, an indirectly wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company. He manages SFC Type 1,
Type 4 and Type 9 regulated activities and also acts as the
Managers-in-Charge directing and overseeing the Overall
Management Oversight and Key Business Line functions. Mr.
Lui is focusing on company management, fund investment &
capital market area, and business development.

Mr. Lui obtained a bachelor’s degree of Science in
Engineering (Environmental Engineering) from the University
of California, San Diego in 2013.
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Mr. Lui has extensive experience in capital market and
corporate finance. He served as the Senior Vice President
of the leverage & acquisition finance division of Mason
Securities Limited from October 2016 to July 2020. Mr. Lui
was responsible for margin finance, general offer finance,
merge & acquisition projects, asset management, advising on
securities trading and funds investment, as well as issuance of
investment research report.

Mr. Lui also served as non-executive director of China
International Development Corporation Limited (stock code:
264) from February 2017 to March 2018, which is listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chu Kin Ming was appointed as the Company Secretary,
the Authorised Representative and the Process Agent of the
Company in May 2021. Mr. Chu is a fellow member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He is also
a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. Mr. Chu holds a master degree in Executive
Master of Business Administration in the Chinese University
of Hong Kong and a bachelor’s degree in accountancy from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and he has extensive
experiences in the field of auditing, accounting, financial
management and company secretarial matters.
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OClI International Holdings Limited (the “Company”, “We"
and “Our”, and together with its subsidiaries the “Group”)
hereby presents this environmental, social and governance
("ESG") report (the "ESG Report”) for the year ended 31
December 2022 (“Year 2022").The ESG Report summarizes
our initiatives, strategies and objectives relating to ESG issues,
describes our vision and commitment to the fulfilment of our
corporate social responsibilities, and provides an over view on
the Group's performance, management policies, mechanisms
and measures in relation to the environmental and social
related matters.

OBJECTIVES

To comply with the requirements set forth in Appendix 27
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
(the "ESG Guide") of the Main Board Listing Rules issued
by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “HKEx"),
disclosures relating to the material ESG issues identified have
been included in this ESG Report pursuant to the Mandatory
Disclosure Requirements and “Comply or explain” Provisions,
include General Disclosure requirements and key performance
indicators (“KPIs”) of the ESG Guide. Our board of directors
of the Company (the “Board”) considers that the Group has
complied with the requirements and provisions set out in the
ESG Guide.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES
We applied the following principles in the preparation of this
report:

Materiality

We engage with our stakeholders to identify and assess ESG
issues that matter most from their perspectives. We assess the
materiality of these ESG issues based on the corresponding
risks posed on the sustainability on the Group's business.

Quantitative

Where applicable, we provided information on the standards,
methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation tools, and
source of conversion factors used, for the reporting of
emissions/energy consumption disclosed in the respective
sections in this report.
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Balance

We avoided intentional selections, omissions, or presentation
formats that might inappropriately influence a decision or
judgment to provide an unbiased picture of our performance.

Consistency
We applied consistent methodologies to allow for meaningful
comparisons of ESG data over time.

REPORTING SCOPE

During Year 2022, the Group was principally engaged in
asset management, provision of investment and financial
advisory services, securities trading and investments, trading
of wines and other beverages. The ESG Report discloses the
Group's performance on environmental and social aspects of
the entire Group’s businesses.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Board Statement

We recognise our corporate social responsibility (“CSR")
to society and the importance of ESG to the corporate
sustainable development. Consequently, we integrate ESG
concepts into our corporate culture and daily operations
where practicable whilst balancing the cost of such
integration against tangible returns. Our Board oversees ESG
issues, practices and assume the overall responsibilities. ESG
issues are identified and evaluated for material risks posed
to the Group. Once identified, the Board will set up the ESG
management measures and approach to react and mitigate
the risks from these material ESG-related issues.

Undoubtedly, there will be challenges in the ever-changing
business landscape, yet we are determined to do our part in
the ESG journey to bring a positive impact to the community.
We are committed to maintaining and upholding a high
standard of governance over our ESG journey, with a view to
safeguarding the interests of our shareholders, customers,
employees and other stakeholders.
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APPROACH AND STRATEGY

ESG forms a crucial part of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company, the Board is responsible for
overseeing our ESG strategy and reporting, and overseeing
the management in the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems to address the ESG-related issues. The ESG related
responsibilities have been further delegated from the Board
to the management and the functional department. Through
the adoption of the top-down management approach,
the Group will be committed to promoting ecological and
environmental protection, thus proving the effectiveness of
our ESG management approach.

We established following teams led by Board of Directors to
determine and manage ESG issues, their responsibilities are
shown as follows:

Board of Directors (the “Board”)
J Has overall responsibility for overseeing and approving
the Group’s ESG policies, strategies and reporting;

] Adopts top-down management approach in managing
ESG issues;

o Delegates the ESG-related responsibilities to the Audit
Committee and Senior Management;

o Sets up ESG management approach and strategy;

J Ensures appropriate ESG-related goals and targets has
been set up;

J Conducts continuous review of ESG performance and
the progress on achievement of ESG-related goals and
targets;

o Reviews and approves ESG report;
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Audit Committee

Identifies, evaluates and determines ESG related risks
through risk-assessment;

Ensures appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems related to ESG matters;

Reports to the Board on ESG related matters and issues
identified,;

Senior Management

Designs, implements and monitors the risk management
and internal control systems related to ESG matters;

Ensures compliance with legal requirements related to
ESG matters;

Develops and supervises the implementation of ESG
policies and measures;

Sets up and reviews the achievement of ESG-related
goals and targets as well as objectives;

Monitors the progress and performance of ESG
initiatives;
Identifies key stakeholders and prioritizes their ESG

Concerns;

Reports to the Board on ESG work (including the
progress of ESG-related goals and targets);

Prepares and submits the ESG report to the Board for
approval,

Departments and Business Units

Implement the ESG objectives, policies and measures;

Report to the management on ESG work and assists

them for preparing ESG report;

Collect feedback and ESG concerns from stakeholders;
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In order to implement the Group’s sustainable development
philosophy, our strategy is to comply with all relevant laws
and regulations applicable to our scope of business and to
continuously improve our environmental management of
every aspect towards the industry best practice. We also pay
close attention to stakeholders’ demands and established a
diversified communication channel to collect and response
to their concerns. Through the well-defined governance
structure and communication channels, we could identify and
prioritize key ESG related-issues that are closely related to
our business during the materiality assessment process and
to ensure that the ESG strategy is closely aligned with the
Group’s overall business strategy.

STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

The Group recognises the expectation and feedback from
our stakeholders are vital for sustainable development of
the Group. During Year 2022, the Group has identified
key stakeholders that are important to the business. Key
stakeholders include shareholders and investors, government
and supervisory institutions, customers, suppliers, employees
and communities. The Group continued to understand
the key ESG concerns of our key stakeholders through
various communication channels and platforms, such as
communication meetings and corporate website etc., to
promote and adjust the strategy of sustainable development.
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The following table shows the management communication TXRHIEEBHENEHERB IEFTEN
and response to the stakeholders’ expectation and concerns: & B % e fE

Management Communication

Stakeholders Expectations and Concerns and response
FHE HERBIEE EEEBEREE
Internal key stakeholders
ABEERFHE
Employees > Labour rights > Regular management
> Career development communications and performance
> Remunerations and benefits review
> Occupational health and safety > Employee communication meetings
> Respecting all employees and > Employee activity, trainings and
ensuring fair treatment voluntary activities
> Email
> Supporting career growth and
providing internal training
> Pay attention to occupational health
and safety
> Establish a fair, reasonable and
competitive remuneration scheme
== > BT HEm > FTHHEEEBEEBEEMTH
> BEER > BEERREE
> 158 M & A > EBEET B REREH
> BERRERLZR > B
> EEMARE HMRAFTHE > XHEEBEXZE RHANEE
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> TERBXREART R
> BUYAT ABMABES 1N
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Stakeholders
HHE

Expectations and Concerns
HERBEIER

2022 Annual Report

Management Communication
and response
EEEBRBERDE

External key stakeholders
HNBEEEHDE

Government/ Regulatory
Authorities

B BB

Shareholders/Investors

BRMREE

Customers

Yy v

YYVYYVYYVYYVYY Y

\J

Y

Compliance with laws and
regulations

Support local economic growth
Fulfill tax obligation

BFIRRNMAR
XEH T REE K
BITHBEE

Return on investment
Corporate governance
Compliant operation
Information transparency
& @ #H

AAElER

BREE

BHRERE

Outstanding products and services
Identifying clients’ needs and
improving product and service
quality

Respecting clients’ privacy and
protecting their interests
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vy
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YV VYVY

YYVYVYVYYVYYYVYYVYY

Regulate compliance with local laws
and regulations

Regular information reporting

Pay tax on time, and in return
contributing to the society

EEBTEMARIEARNEBR

EHEHRBS
BRESHIADEL S

Annual general meeting and other
general meetings

Annual and interim report
Announcements and circulars
BMERBFRGRAMBRRASR
FELTHRS

N E KR K

Customer satisfaction surveys and
feedback form

Customer service hotline and email
Company website

Phone

Mailbox

Social media platforms
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Management Communication
and response

FHE HEREEIEE EEEBBEREE
Suppliers > Stable demand > Supplier meeting and events
> Good relationship with the > Establish and maintain strong and long-
Company term relationship with suppliers
> Corporate reputation > Engagement and cooperation
> Fair Competition/Equal rivalry > Select suppliers with due care
HER > FRIEBE > HERERENED
> BRRRFER AR > BHEBREYILARBEEZERY
> PEEFEZE B 8 &
> REBRFETERF > 2HERAE
> RAEmEMHERD
Community > Environmental protection > ESG reports
> Community contribution > Announcements
> Economic development > Company website
> Raising awareness of environmental
protection and helping the needy,
nurturing virtue and values
it @ > RIBRE > RE A8 LERRS
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENTS

Materiality assessment was conducted in accordance with the
expectation and feedback from the key stakeholders. Based
on our assessment, the management of the Group prioritises
occupational health and safety, supply chain management,
service quality and safety, anti-corruption and climate change
as material aspects of our long-term sustainability. Effective
internal control systems on these aspects are reinforced with
the aim of enhancing efficiency of operations and generating
the environmental and social benefits to our stakeholders.

We use the following process to evaluate, prioritise and
manage material ESG-related issues:

Step 1: identify the ESG-related issues

J The issues are identified based on the disclosure
requirements of the ESG Reporting Guides in Appendix
27 to the Listing Rules, the business characteristics of
the Group and the ESG report of the industry peers

Step 2: prioritise the ESG-related issues

] The management collects feedback from the
stakeholders in daily operation

o The management takes into account the materiality to
stakeholders and materiality to business in prioritising
the issues

Step 3: determine material ESG-related issues

J The issues with higher priority were identified as
material issues
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The Key five material ESG-related issues are shown as follows: A AKHEIRE -HEREREBENERZEAD

ESG Issues
BRE HEREREE

Nk

Reasons of why they are material

ELBREBREAZENRRE

1. Occupational health and
safety
1. BERELERZZE

2. Supply chain
management

2. HEHER

3. Service quality and
safety

3. BRBERRERZ=E

4. Anti-corruption
4. RERHR

5. Climate change
5 R 21

Fewer employees missing work from illness or injury can improve efficiency and
productivity of our Company.

BMARKBIAZEMRYONBEATIARSARBANREMEER -

It is an essential part of the success of our wines trading business. This enables
Company to ensure product quality, increase competitiveness and creates value
for customers.

ERMABEESESXRBRYNERZAXNLD - EEARAERERE
l:u:ll:u:l,é: RaFhitARFPAIEEE-

Customer service and product safety are our important concern. We expect that
improving customer satisfaction and product safety management can improve the
market image of the Company.
EFRERERZERBMBAINEZZE -RMEH ReEFPWER
REGRZEEBKFEARARAANTISER -

Failure to monitor, identify and prevent of money laundering will have negative
impact on society and also affect Company reputation.

AEEZE BAIEHLEAEKEHEELARATE X ELARANE
£,

Climate change will increase the chance of extreme weather which will affect
Company operations.

REELCEENEFRAOREY EEYEARANHEL -
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Importance to Stakeholders

HENENEEHY

Medium

Low

FfEE

Anti-corruption and
Anti-fraud

Remunerations and
benefits
RES R

B iR

Community
contribution

fHEE R

Waste
management

Prevention child
and forced labour
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Low
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Materiality matrix

ERMER

Customers satisfaction
Customers privacy
protection

Employee training and
development
BEFEmEE
RIEZFILE

BTHEIIRER

Use of resources

Suppliers
management

Occupational health
and workplace safety

BIRE A
HEmEE

A RRET ST S

Attention to community

[aha

Medium

R REE

Importance to the Group

HEBNEEY
< Employee
8T

C000 <06 GO
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Economic performance
Compliance with laws and
regulations

Product responsibility
Employee right

Qualifications and professional
conduct

BRI
B TERROER
Emad
EEREm
BERERET

Emission
Energy consumption and
efficiency

235,67
BURERE R R

Environmental
awareness of employees
BTRRER

Impact of climate change
FRB (TS

L
Q
=y

ik

€  Operation
HiE



2022 3R

REBEBZERERAT

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

OUR GOAL AND PROGRESS REVIEW

While developing its business, the Group is committed to
improving its business operation management. The Group
also set environmental and social goals for the sustainability
of the Group's business and our goals are shown as follows:

J While promoting the steady growth of our business, the
Group regards social and environmental responsibility as
one of the core values in its business operations;

J Key environmental concern of the Group is the
consumption of energy and corresponding greenhouse
gas emissions during the provision of securities trading
and investments, asset management, investment and
financial advisory and trading of wines services;

o The goal/target of the Group related to environmental
issues is to maintain stable energy efficiency;

J Key social concern of the Group is safety and well-being
of employees as they are the foundation of business
growth;

e The goal/target of the Group related to social issues is to
maintain safe working environment and maintain close
relationship with employees:

Our teams regularly update the Board on the achievement
of KPI goals which include the environmental and the social
goals. The management evaluates the ESG performance
through regular reports provided by each department or
business units and reports the evaluation results to the Board.
The Board reviews the achievement of objectives and reviews
the progress and effectiveness of the related governance
matters. Meanwhile, our Board continues to monitor the risks
posed to the Group from these material ESG issues. As the
business continues to develop, the Board has been paying
attention to new ESG-related issues and will continue to
oversee ESG-related work to keep abreast of the latest ESG
disclosure requirements of the Stock Exchange.
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The Group is committed to undertake ESG responsibilities and
improving our ESG performance by upholding good corporate
governance standards, implementing environmentally friendly
measures, responding to stakeholders’ expectation with
practical actions and promoting the sustainable development
of the Company.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL

A1 Emissions

Despite that the Group’s operation does not have any mass
emissions or significant impact to the environment, the
Group is committed to minimise our environmental impacts
by responsibly managing our business, reducing our carbon
footprint and using resources effectively. Hence the Group
has established relevant emissions reduction and energy
saving initiatives to manage the emissions and maintain green
operations.

Our Group compliance with the following significant rules
and regulations in relation to environmental protection:

° Air Pollution Control Ordinance (cap 311)

J Environmental Protection law of the People’s Republic
of China* (Chairman’s Decree No. 9: 2015.01.01
Implementation Edition)

J Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control law of the
People’s Republic of China* (Chairman’s Decree no. 31:
2016.01.01 Implementation Edition)

Air emissions
The Group did not own any vehicles, and hence insignificant
amount of or no air pollutants were generated in Year 2022.

AEBENAERR HEekEREME X
BREEFTRINEXELREE FERRRE
B AEBERATHNTHOESNDENRHENA
RRERADABAFEER LmHHEHMY
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Greenhouse gases emissions

During Year 2022, the Group generates greenhouse gas
emissions are mainly generated from purchased electricity and
business air travel by our employees. Our goal is to promote a
culture of energy saving and to gradually reduce greenhouse
gas emissions.

The COVID-19 pandemic restrictive measures remained to
be implemented through 2022 in mainland China, such as
lockdown and working from home, so electricity consumption
of PRC office and the demand for business trip via air travel
continued to fall. The Hong Kong office has moved to a
larger place which leaded to more electricity consumption in
the office. Therefore, the carbon dioxide emission increased
accordingly. The operation of the Group does not have
material impacts on the environment and natural resources.

A summary on the relevant emissions related KPIs of the

BRI -HEKEBHRS

BEREHH

R-B-__FEFE AEEELANRERE
TJFEKEEXQE%E%ﬁ&E,\ﬁQEﬂ&%ﬁ%
BB EERESEXL BHXRIBRE
RABBEI -

FER - - —FNEBEEHMCOVID-19% 15

MR I #& i Wmﬁﬁﬁﬁilﬁ & it B
WAENENHEHBENRKRLRELE =T K
%TM EERLZERBETE KM

BHRLENAEEE M- Bt — R
T3F5&2$Hri'ﬂﬂ°zl§’iE’JME%%%&E
RERUBERBEATE -

TECCEEEAKRENBINEERREX

Group for Year 2022 (with 2021 comparative data) is EEHME(ER T - —FERHEF)HREN
disclosed as follows: I
2022 2021
. Bt T —%F
Types of Emissions BE BB B
Carbon Dioxide (CO,) (produced by ~ =&t %% (CO,) (M {& & & 4 416 kg 597 kg
business air travel by employees) M = E A4 4162 T 597 R~ fr
Carbon Dioxide (CO,) (produced by ~ =& 1t (CO,) (A E 11 & %) 15,632 kg 13,586 kg
electricity) 15,632 2 fr 13,586 A fT
Total Carbon Dioxide (CO,) emissions & # 42 )R JH #& 2 = &1L iz (CO,) 16,048 kg 14,183 kg
from indirect power consumption BWHE = 16,048 2 T 14,183~ fT

(S EME L)
o, B M B

Intensity (per unit of employment)
CO, Emissions

486 kg/capita
4862/ BT

567 kg/capita
S67_RT/ET
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CO, emission (in kg) CO,BEE (A FT)

B Carbon Dioxide (CO,) produced by electricity (kg)
—&{LH (CO,) (MBAEE)

Carbon Dioxide (CO,) produced by business air travel by employees (kg)

—&fkfx (CO,)

18,000
16,000
14,000
12,000
10,000
8,000
6,000
4,000

2,000 597

Year 2021
T —FFE

During Year 2022, our overall carbon dioxide emissions had
increased mainly contributed by the electricity consumption
of Hong Kong office because the office moved to a larger
area. But the carbon dioxide emission from business air travel
decreased, which is attributed to the following measures:

e The promotion of choosing transport that produce less
carbon emissions.

J The successful adoption of telecommuting provides
flexibility and reduce the frequency of business trips.

Our Group sets up emissions targets based on previous year's
actual emissions and monitors targets monthly thought
electricity consumption stated in electricity bills which
contribute to most of the carbon dioxide emissions.

The Group endeavors to improve energy efficiency and reduce
energy consumption by adopting energy saving initiatives in
the Section “Use of resources” in this Report.

(HEBRAERBEZES)
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Year 2022
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Waste management

The Group's operations do not produce any hazardous waste.
The non-hazardous wastes generated by the Group were
mainly papers and solid wastes generated in our office and
warehouse during our operation, which were insignificant
and had little impact on the environment. Principles of
reducing, reuse, and recycle are applied in minimising waste
generation.

A2 Use of resources

Our Group is committed to conserving resources in our
business activities,
paper during our operation. Our goal is to stable the
energy and paper consumption level. We aim to reduce
the use of resources and corresponding carbon footprint
through adoption of various green initiatives and green
awareness is also promoted among employees in order to
drive their behavioral changes. For example, green measures
on deploying energy efficient equipment and adoption of
resource conserving process are implemented in pursuing our

including use of energy, water and

commitment. Environmental protection measures have been
adopted in the office area, including printing paper on both
sides and reusing papers printed on one side, switching off
lights and air-conditioning for rooms and computers not in
use and setting room temperature at 25.5°C.

The Group's existing businesses are not expected to pose a
significant use of water or packaging materials and hence
has no material impact on the environment. The Group will
promote water conservation to its employees.

BRI -HEKEBHRS

BEEYERE
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A summary on the relevant use of resources related KPIsof Z—ZE - —FFEAEE M E RE A HEHE
the Group for Year 2022 (with 2021 comparative data) is BREEHRZ(ER T —FLEHET)E
disclosed as follows: 2R (N
2022 2021
=== T —%F
Use of resources EREH
Electricity consumption BB 22,274 kWh 19,649 kWh
22,274 F B 19,649 T I
Paper consumption #oR H R 243 kg 632 kg
243D Fr 6322 T
Intensity (per unit of employment) % E (% 1 {8 % 1)
Electricity consumption BB 675 kWh/capita 786 kWh/capita
675FT R 8T 786 TR BT
Paper consumption 4 oK H R 7 kg/capita 25 kg/capita
I2F/8T 25AF /BT
Electricity & Paper # &
m Electricity (kWh) m Paper (kg)
B (FRE) ok (BT)

25,000 22,274 800 632

20,000 VS8 600

15,000

400 243
10,000 200 -
5,000 _
Year 2021 Year 2022 Year 2021 Year 2022
T FFE T _FFE “TFFE T _FFE

A3 The environment and natural resources ANBRERRXAER

Due to the nature of the business, the Group does not have ¥R HEEFERA AEBTEREKBREF
any direct and significant impacts on the environment and ¥IRBERXAEREXKTNEEREATE -
natural resources in the course of our operations.

Our Group aimed at monitoring possible environmental ANEBRHERBKMPEKLLCLLKREHLAD
impacts of our business operations and investment portfolio, EERRFE TR HIHTHEEUAEH AR
and to implement measures to control the adverse impacts, ¥ £ SEAKRMNFTHELREBLEHE
in order to generate long-term values to our stakeholders as K EJ{B & -

well as the whole community.
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In order to implement the policy, various sources of pollution,
including land, water, noise and air are monitored by our
management and environmentally friendly entities would be
considered as priority when building investment portfolios.
If necessary, environmental impact assessment is performed
in order to assess the environmental risk of the business
activities. Necessary measures are taken to control the risk
and comply with national/local laws and regulations.

A4 Climate change

The Group understands that climate change is a global issue
that affects everyone around the world. We are aware of the
impacts of climate change on the sustainable development
of our business operations and costs for wine delivery and
storage.

We carry out risk analysis to determine the negative impacts
of climate change on our operations, and the likelihood that
such impacts would occur. We set parameters and collect
information to identify significant climate-related issues and
mitigate their impacts.

According to the Code of Practice in Times of Typhoons an
Rainstorm Warnings and the Safety Guide for Working in
Inclement and Hot Weather published and revised by the
Labour Department, we have established with employees
the reasonable and practicable work arrangements under
tropical cyclone warnings, rainstorm warnings or extreme
conditions following super typhoons as well as other severe
weather, including getting to work, leaving work, returning
to work and working from home (if applicable). The company
has consulted employees and involved them in the process
of formulation of work arrangements and contingency
measures.

The work arrangements under severe weather will be
reviewed regularly and updated or revised appropriately
based on experience and the needs and actual conditions of
both employers and employees.

BRI -HEKEBHRS
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B. SOCIAL

B1 Employment

Employees are the most valuable assets of our Group, we
strive to attract and retain talents and reconcile economical
imperatives with well-beings, aiming at reinforcing
satisfaction, loyalty and commitment of human capital. We
aim to provide employees with a comfortable and healthy
working environment and ensure that their rights and
interests are protected. In order to enhance our governance in
human resources management, our Directors directly involved
in governing the recruitment, resignation, termination,
training, promotion, working hours, rest periods, discipline,
other benefits and welfare, in accordance with the relevant
laws and regulations. We also established a sound system of
human resources management covering various aspects of
employment.

During our recruitment process, employees have been hired
based on consideration of their experience, qualifications
and knowledge. All employees have entered into written
employment contracts prior to employment to ensure job
title, job duties, working hours, holidays, remuneration,
termination process and benefit are agreed.

The salary and benefit levels of the Group’s employees
are reviewed and adjusted annually based on the results
of performance evaluation. Our Group established a
compensation practice taking into account the overall
economic outlook, relevant external compensation levels
as well as the requirement of internal fairness. A wide
range of benefits including gift voucher or cash coupon for
celebrating Chinese traditional festival, annual health service,
comprehensive medical and retirement schemes are also
provided to employees. In response to the COVID-19 epidemic
situation, the Group strictly abides by the government’s
social distancing measures and various epidemic prevention
measures in Year 2022.

The Group guarantees employees the right to rest and
vacation according to law. Employees enjoy legal holidays and
legal leave, marriage leave, compassionate leave, paid annual
leave and other leave entitlements.

B.1 &

B1{E B B &
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We committed that nobody should be treated less favorably
on his/her personal characteristics such as gender, pregnancy,
marital status, disability, family status, and race. Opportunities
for employment, training and career development are equally
opened to all qualified employees.

The Group complied with all the relevant laws and regulation,
including the Employment Ordinance (Cap.57 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance.

A summary on the relevant employee composition related
KPIs of the Group for Year 2022 is disclosed as follows:

BRI -HEKEBHRS

B AR EMASTERMER  Hik- 5
WA RE - REARREERSFEARFE
MEHAFEFBE-EBR BIRFXRER
e LFRETHECERES -

AEBECEBTHARBNEZREZRER B
BAEEPIFSTERBIGO REEHE KM -

AEE T _FFEHEESAXKEENH
REBEEHREREN D

2022 2021
Social KPIs HEBEEARERZR Unit B B —T-—F
Total workforce BEEAY number A 33 g
Total workforce by gender & £ 5l &l 2 #9
EBEHAY
Male B number A 18 10
Female pegl number A 15 15
Total workforce by RERERE SN
employment type EEAH
Full-time £l number A 26 24
Part-Time 0 number A 7 1
Total workforce by REEERNE SN
employee category BEEAH
Senior management SRERE number A 2 8
Mid-level management hRERE number A B 12 3
Entry Level EEANEB number A 19 14
Total workforce by RERMAR S D W
age group BEAY
Below 30 30 A T number A 4 4
30 to 50 30 %50 5% number A& 23 18
Over 50 505% Ak number A 6 3
Total workforce by R EE S
geographical region BEEAH
PRC a3 number A 7 5
HK A number A 26 20
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Employee Composition
By Gender
BRI R SR ERHEBK

18,
55%

15,
45%

B Male Female
B i

Employee Composition
By Employment Type
RERSRISHESHEK

%
21%

26,
79%

B Full time Part time
28 R

Employee Composition
By Geographical Region
RitEHSEESER

79%

B PRC Hong Kong
& 3
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Employee Composition
By Age Groups
BRERANBS0ERHEK

6
) 4’
&7 e 12%

e

Below 30 M 30 to 50 Over 50
30BRA T 30%505% 50B%A £

Employee Composition
By Employee Category
RERGENBSHERER

2,
6%

19,
58%

12,
36%

M Senior Mid-level Entry Level
management management
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A summary on the relevant employee turnover rate related ASEBE T -__—_FFEHESRAXHEEAD

KPIs of the Group for Year 2022 is disclosed as follows: BREVEEHERENOT :
2022 2021
Social KPIs HEBBENIER Unit By —B-_—f Z—F-_—%f
Employee turnover rate EBERKL®E % % 16% 20%
Employee turnover rate mRMER & D8
by gender EBEREAL =X
Male B4 % % 6% 20%
Female Z % % 27% 20%
Employee turnover rate RERMARE D W
by age group BERKAEZE
Below 30 30 AT % % 25% 0%
30 to 50 30 %50 5% % % 9% 22%
Over 50 508% A E % % 33% 33%
Employee turnover rate RGESE D W
by geographical region BERAL=E
PRC A % % 0% 0%
HK a5 % % 19% 25%
Total No. of Employee & Resigned Employee turnover rate by gender
Staff (Number) (Percentage)
EERBBASBEZH(AR) RENESSHEERKLER (ADLL)
40 33 40%
30 30% 27%
20 20%
10 5 10% 6%
0 A 0% AN
m Total No. of Employee m Total No. of Resigned staff m Male Female
EEHE BEER A B 4B St 2zt
Employee turnover rate by age groups Employee turnover rate by
(Percentage) geographical region (Percentage)
RERERESNWEERALE (BDLL) RiESSHEERALR (BOL)
40% 339% 40%
30% 25% 30%
20% 20% 19%
10% St 10%
0% 0% ) I
m Below 30 30 to 50 m Over 50 m PRC Hong Kong

30BRA T 30%505% 50K A = ey BB
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B2 Health and safety

Our Group is committed to provide and maintain a safe,
healthy, and hygienic workplace for all employees, and all
other persons likely to be affected by our operations and
activities.

Complying with the government relevant regulations,
the Group exercised social responsibility to safeguard our
employees against infection and contain the epidemic by
implemented a series of measures:

J Arrange regular COVID-19 testing to employees;
J Body temperature screening on main entrance of office;
J Regular cleaning and disinfection of the workplace;

J Reminded the employees to maintain good personal
hygiene such as the need to wear surgical masks
properly and washing hands frequently in office;

J Requested the employees to declare their health and
recent travelling history;

J Requested the employees who had been travelled
overseas recently to provide negative result of COVID-19
test; and

J Adopted flexible working arrangement to allow
employees to work from home so as to enhance social
distancing.

Health and safety standards are given prime consideration in
our operations and regulatory compliance is strongly upheld.
Employees are committed to deliver safety initiatives in
reducing the potential danger in workplace. Considering the
occupational risk, proper protective equipment and guidance
are provided to the employees.
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Appropriate training, education, and evacuation exercise are
organised regularly. Employees are encouraged to report
unmanaged workplace hazard and to suggest improvement
on workplace safety.

A summary on the relevant number and rate of work-related
fatalities related KPIs of the Group for the past three years is
disclosed as follows:

BRI -HEKEBHRS

BMEHERNEZHIN BHERGHRES
VTBEEEREEAZNIFERREREL
RIERRLE2REER

AEBBE=FEHAIRTCABLEIRT
XHENEREREEHMERENAT

2022 2021 2020
Social KPIs HEERENIEE —ZE-_= - —F ZZZTE_ZFTF
Number of work-related fatalities ITRT AH 0 0 0
Rate of work-related fatalities BAIxTZH 0% 0% 0%
Lost days due to work injury EIGEXIERR 0 0 0

In the past three year, the Group does not encounter any
work-related injury and fatalities.

B3 Development and training

To accomplish the corporate objectives as well as personnel
development of employees, our Group encourages and
supports our employees in continuous personal and
professional training. Training enhances employees’
competencies and potentials in performing their jobs
effectively and efficiently and leads to long-term mutual
success of employees and the Group.

Depending on operational and management requirements,
and skills required, we committed to create an environment
of continuous improvement through providing in-house peer
learning and on-the-job coaching as well as subsidies of
training or education to employees. We also encourage our
staff to attend external training courses and seminars.

In Year 2022, the Group organised pertinent training courses
for employees. In additions, our professional staffs have also
attended SFC Continuous Professional Training and ACCA
Exams for their continuous professional development.

RBE=ZF AKEYEXLEEFANITERX
TERe

B3 & & K iZ 3l
RERTCETERBEENASZSRE ZA5H
ERUYTHEEEIFEAMARZTIESI-
ERTZIIRARERRE RINIT I IEREE
REH REMEAEERAEE ARG -

BIRENERBERUEAFTXE HME
BRAMAESEEREREEARAREEB EH
BB BB BN EERBERITRAED
RE-BPMTAZEE T HFEINFFIRE R
B

RZZE-__FE AEELSEEERIT YN
Foll o SN HPIMBERABES I T SFCH
BEXEIRACCAER AR ERFNFE
BEXBR-
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A summary on the relevant development and training related
KPIs of the Group for Year 2022 is disclosed as follows:

AKEEF—

2022 Annual Report

T CFEFERERMBIEBEO
PRREXRESEHERELT

2022 2021

Social KPIs HEBEBEARESR Unit B —E-C —E_—F
Percentage of employees TIEEB DL

trained % % 30% 56%
Trained percentage Qe -l O

by gender EBEBS K
Male B % % 50% 43%
Female Z % % 50% 57%
Trained percentage REEERNE SN

by employee category FIEREB D
Senior management SRERE % % 10% 29%
Mid-level management AR EE % % 30% 14%
Entry Level EEAE % % 60% 57 %

Total No. of trained & untrained staff

SRR RZNR TR

10,
30%

Trained percentage by gender

RENBSHRIERS S

50%

50%

B Male B

B Total of trained staff
ZHIB T4aEr

Total no. of untrained staff
REFNE TR

Female it
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Trained percentage by employee category

BRERNNBSHRIERE ST

10%

A
60%
30%
| Senior management Mid-level management
DREEE PREEE
Entry level
EEAR
2022 2021
Social KPIs HEBERARER Unit B e —_T_—%
Average training hours BEEETY
per employee ZIRE hours aN s 8 12
Average training hours RMERE DN
by gender F 15 3 3 B B
Male B hours N 6 7
Female gl hours N 12 16
Average training hours REEERE DN
by employee category F 19 3 G B B N
Senior management SREEE hours AN 16 4
Mid-level management PRERE hours aNs 4 7
Entry Level EEAE hours N3 1 18
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Average training hours

by gender
&M B 8l o By (S
15
12
10
6
. il
0
m Male Female
S 4

B4 Labour standards

Our Group prohibits the engagement of any child and forced
labour in any of our operations and services. Children who
are identified by the local labour law should not be employed,
as they reserve the right to pursue education in their
childhood. With the aim to prevent child labour employment,
during the process of recruitment, information of candidate
is verified by checking the identity proof and documents of
candidate. Labour forced by means of physical punishment,
abuse, involuntary servitude, peonage or trafficking is strictly
forbidden. We will also avoid engaging with suppliers and
contractors that are known to employ child or involve forced
labour in their products or services.

The Group implement the following procedures to prevent
child and forced labour:

J Employee opinion boxes have been set up to allow
employees to report child and/or forced labour;

] Human resource department would check the proof of
age for all applicants before confirm their employment;
and

° If child and forced labour is identified, investigation and
remediation actions would be conducted immediately.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
related to recruitment of child labour or forced labour
practices.

M Senior management
SREIRE

Average training hours by

employee category (Number)

RESERE S

A Vi

20 16

10 11
=
0

Mid-level management M Entry Level
PRERE EEAE

B4ass TR %
$EIM¢EEH¥W&%W¢ﬁ%EI&

BREST - HREWBSHEEBRERAE
BEFERKENER ﬁ? BEFEEI -REB2

ERERETL K F%@&* M e Ek
ﬁﬁfﬁ%%%%ﬁ%i#%%%ﬁ%@°

BENES EF FEHESH SRER
IAOBREFTFRBES T - MRS E R
ﬁaﬂ%ﬁiliﬁ&ﬁL F T H) B &

APEBEEREIARB LEE-

AEBHITATERFABLEET REBE T
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B5 Supply chain management

Our Group encourages suppliers to maintain a high standard
on business ethics and conducts, with managing the
environmental and social issues arising from their business
operations. During the reporting period, our major suppliers
of wine products are located in Hong Kong.

During the supplier selection and contract drafting processes,
the following factors are considered in achieving “Green
Procurement” on the Group’s supply chain:

J Use of environmental-friendly resources in provision of
products/services;

o Effort on limiting emission of pollutants;
J Responsible management of environmental impacts;

J Compliance with local environmental and social law and
regulations;

J Historical incidents on bribery, corruption, and money
laundering;

J Existence of discrimination due to ethnicity, gender, age,
disability or marital status on supplier’s recruitment;

J Provision of fair wages and all other legally mandated
benefits;

J Provision of a safe working environment which complies
with local laws or practices;

J Community investment initiatives and effort.

BRI -HEKEBHRS

B5 1 FE 82 & 12

AEEGBHERARS KEREER IR
NEBEBLEMSIMOREREER

B-RERA BRMANIEZREBEEMHE

BMURER-

EHEHERALEESNNBRES  X&E
MIERHERRARBIFEZEEUNTHEE:

s FAEERMER/MBBEARRER:
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For identify environmental and social risks along the supply
chain, we implement the following methods during supplier
selection of supply chain and monitor their performance:

o The Group has developed standard procedures in
selection, evaluation and monitoring suppliers;

J The Group has adopted the principles of openness,
fairness and transparency in supply chain management;

o Factors to be considered when corporation with
new suppliers include economic interests, products/
services quality, products/services safety, as well as
suppliers’ ethics, and suppliers’ compliance with laws
and regulations concerning environmental and social
practices;

J Business licenses, qualification certificates, production
safety permits and other management system
certifications will be collected during the supplier
selection process to ensure that they comply with
relevant social and environmental laws and regulations;

J The Group will give priority to products/services that
could promote sustainability;

o The Group will perform assessment on suppliers on a
risk-basis approach;

J The cooperation with suppliers will terminate if the
environmental and social standards not in line with the
Group'’s policy.

2022 Annual Report

RTHAMEARNEER LSRR B
7E 3% B {4 I 5 ) ¢4 7 75 9 R B 4 LA T 50k
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A summary on the relevant number of suppliers related KPIs
of the Group for Year 2022 is disclosed as follows:

BRI -HEKEBHRS

AEE_FT__SEFEHEBRHERBN
BRRERESEHERELT

2022 2021
Location of suppliers HERN D it E === —EZ—f&
PRC Gy 0 0
HK S 42 16
Other H 11 1
B6 Product responsibility BeEmMERE
Responsible investment policy BEWREHKE

The Group realises the materiality of environmental, social
and governance factors in affecting the performance of
business, as well as the long-term impact on the surrounding
communities. The investment may impact the local
community, for example on living condition of local citizens,
labour treatment, and natural habitats.

Hence, in the process of making investment decisions, factors
of ESG are integrated into our investment analysis and
decision-making process.

As a responsible investor, we strive to incorporate ESG insight
in managing our investment portfolio, in order to control
undesired risk and maximise shareholders’ value in long-term
basis.

Product responsibility policy

Our Group highly values the safety and quality of our
wine products. We developed strong governance structure
in monitoring the quality of wine products, with strict
compliance with the national/local laws and standards.
Only suppliers with high quality products or performance
are selected by our Group. Facilities, warehouse, hygienic
condition, quality control and inspection procedures are
examined on a regular basis. All employees across the value
chain will continuously achieve various quality objectives.

AEBTHEZEEZBERRANRE HLERE
AREMNERN M THENIHEBEKD
REFE - REAREEHHLR flO0HE
WERMNEERGNH SHFEREEREE
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The Group implement the following measures to maintain the
services’ safety:

J Monitor the room temperature and the hygiene level of
warehouse regularly;

o Establish the responsible investment policy;

J Establish the product responsibility policy;

Establish the data privacy policy.

The Group is committed to providing quality products and
services to customers and focuses on customers’ responses
to the products sold by the Group. Customers can offer their
opinions or lodge complaints through existing communication
channels. The Group will conduct investigations and prepare
reports based on the responses and take corrective measures
when necessary.

Data privacy policy

Protecting the security and privacy of stakeholders’ personal
data is important to our Group. We ensure compliance with
the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) and other statutory requirements to meet a
high standard of security and confidentiality of personal data
privacy protection. The following data protection principles
are adopted in preserving proper security and use of data:

J We only collect personal data that are relevant and
required for our businesses;

. We will not share personal data to any entity that is
not a member of our Group without consent unless it is
required by law or it was previously notified;

J We maintain appropriate data collection, storage, and
processing practices and security measures to protect
against unauthorised access to personal information;
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J Computer system is regularly updated and is installed
with firewall and antivirus software to avoid possible
hackers’ activities;

e All employees have signed confidentiality agreement.

The Group implement the following practices relating to
observing and protecting intellectual property rights:

J The Group uses authorised and copyrighted products
only;

J Employees are not allowed to download or install any
forged or copied programs, software or materials;

J The Group’s standard employment contracts contain
provisions on Intellectual property rights and
confidentially.

The Group strictly abides by the laws and regulations on
product health and safety, advertising, labeling, remedies and
protection of intellectual property rights, and also observes
the laws and regulations related to privacy. There was no case
of violation identified during the reporting period.

B7 Anti-corruption

Employees at all levels are expected to behave with integrity,
impartiality and honesty. Our Group does not tolerate
corruption, bribery, extortion, money-laundering and other
fraudulent activities in connection with any of our business
operations that compromise the interest of our shareholders,
investors, customers, and other stakeholders. The Group is
in strict compliance with relevant laws and regulations such
as the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and the Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance (Cap. 615 of the Laws
of Hong Kong).
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Our Group has provided publications, policy and training in
relation to anti-corruption practices to our directors, senior
management personnel and employees annually. The Group
also introduced of corruption policies to new employees.

Our Group has issued relevant whistle-blowing procedures
in setting up a private communication channel on reporting
suspicious fraudulent actions to the Group’s independent
department directly. The conduct of employee is closely
monitored by management in preventing wrong-doings.
Ongoing review of the effectiveness of the internal control
systems is conducted on a regular basis in preventing the
occurrence of corruption activities.

During the reporting period, there were no reports of
non-compliance incidents in relation to corruption.

B8 Community investment

As a responsible company, we aim at serving and
strengthening the wider community, and encouraging
employees and other stakeholders in supporting the
community. Our Group understands well of the importance
for making positive contribution to the community where
it operates, and considers community benefits as one of its
social responsibilities. We care about the well-being of social
community, and would participate in the charity activities
when there are appropriate opportunities. We also encourage
our employee to actively participate in public conventions,
conference, exhibitions and events with a particular focus
on community investment, sponsorships and charitable
contributions.

Selection of supporting charities involves several
considerations. We evaluate the vision and background of
requesting charities in aligning with our Group’s. Charities
engaged in unethical activities, and those in unclear financial
position, and conflict of interest with corporation/individual
will not be considered.

The Group will continue to regularly review the objectives and
direction of community investment and monitor community
investment, sponsorship and donation activities and approval
policies. The Group will review annually whether the Group’s
social performance is in line with the community investment
policies.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE IR -fIE8KEBHRESESI

REPORTING GUIDE

The following table is a summary of the relationship between T XHF|IRHE -2 ERFEIESIEHAE
the ESG guide and the issues found relevant to the Group: EEEETENEEMRE:

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE BY HKEX

ERBXAGHRE HERERHERES

Mandatory Disclosure

Requirements Reporting Guideline Page
R ERE ] & 15 5l BER
Governance Structure A statement from the board containing the following elements: 63

(i)  adisclosure of the board’s oversight of ESG issues;

(i) the board’s ESG management approach and strategy,
including the process used to evaluate, prioritise and
manage material ESG-related issues (including risks to the
issuer’s businesses); and

(iii) how the board reviews progress made against ESG-related
goals and targets with an explanation of how they relate to
the issuer’s businesses

B MEFRHHLOEE EFHATINE 63

() REEFEYERS LEREAFEMEET:

() EERMBE HEREAERHHRER BFEF
e ERHFIREREEHEE LEREAEBEE
(BEHBTAEBOAR HER &

(i) EFEEMAREE HEREAEBEBRTLE &L

EREMUMERTAXZHEERE-
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE BY HKEX

EREBXMAMNER HEREBKREES

Mandatory Disclosure
Requirements Reporting Guideline

Page

0 H W ERE # & 15 5l

BER

Reporting Principles A description of, or an explanation on, the application of the
following Reporting Principles in the preparation of the ESG
report:

Materiality: The ESG report should disclose: (i) the process to
identify and the criteria for the selection of material ESG factors;
(ii) if a stakeholder engagement is conducted, a description of
significant stakeholders identified, and the process and results of
the issuer’s stakeholder engagement.

Quantitative: Information on the standards, methodologies,
assumptions and/or calculation tools used, and source of
conversion factors used, for the reporting of emissions/energy
consumption (where applicable) should be disclosed.
Consistency: The issuer should disclose in the ESG report any
changes to the methods or KPIs used, or any other relevant
factors affecting a meaningful comparison.

62-63
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ERBXEMNRE HERER/BEES

Mandatory Disclosure

#
ARENBE - FERBEESR

=
BREBAAEE HERE
CEREBRA -

Pk BT ARBEETR

/

Requirements Reporting Guideline Page
B ERE ] & 55l =P/
Reporting Boundary A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the ESG report 63
and describing the process used to identify which entities or
operations are included in the ESG report. If there is a change in
the scope, the issuer should explain the difference and reason for
the change.
M 3% & [E MERE HekEiBRENEREE RERKEPLE 63
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EREBMIXFAGHNRE HERER/BEES

COMPLY OR EXPLAIN PROVISIONS

ERED SERBHE

[(TEFHRBER]FX
General disclosure/
KPIs Reporting guideline Page
—-REE
HRERER R & 8 5l BER
A. Environmental
AR
Aspect A1 Emissions
fE E A1 23587
General disclosure Information on: 74
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
— R E EHABRLERERBHEMR RMAKRLHWHHELT FERES 74
BEEMHEESTH
(@) B : &k
by BFHETABEAXZENHBEEZRROIBNER -
KPI A1.1 The types of emission and respective emission data. 74
78 B2 48 AR 1R A P R A K AE B HE R B o 74
KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas 74-76
emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).
752 E W IE IR A2 ER@EEDkE REEEE)RERBHEREAMETE 74-76
MmER)ZE(MASESEN BEKXMETHE) -
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where 77
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
AR IRAL3 FMEXAEEEEDREEUBAE)R(MEREE(WUE 77
EEE BHERMBE)-
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where 77
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
A MIEIRALL FMEAREEEDRAEUBAE) R(MER)TE(WUAE 77
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BERABMIEMNERE HEREBHEES
COMPLY OR EXPLAIN PROVISIONS

[(TEFHRBER]FX
General disclosure/
KPIs Reporting guideline Page
—-REE
BRENER R & 8 5l BER
A. Environmental
A R
KPI A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve 76
them.
752 4B W IRALS RIS MR EERRREINELEEMERBN TR - 76
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are 77
handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.
B AE B IRALE HARBEESENBESTEEYN A it BT a] 2 &9 8 B 77
BEERREINELARAEKIMA LR -
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EREBMIXFAGHNRE HERER/BEES

COMPLY OR EXPLAIN PROVISIONS

BIHE -

[(TEFHRBER]FX
General disclosure/
KPIs Reporting guideline Page
~BBE
HRERER R & 8 5l BER

A. Environmental

A R

Aspect A2 Use of Resources

& ' A2 BIREA

General disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water 77
and other raw materials.

— MR BRERERBIERR KEEMEME)BEEK - 77

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, 78
gas or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

79 82 48 WA 1R A2.1 REDSASNEER  SBEZERWE  Falh)@EE (A 78
TEFERABZEIREEWMUEGEEEN BERXBETE) -

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of 78
production volume, per facility).

B 524 MR 1R A2.2 BEKERTEMWMINGESEEN BERMFTH) - 78

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results 77
achieved.

7 52 4B W 1R A2.3 M FET L RERA Rt I XA BERR - 77

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is 77
fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

BB IR IRA2.4 it SR ER @ AR KR | AT B (A BB - BA KPR AT AZ B9 R K 3K 77
mat B MPAEAR -

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) 77
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

7 B2 48 MR 1R A2.5 HEXmAEEMHNEE (BT E) R(WER) 84 E 77
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COMPLY OR EXPLAIN PROVISIONS

[ 8 <7 5 8% 18 | R 3

General disclosure/

KPIs Reporting guideline Page
—-REE
HRERER R & 8 5l BER

A. Environmental

A R

Aspect A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

[EmA3 BRERRXAER

General disclosure Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the 78
environment and natural resources.

— MR BMEBTAHRERAAEREXNERTENRE - 78

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the 79
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

B 52 48 R 1R A3 X EHHRERRERRARAERNEATZTERERNER 79
BERATENTHY-

Aspect A4 Climate Change

[E | A4 Rzt

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant 79
climate-related issues which have impacted, and those which may
impact, the issuer.

— MR E BRI REHERRAEGHETAEELENEARIENE 79
HEEHBEK -

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have 79
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the
actions taken to manage them.

7 B2 48 AR 1R AL HMER LA EHETAELERXENEARBEEBEE - 79

REHTE -
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EREBMIXFAGHNRE HERER/BEES

COMPLY OR EXPLAIN PROVISIONS

[(TEFHRBER]FX
General disclosure/
KPIs Reporting guideline Page
—-REE
HRERER R & 8 5l BER
B. Social
B.# &
Aspect B1 Employment and Labor Practices 80
& EB1 BREREIER
General disclosure Information on: 80
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
and other benefits and welfare.
—RIKE ERAFGHMRBE BEREN ITEHE R TEHS 80
Z it s R IA K E A58 KB :
(@ HBE: &k
by BFHBTABEAXZENHBAEZERBROIBNER -
KPIs B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- 81-82
or part-time), age group and geographical region.
78 52 48 W5 1% B1.1 rMR EEER(MNEBIEE)  FRARN &bz E 98 81-82
EEHEH-
KPIs B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical 83
region.
B2 IR 1E B1.2 BRER FRANEMREDHEEREKL K- 83
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE BY HKEX

EREBMIXFAGHNRE HERER/BEES

COMPLY OR EXPLAIN PROVISIONS

[(TEFHRBER]FX
General disclosure/
KPIs Reporting guideline Page
—-REE
HRERER R & 8 5l BER
B. Social
B.# &
Aspect B2 Health and Safety 84
& B2 BERZR
General disclosure Information on: 84
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a
safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
— R E EARHEZE2TIHERREAREEEREBELEEN: 84
(@ BX:k
by BTFHETABEAXENHEBZEZEZLAOIBNEH-
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of 85
the past three years including the reporting year.
78 B2 4 W R 12 B2.1 BE=-F(BRERFE)FFAITHNDABRRLL K- 85
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 85
79 82 4 W 15 12 B2.2 HIBELRIIEASH - 85
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, 84-85
and how they are implemented and monitored.
79 B2 4 W5 15B2.3 AR ANBERRERE2ER URBEBRITRESR 84-85

Tk e
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE BY HKEX
ERABMIBEMNERE HEREBHEES
COMPLY OR EXPLAIN PROVISIONS

[(TEFHRBER]FX
General disclosure/
KPIs Reporting guideline Page
—-REE
HRERER R & 8 5l BER

B. Social

B.# &

Aspect B3 Development and Training

fE mB3 R K% A

General disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for 85
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

— R E ERRABEBT IERENMB RO EK - milliF 85
FE -

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee 85-86
category (e.g. senior management, middle management).

79 B2 48 R 5 12 B3.1 REFEEEEN(NEREERE PREERE S H»NZII 85-86
EBEBADL -

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender 86-88
and employee category.

79 B2 48 W 5 1% B3.2 BRUEFIREERRE D BREE TKAX N TR - 86-88
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COMPLY OR EXPLAIN PROVISIONS

[(TEFHRBER]FX
General disclosure/
KPIs Reporting guideline Page
—-REE
HRERER R & 8 5l BER
B. Social
B.# &
Aspect B4 Labor Standards
[E HE B4 EIRE
General disclosure Information on: 88
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child
and forced labor.
— MR BRADIEZETSab ST : 88
(@ BX:X&k
by BTFTHETABEAXZENHEBEIRZLAOINNER -
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid 88
child and forced labour.
B 52 45 R 15 1R B4 i BEEANNERUABEET RAHS T - 88
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when 88
discovered.
B 52 45 R FE 15 B4.2 A EHRERBEARHR A BIERATERIE F5 - 88

105



OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

106 ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIFE-HLEKEIBHRS

2022 Annual Report

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE BY HKEX

EREBMIXFAGHNRE HERER/BEES

COMPLY OR EXPLAIN PROVISIONS

[(TEFHRBER]FX
General disclosure/
KPIs Reporting guideline Page
—-REE
HRERER R & 8 5l BER

B. Social

B.# &

Aspect B5 Supply Chain Management 89

/& E 85 fEEEE

General disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply 89
chain.

— MR ERHEENRERLSARBUE - 89

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 91

7 52 4 W 5 12 B5.1 e SN HEEREA - 91

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number 89
of suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and how
they are implemented and monitored.

B MIEIEE52 | s WIES A R R 018 ) ) EL 1T A R 61 B 4 BB 7 89
ZH URBBRATRERGE-

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social 90
risks along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

7 52 4 W 5 1% B5.3 BB HERSERANRBERESREARNIED 90
AMBRESRITRERT L -

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally 89
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and
how they are implemented and monitored.

79 $2 48 W 45 15 B5.4 HIEREHEERREEZARRER LRBENEL - R 89

RHEBATRERET A
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE BY HKEX

EREBMIXFAGHNRE HERER/BEES

COMPLY OR EXPLAIN PROVISIONS

[(TEFHRBER]FX
General disclosure/
KPIs Reporting guideline Page
—-REE
HRERER R & 8 5l BER
B. Social
B.# &
Aspect B6 Product Responsibility
€ EB6 EmEE
General disclosure Information on: 91
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress.
— R E ERMRHERNBRBENERELZY BE BRELLES 91
HA KRBT E :
(@) B : &k
by BFHETABEAXZENHBEEZRROIBNER -
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for 91-92
safety and health reasons.
B 52 48 W HE 1% B6. 1 EEXACEREREBTRL2ERFEAMARNKN A 91-92
palls A
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and 92
how they are dealt with.
2 $2 45 % $5 12 B6.2 EEAREMARBORFEHE AREH T X - 92
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting 92
intellectual property rights.
79 $2 48 W 5 1% B6.3 A gEERRENREEEFTBNED - 92
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. 91-92
7§ 45 15 12 B6.4 HilEERTEBENEREWRER - 91-92
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and 92-93
how they are implemented and monitored.
79 $2 4 W 15 12 B6.5 HIEEEERNRERLBEE  URBERITRERFE - 92-93
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE BY HKEX
EABTEMANRERE HERERBEESD
COMPLY OR EXPLAIN PROVISIONS
[(TEFHRBER]FX
General disclosure/
KPIs Reporting guideline Page
~BRBE
HRERER R & 8 5l BER
B. Social
B.# &
Aspect B7 Anti-corruption
fE HE B7 RES
General disclosure Information on: 93
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering.
— R E BRAWILHE R HEREBREN: 93
(@ BX:X&k
by BTFTHETABEAXZENHEBEIRZLAOINNER -
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices 94
brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting
period and the outcomes of the cases.
MRENEEET] | RERSANEETARELEEREYEEENASFRE 94
HHBE RFRER -
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing 94
procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored.
7 52 4 W e 1R B7.2 M BERERBREF  URBEERITRERF - 94
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and 94
staff.
B8 52 45 5 1R B7.3 HimEEREIRHENREFEI - 94
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[(TEFHRBER]FX

General disclosure/

KPIs Reporting guideline Page
—-REE
HRERER R & 8 5l BER

B. Social

B.# &

Aspect B8 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors
and staff.

f€ E B8 HERE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs 94
of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its
activities take into consideration the communities” interests.

—RIRE FEANHRSERTHREEMELEFTENEREEKS 94
HEEREBRMAHEEK -

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental 94
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).

7 52 4 W 5 15 B8.1 EIGRER(NHE BRESFHE BIFXR -BFE Xt 94
BA) -

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. 94

7 52 4 W 5 15 B8.2 EEIGEEMHIBE RS EREFR) - 94
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFEHRS

The directors of OCI International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022 (the “Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
set out in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
business and geographical segments are set out in Note 4 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on page 139 to 140.

The directors do not recommend any payment of a dividend
for the Year (2021: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review and future developments of the Group
for the Year are contained in the Chairman’s Statement and
the Management Discussion and Analysis section of this
annual report. There were no material events affecting the
Group that have occurred since the end of the Year.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year ended
31 December 2022 using financial performance indicators
is provided in the section headed “Financial Highlights” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on page 4 and pages
9 to 28 of this annual report.

Detailed information of the Group’s corporate governance
is contained in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” on pages 29 to 51 of this annual report.

In addition, details regarding the Group’s performance
by reference to environmental and social-related key
performance indicators and policies, as well as compliance
with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant
impact on the Company are provided in the paragraph
headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on
pages 62 to 109 of this annual report.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are various risks and uncertainties including business
risks, operational risks, and financial risks that may
have different levels of impact on the Group’s financial
performance, operations, business as well as future prospects.

The following highlights the principal risks and uncertainties
of the Group and it is not meant to be exhaustive. There may
be other risks and uncertainties which are not known to the
Group or which may not be material now but turn out to be
material in the future.

Economic Risks
—  Asevere or prolonged downturn of economy.

—  Negative effect on our operational, financing or
investing activities due to inflation, fluctuations of
interest rates and other measures relating to financial
policies.

Operational Risks
—  Failure to compete in the competitive environment
which the Group operates in.

The Group is also exposed to certain financial risk, including
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. Details of financial risks are
set out in note 29 to these consolidated financial statements
and the section headed “FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS” under
the “Management Discussion and Analysis” to this annual
report.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years are set out on page 280.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year are set out in Note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the Year in the Company’s share
capital are set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distributions to
shareholders as at 31 December 2022 comprised the share
premium and accumulated losses with an aggregate amount
of approximately HK$264.49 million (2021: HK$340.08
million).

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company’s Articles of Association provides that every
Director is entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities which they may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of
their office or otherwise in relation thereto.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the
Year and up to the date of this report were:

Mr. Jiao Shuge* (Chairman)
Mr. Wu Guangze (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Feng Hai
Mr. Wei Bin
Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan**
Mr. Li Xindan**
Mr. Chong Ka Yee**
(appointed on 23 March 2023)
Dr. Lo Wing Yan William**
Mr. Chang Tat Joel**
(resigned on 23 December 2022)
Ms. Zheng Xiaosu*
(resigned on 31 March 2023)

* Non-executive Director

**  Independent non-executive Director
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Biographical details of the Directors and senior management
as at the date of this report are set out from pages 52 to 61
of this annual report. Details of Directors’ remuneration are
set out in Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with Article 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
Articles of Association, Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan, Mr. Li Xindan
and Dr. Lo Wing Yan William shall be retired and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

In accordance with Article 86(3) of the Company’s Articles
of Association, any Director appointed by the Board to fill
a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first general
meeting of the Company after his appointment and be
subject to re-election at such meeting. As such, Mr. Chong
Ka Yee will retire from office and, being eligible, offer himself
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Each of the Executive Directors, namely Mr. Wu Guangze,
Mr. Feng Hai and Mr. Wei Bin has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 8 March 2021, 31 October 2020, 31
October 2020 respectively. The non-executive Director,
namely Mr. Jiao Shuge, has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of three years commencing
from 8 March 2021. The Independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan, Mr. Li Xindan and Dr.
Lo WIng Yan William, Mr. Chong Ka Yee have entered into
a service agreement with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 16 May 2020, 5 December 2020, 2
July 2021 and 23 March 2023 respectively.

All Directors’ appointments will be subject to normal
retirement and re-election at the annual general meeting
by the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholder”)
pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles of Association”).

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of Laws of
Hong Kong) (“SFO")) as recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors and chief executives adopted by the Company were
as follows:

Long position interests in the Company
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (“Shares”)

2022 Annual Report

ESRTZTHASNRKRM - BRI MD R
BEZEPZEZNRER
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Number of Approximate %
Shares Issued Voting
Name of chief executives Capacity/Nature of interests interested Shares
BEEEZW LS BT
FETHAEBHSR B HEEMtE ROEBE BEREERSG %
Mr. Wu Guangze Beneficial owner 31,000,000 2.07%
REERLE EaEA A
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, neither B X BEEN R_ZE-_—_F+ - =

the Directors nor chief executives of the Company had
any interest or short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

T—H BEARAEFHAIBTBRAER
AABSZEEFMABZEZER(EERESF LB
ERPIEXVER) 2 Bty - HERD MEEE
RHEATAEDEIER -
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares
in, or debt securities (including debentures) of, the Company
or any associated corporations, and none of the Directors, or
their spouses or children under age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for the shares or debt securities of the Company or
had exercised any such right during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance to which the Company,
its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at
any time during the Year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no contract
of significance (whether for the provision of services to the

INTEREST IN

Group or not) in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
any controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year
or at any time during the Year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to Directors, as at 31 December 2022, the
persons or companies (other than Directors or chief executives
of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which fall to be
disclosed to the Company under Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register of substantial Shareholders
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:
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Long positions in the ordinary Shares as at 31 December R_ZT-_—_F+_-_A=+—H TBREHE
2022: EHINMT :

Approximate
Number percentage of
Name of Shareholders Capacity of Shares shareholding
BRRER g% BROBE BREBABIL
JZ Investment Fund L. P. (Note 1) Beneficial Owner 440,000,000 29.34%
JZ Investment Fund L. P. (f#7£ 1) ExEEAA
JZ International Ltd. (Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation 440,000,000 29.34%
JZ International Ltd. (#f7% 1) XEGEEE S
Golden Power Group Limited (Note 2) Beneficial Owner 314,000,000 20.94%
ENEBERRA(MF2) EnEAA
Orient Ruixin Limited (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 314,000,000 20.94%
RAERERRA(MF2) REGEEE R
Orient Ruiyi (Shanghai) Investment Interest of controlled corporation 314,000,000 20.94%

Management Co., Limited (Note 2)

RAER(LBREEBERRR(MF2) XEHZE#ED

Shanghai Orient Securities Capital Interest of controlled corporation 314,000,000 20.94%
Investment Co., Ltd. (Note 2)

LBRARFHFEAREBERRA(MZ2) SEHZEZERES

Orient Securities Company Limited (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 314,000,000 20.94%
RABFROABERRR (M iE2) REHEEE R

Cheer Hope Holdings Limited (Note 3) Beneficial owner 194,960,000 12.99%
BREZERERARHZ3) ExnEBA

CCBI Investments Limited (Note 3) Interest of controlled corporation 194,960,000 12.99%
BRREBKREBER AR (HZ3) REGEEE R

CCB International (Holdings) Limited (Note 3) Interest of controlled corporation 194,960,000 12.99%
BRRERER)ER QA (M F3) REHEEE R

CCB Financial Holdings Limited (Note 3) Interest of controlled corporation 194,960,000 12.99%
BITemERBER QR (MiE3) XEHEE R

CCB International Group Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 194,960,000 12.99%

(Note 3)

ROBERESEZERER AR (HZ3) XA B RS

China Construction Bank Corporation (Note 3)  Interest of controlled corporation 194,960,000 12.99%
RERRRITROERRA(MF3) G E R

Central Huijin Investment Ltd. (Note 3) Interest of controlled corporation 194,960,000 12.99%

FRESREERAEEDE(HE3) REGEBE R
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Notes:

1. JZ Investment Fund L.P., an exempted limited partnership governed
by the board of its general partner, JZ International Ltd..

2. R & F K%M B R 2 A (Orient Securities Co., Ltd.) directly
holds 100% of the equity |nterest in Shanghai Orient Securities
Capital Investment Co., Ltd., which in turn holds 100% of the
equity interest in Orient Ruiyi (Shanghai) Investment Management
Co., Limited, which in turn holds 100% of the issued share capital
of Orient Ruixin Limited, which in turn holds 100% of the issued
share capital of Golden Power Group Limited. Therefore, 3 75 &
% B% 15 B BR 2 & (Orient Securities Co., Ltd.), Shanghai Orient
Securities Capltal Investment Co., Ltd., Orient Ruiyi (Shanghai)
Investment Management Co., Limited and Orient Ruixin Limited
are taken to be interested in the number of Shares held by Golden
Power Group Limited pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

3. Central Huijin Investment Ltd. directly holds 57.11% of the equity
interest in China Construction Bank Corporation, which in turn
holds 100% of the issued share capital of CCB International Group
Holdings Limited, which in turn holds 100% of the issued share
capital of CCB Financial Holdings Limited, which in turn holds
100% of the issued share capital of CCB International (Holdings)
Limited, which in turn holds 100% of the issued share capital of
CCBI Investments Limited, which in turn holds 100% of the issued
share capital of Cheer Hope Holdings Limited. Therefore, Central
Huijin Investment Ltd., China Construction Bank Corporation,
CCB International Group Holdings Limited, CCB Financial Holdings
Limited, CCB International (Holdings) Limited and CCBI Investments
Limited are taken to be interested in the number of Shares held by
Cheer Hope Holdings Limited pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, no person,
other than the Directors, whose interests are set out herein
this report, had registered an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying Shares that was required to be recorded
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) has
been adopted by the Company pursuant to a shareholder’s
resolution passed on 17 December 2012 and expired on
16 December 2022. A resolution will be submitted to the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to
consider and approve the adoption of the new Share Option
Scheme.

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each grantee under
the Share Option Scheme (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not (when
aggregated with any Shares subject to options granted during
such period under any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company other than those options granted pursuant to
specific approval by the Shareholders in a general meeting)
exceed 1% of the Shares in issue for the time being, unless
further grant of options being approved by Shareholders
in general meeting with such Participant and his associates
abstaining from voting. Where any grant of options to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or any of their respective associates,
would result in the Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options already granted and to be granted
(including options exercised, cancelled or outstanding) to
such person in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of such grant (i) representing in aggregate over
0.1% of the Shares in issue on the date of such grant; and
(ii) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of
the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, in excess of HK$5
million, such further grant of options shall be subject to prior
approval by resolution of the Shareholders (voting by way of
poll).
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An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during the period to be
determined and notified by the Board to the grantee at the
time of grant of the option which shall not expire later than
10 years from the date of grant. The Share Option Scheme
does not specify a minimum period for which an option must
be held nor a performance target which must be achieved
before an option can be exercised. However, the rules of the
Share Option Scheme provide that the Board may determine,
at its discretion, such term(s) on the grant of an option, which
decision may vary on a case by case basis. A remittance in
favour of the Company of HK$1.00 as consideration for the
grant of option is payable by the grantee upon acceptance
of the grant of option within a period of 28 days from the
date of grant. Such remittance is not refundable in any
circumstances.

The exercise price shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion but in any event shall not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets by The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of grant
which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price
of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued
by the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Shares.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all the Options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in
issue (or the shares of the subsidiary) as at Adoption Date (the
“Scheme Mandate Limit”).
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At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 24
May 2021, an ordinary resolution was passed refreshing
the Scheme Mandate Limit so that the Company would be
allowed to grant options under the Share Option Scheme for
subscription up to a total of 149,974,992 shares, representing
10% of the number of shares in issue as at 24 May 2021.

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held
on 16 September 2021, an ordinary resolution was passed to
grant 55,000,000 share options to Mr. Wu Guangze carrying
the rights to subscribe for 55,000,000 Shares and 50,000,000
share options to Mr. Wei Bin carrying the rights to subscribe
for 50,000,000 Shares at an exercise price of HK$4.53 per
Share (the “Grant”) under the share option scheme adopted
by the Company on 17 December 2012.

Validity period of the Share Options from 15 October 2021
to 6 June 2031 (both dates inclusive). Share Options of
each Grantee will be vested in five equal tranches (being
11,000,000 Share Options per tranche for Mr. Wu Guangze
and 10,000,000 Share Options per tranche for Mr. Wei Bin)
in accordance with the vesting schedule of the Share Options,
subject to the fulfilment of certain Performance Targets.

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company
dated 15 October 2021, the Company granted the Grant on
15 October 2021.
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Details of the Grant are set out below:

Tranches

First tranche

Second tranche

Performance Targets

(i)

(i)

For the year ending 31
December 2021, the Company
records a net profit (after
deducting minority interests
and non-recurring gains and
[osses MNote)) and there is no
occurrence of events that would
have a material adverse effect
on the Company’s operations
and listing status; and

the audited net assets of the
Company as at 31 December
2021 is not less than
HK$495,004,000.

For the year ending 31
December 2022, the Company
records a net profit (after
deducting minority interests and
non-recurring gains and losses
MNote)) and there is no occurrence
of events that would have a
material adverse effect on the
Company's operations and
listing status; and

the audited net assets of the
Company as at 31 December
2022 is not less than
HK$594,005,000.
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Tranches

Third tranche (i)
(i)

Fourth tranche (i)

(i)

Performance Targets

For the year ending 31
December 2023, the Company
records a net profit (after
deducting minority interests and
non-recurring gains and losses
MNote)) and there is no occurrence
of events that would have a
material adverse effect on the
Company's operations and
listing status; and

the audited net assets of the
Company as at 31 December
2023 is not less than
HK$712,806,000.

For the year ending 31
December 2024, the Company
records a net profit (after
deducting minority interests and
non-recurring gains and losses
(Note)) and there is no occurrence
of events that would have a
material adverse effect on the
Company’'s operations and
listing status; and

the audited net assets of the
Company as at 31 December
2024 is not less than
HK$855,367,000.

=
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Tranches Performance Targets

Fifth tranche (i)  For the year ending 31 December
2025, the Company records a net
profit (after deducting minority
interests and non-recurring gains
and losses Mo®) and there is no
occurrence of events that would
have a material adverse effect on
the Company’s operations and

listing status; and

(i) the audited net assets of the
Company as at 31 December
2025 is not less than
HK$1,026,440,000.

If the vesting conditions are not met for any financial year,
the corresponding tranche of Share Options will automatically
lapse. Accordingly, the first tranche of Share Options were
lapsed as at the date of this report.

Note:

Non-recurring gains and losses refer to highly infrequent profit or
charge not arising from the Company’s ordinary and usual course of
business, including but not limited to the impairment losses on defaulted
investments and gains or losses on disposal of subsidiaries or business.

Since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme and up to the
date of this report, 105,000,000 options were granted under
the Share Option Scheme entitling the holders thereof to
subscribe for 105,000,000 Shares, representing approximately
7.0% of the total issued shares. The expiration of the Share
Option Scheme will not affect the rights of the outstanding
options granted under the Share Option Scheme and those
outstanding options will continue to be valid and exercisable
during the prescribed exercisable period in accordance with
the Share Option Scheme. No further options have been
granted under the Share Option Scheme upon its expiry.

REEFEZERERAA
DIRECTORS' REPORT

SEERS
& XEBE

_+—E¢¢E $“
Al 813 % M B (E M Bk
BERREmLRIFEEK
BaWER) - B &
EHARAMNEER
Fisf ELEE KRN
TEWNEMR R

i) AARAR-FB-AF
+ A=+ —B8E
EREEFETLR
1,026,440,000% JT °

AR AT B B R I R K R B IR AE R
HEmBRESaSHRU- Bt BREN
—HRABEBRRRY -

B &
ERFUEBEREBEYIFRBEEARA -—REBEXELB
RAMFEEEEANENHLER BRETRREAOR

EMREERERHEMNB AR EBO KD LERE -

ERMNERESEEREZEARERR B
1B % B8 I% 4 5T 2 4% 1 105,000,000 17 B A% 4 -
BT HFAE AT R EE 105,000,000 8% 8% 5
HEREBITRHOBELT7.0%- - BEREE
ERETerERBEEREFEREL ZHE R
TEBRECERN  MZEERTEBRE
MRBEEREFEREETFERAEER X
RafaE -REREFESERE HER
BEREFEE—PSROBERE-

123



124

OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFEHRS

Details of the share options outstanding during the year are
as follows:

2022 Annual Report

FRARRTENBREFSDOT

2022 2021
—=E=-= == —
Number of share options
BREZE
Outstanding at the beginning of F A EARITEE
the year 105,000,000 -
Granted during the year FREH - 105,000,000
Lapsed during the year F R KW (21,000,000) =
Outstanding at the end of the year FERMARITH 84,000,000 105,000,000

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS OR OTHER
SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company has no outstanding convertible securities,
options or similar rights in issue as at 31 December 2022.

BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2022, the total borrowing (including
borrowings, amount due to a related party and lease
liabilities) of the Group amounted to HK$110.02 million
(2021: HK$91.59 million).

DONATIONS
For the Year, the Group had not made any charitable and
other donations.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group provides a defined contribution retirement scheme
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “Scheme”)
in Hong Kong. Under the Scheme, employer and employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 and a minimum
level of relevant income of HK$7,100 for the employees’
contribution. The Group’s employees in the PRC, participate
in a defined contribution central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company and the Group was entered into or existed during
the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has
not entered into any equity-linked agreements, and there did
not subsist any equity-linked agreement entered into by the
Company as at 31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
There were no competing business of which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or in-directly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2022 which is required to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the Independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance, time, commitment,
duties and responsibilities, contribution to the Group,
comparable market statistics and prevailing marketing
practice and trends.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the Year, the largest supplier of the Group by itself
and the next four largest suppliers accounted for about
17.54% and 33.98% respectively, of the Group's purchases.

During the Year, the largest customer of the Group by itself
and the next four largest customers accounted for about
64.4% and 62.7% of the Group’s turnover. The five largest
customers are from provision of asset management services
and sales of good.

At no time during the Year did a Director, an associate of a
Director or a Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
have an interest in any of the Group's five largest suppliers.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

The related party transactions which amount to HK$7.16
million (2021: HK$62.02 million) as set out in Note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements fall within the definition of
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES
During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
listed securities of the Company.
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COMPLIANCE WITH CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties with written terms of reference. Save as
disclosed below, the Company has complied with all code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) during the Year Under Review as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules with the following exceptions.

The Code Provisions A.1.3 and A.7.1 stipulate that 14-day
notice should be given for each regular board meeting and
that in respect of regular meetings, and so far as practicable
in all other cases, and the agenda and accompanying board
papers should be sent in full to all directors in a timely
manner and at least three days before the intended date of a
board or board committee meeting (or such other period as
agreed).

The Company agrees that sufficient time should be given
to the directors in order to make a proper decision. In these
respects, the Company adopts a more flexible approach
(and yet sufficient time has been given) in convening board
meetings to ensure efficient and prompt management
decisions could be made.

The Code Provision C.1.2 of the CG Code, stipulates that the
management shall provide all members of the Board with
monthly updates. During the Year, the executive Directors
and chief financial officer have provided and will continue
to provide to all Directors updates on any material changes
to the positions and prospects of the Company, which is
considered to be sufficient to provide general updates of
the Company’s performance, position and prospects to the
Board and allow them to give a balanced and understandable
assessment of the same to serve the purpose required by the
Code Provision C.1.2.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RULES 3.10(2), 3.21 AND 3.25 OF
THE LISTING RULES

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company
dated 23 December 2022 in relation to, among other
things, the non-compliance with Rules 3.10(2), 3.21 and
3.25 of the Listing Rules. Pursuant to Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules, every board of directors of a listed issuer
must include at least one of the independent non-executive
directors must have appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise. In
addition, Pursuant to Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, every
listed issuer must establish an audit committee comprising
non-executive directors only and the audit committee must
comprise a minimum of three members, at least one of whom
is an independent non-executive director with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules. The audit committee must be chaired by an
independent non-executive director. Pursuant to Rule 3.25
of the Listing Rules, an issuer must establish a remuneration
committee chaired by an independent non-executive director
and comprising a majority of independent non-executive
directors.

Following the appointment of Mr. Chong Ka Yee as an
independent non-executive director, the chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of each of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee; and the
appointment of Dr. Lo Wing Yan William as the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee,

(i) the Company has include at least one of the
independent non-executive directors must have
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise as required
under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules;

(i) the Audit Committee comprising non-executive
directors only and the Audit Committee must comprise
a minimum of three members, at least one of whom is
an independent non-executive director with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required under Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules; and
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(i) the Remuneration Committee is chaired by an
independent non-executive Director and comprises a
majority of independent non-executive Directors, which
meets the requirement under Rule 3.25 of the Listing
Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors, as at the
date of this report, the Company has maintained sufficient
public float as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Year and years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December
2020 were audited by Crowe (HK) CPA Limited. A resolution
will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company to re-appoint Crowe (HK) CPA Limited as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
OClI International Holdings Limited

Wu Guangze
Executive Director

31 March 2023
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Crowe

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF OCI INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
OClI International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 139 to 279, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2022 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

REBEBRZERERAR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
&% el Eh iR S

ARE%SIA

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional REBHRMAOFEEHE BREFEZFBE AR M
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the BEAHEMNGEUBRERFETEENEIE -
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These TP EBZG AV BEREL R L ERE R
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the EENWEETE MIAEHR L ST EEBERX
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming & & °

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Allowance for expected credit loss of debt investments at LI ER AN ENELRECAHREEREE

amortised cost

B

Refer to Notes 3(a), 14 and 29(b) to the consolidated financial 2 B4 & B 7 3% 5= Mt 57 3(a) ~ 14 52 29(b) JA

statements and the accounting policies in Note 2(j)(i).

The Key Audit Matter

As at 31 December 2022, gross debt investments
at amortised cost and its related loss allowance
amounted to approximately HK$230,856,000 and
approximately HK$213,506,000 respectively.

Impairment of debt investments at amortised cost is a
subjective area due to the level of judgement applied
by management in determining loss allowance.

The determination of loss allowance using the
expected credit loss ("ECL"”) model is subject to
a number of key parameters and assumptions,
including the identification of loss stages, estimates
of probability of default (“PD"), loss given default
("LGD"), exposures at default (“EAD") and discount
rate, adjustments for forward-looking information and
other adjustment factors. Management judgement is
involved in the selection of those parameters and the
application of the assumptions.

In particular, the determination of the loss allowance
is heavily dependent on the external macro
environment and the Group’s internal credit risk
management strategy. The expected credit losses
are derived from estimates including the Group's
historical losses, internal and external credit grading
and other adjustment factors.

R B B EE20)() By & A BRER ©

How the matter was addressed in our audit
Our audit procedures to address the impairment
assessment of debt investments included the following:

o understanding and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of key
internal controls over the approval, recording and
monitoring debt investments at amortised cost and
the measurement of loss allowance;

o assessing the reliability of the ECL model used
by management in determining loss allowance,
including assessing the appropriateness of the key
parameters and assumptions in the expected credit
loss model, including the identification of loss
stages, PD, LGD, EAD, discount rate, adjustments
for forward-looking information and other
management adjustments;

o assessing the completeness and accuracy of data
used for the key parameters in the ECL model. For
key parameters derived from external data, we
selected samples to inspect the accuracy of such
data by comparing them with public resources;
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The Key Audit Matter

Management also exercises judgement in determining
the quantum of LGD based on a range of factors.
These include available remedies for recovery, the
financial situation of the borrower, the recoverable
amount of collateral, the seniority of the claim and
the existence and cooperativeness of other creditors.
The enforceability, timing and means of realisation of
collateral can also have an impact on the recoverable
amount of collateral and, therefore, the amount
of impairment losses as at the end of the reporting
period.

We identified the allowance for ECL of debt
investments measured at amortised cost as a key
audit matter because of the inherent uncertainty and
management judgement involved and because of
their significance to the financial results of the Group.

2022 Annual Report

How the matter was addressed in our audit

for key parameters involving judgement, critically
assessing input parameters by seeking evidence
from external sources and comparing to the
Group's internal records including historical loss
experience and type of collateral. As part of these
procedures, we challenged management’s revisions
to estimates and input parameters compared with
prior period and considered the consistency of
judgement. We compared the economic factors
used in the models with market information to
assess whether they were aligned with market and
economic development;

evaluating the validity of management’s
assessment on whether the credit risk of debt
investments at amortised cost has, or has not,
increased significantly since initial recognition
and whether debt investments at amortised
cost are credit-impaired. We checked the
overdue information, making enquiries of the
key management about the borrowers’ business
operations, checking borrowers’ financial
information and researching market information
about borrowers’ businesses;

for debt investments at amortised cost that
are credit-impaired, evaluating management’s
assessment of the value of any asset collateral
held by comparison with market prices. We also
evaluated the timing and means of realisation
of collateral, evaluated the forecast cash flows,
challenged the viability of the Group’s recovery
plans and evaluated other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contract terms;

recalculating the amount of credit loss allowance
for 12 month and lifetime credit losses using the
ECL model based on the above parameters and
assumptions for a sample of debt investments at
amortised cost where the credit risk of the debt
investment has, or has not, increased significantly
since initial recognition, respectively; and

evaluating whether the disclosures on provision
of ECL meet the disclosure requirements in the
prevailing accounting standards.



2022 3R

BREREE
R-ZTE-_—F+-_A=+—8 " REHK K
BrEXKREBEEREABAEBRREE N A
230,856,000/ Jt & 213,506,000/ Jt °

MR EEBAEETEH BB ENTERDNHEX
FoRBERANRZEERENBREBN EH
& o

ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ“%ﬁﬁ”?m%%%ﬁ*ﬂ%?I

LEMBRARG BEBANEEER HE
L%WTUL%WYD EHOBR(ENERLD
BARR(TEDRR] RBER X HAEEER
MBABUREMAERRZ - EEFAH2HBLEN
BRARBRY REERE R HE-

‘Im

LEMs ECHEEREBERARAEE LFURRINE
ZEBRENE SEEBENANEERREERE-
FHEEBENKERE ESENBAEE.
NERIINBEEFTFAAREMFABRRZNGHE -

REBEBRZERERAR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
&% el Eh iR S

BMREZTPEEEBREENS E
BMAAREBEBERERENGEHNEXZEFBEIN
TER:

o THREFEIZ B N ERITH KA E
CEBERENGTEEERERENETEZEANINEZTR
RETEE M EEKR

e HHhERECECTEERBERAMANBHEE
EERA A E M- ’@%uﬂmﬁﬁﬁﬁééﬂaﬁ
ANETZE2HRBRETEE EFBEERT
EEEER Z2ANX BOEBERE EZA4ORR- B
fﬁ?é’ﬁﬁﬂ%'l&“%ﬁﬂﬁ’ﬁ%%&%&ﬁ@%ﬁEJ%

.
2

e HEEHEEBRBEEANZIZZLHEMBEED
TEMMNERE BRREIFHENETELH
ME BMUEEEANSEBASERRE AR
RENBBRETHER T REEBE BN E
M

133



134

OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

18 X1 1% 25 6 ¥R 5

HREREE
ERENERE-RIARAETRENBAS

BEFIT(E L - Hh B F B RIBEH A AR
ECBRANMBEMRR ERROTKRE S HE -
$%W%%mf%&% T FEHEMEREARE
ERGA-ZRERNRAETTRHNT EE
%&EiﬁT%%ﬁ#ﬁ%ﬂ%@%%%I%
Z AN SUHREBANBEERSBELEY
@,
BPSBEEERAAECEREREEREER
EREREBEAMREZRSTEH REAESKRANET
BEUEREEBHE URHEYE S£EBUEE
EHWEEMN-

2022 Annual Report

BEMREZTPEEEBREENS E

R RHAGNTIEZ2HME  BEEINLEHR
ARSHERTE EEENANLCE(EEE

EEELRE REHEER)ETER - 1 m 8t
WHHRAZHE - ERZEREFN—F D &K
PIEs BaffEt EBELET G E
A2 VTERHABGRZS —B-HFAHERSD
ETANKCERZREMSERETHLER  ATMG
EAEMBREEERRE — B

AEEEERREBHENAIRZEBRENE
ERBRATEVNHBEREBEL N LRt
BEAAIRZEBRES S EEREMEF
MREAM BT REERBHBERNERH
%EmA%W@%%%W%%%EAiW&E
AREERANTHEEN  LARFEERA
%W%m%ﬁﬂ:

REERENRBERAIR2EEREMS -
FREMEELLELE FREEEUMFENE
MEEARBEENFME - HMATSFEHEEM
mOWERERRST A FERARSRE &
B OESEWE KA AT IJME/\
R A E SR E) H M (E E R

WEHRENEER R B V)16 RE D B LK
2 & BEE EFH%EALLQ%Z&TE”“
BEHEEBRRA B —HZEBEAAKIEH
EBREEKANEFFENZAANGEEBREER
TRLEFRAGEBE X

AEERNEEERRAERERESTART
ERI B ERE -

i3
E'I\_



2022 3R

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included
in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal control.

J Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group'’s internal control.

J Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

J Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 31 March 2023

Yau Hok Hung
Practising Certificate Number P04911
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COI\/IPREHENSIVE INCOME

mOERRHEMWEAN D

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_S__F$+-_A=+—-HILEEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)(JA i 7t &t &)

NOTE 2022 2021
i 3% g :3 —E=-—-F%
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FTETL
Revenue Iz 4
Revenue from asset management REEEBB RS 28,274 85,450
Revenue from investment and financial REEERMBEEARE
advisory services 2 Wz 531 4,030
Income from underwriting and REBZOHREE
placing of securities Z WA 1,560 =
Sales of goods HEEm 29,341 46,509
Loss from securities trading and investments RE B EZE 5 kK&
ZEE (29,061) (62,757)
30,645 73,232
Cost of sales and services rendered HERCRERBERR (35,459) (71,791)
(4,814) 1,441
Other income Hbd A 5 8,249 2,902
Selling and distribution costs HERKHER (71) (53)
General and administrative expenses — BRI (51,486) (48,985)
Impairment losses on financial assets CREERBEER (25,107) (3,958)
Provision for post-completion guarantee ERERER 24 = (58,565)
Loss from operations REEXKER (73,229) (107,218)
Finance costs HH%ER 6(a) (5,993) (10,063)
Share of profits of joint venture {55 2 A aEF 1,011 =
Loss before taxation BAaER (78,211) (117,281)
Income tax FTi5 i - (5,341)
Loss for the year KEEEFE (78,211) (122,622)
Attributable to: LT AT EA:
Equity shareholders of the Company ARBHERE (75,708) (122,622)
Non-controlling interests FERER (2,503) -
Loss for the year rFEEER (78,211) (122,622)
Loss per share BREE 10 HK(5.05) cents  HK(8.18) cents
— Basic and diluted —EARKEE (5.05) 7 1l (8.18)7& 1L
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meRERREMWEA NS

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_F__f+-R=1+-HLEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)(JA 7 7 &t &)

NOTE 2022 2021
o & —®-CF “B-—F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TERT BT
Loss for the year rEEER (78,211) (122,622)
Other comprehensive (expense) income  Hft 2 & (X ) WA
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently ~E &It @ EH 5
to profit or loss: EEmER:
Exchange differences on translation of MRENBEBESE
foreign operations LEHER (946) 411
Total comprehensive expense for theyear ZAFE2HE X KA H (79,157) (122,211)
Attributable to: LT AL
Equity shareholders of the Company N/NETR Ei gt (76,482) (122,211)
Non-controlling interests RS (2,675) -
Total comprehensive expense for theyear ZAFEE2HE X HAHE (79,157) (122,211)

The notes on pages 145 to 279 form part of these financial
statements.

HANFI45E279BE M AL ETBRED
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REEFEZERERAA
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PQOSITION
i 6 W Bk i &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB TE)
As at 31 As at 31
NOTE December 2022  December 2021
R-—g=-Z RZTZ—4F
+=A +ZH
BT 5 == =t+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FEL
Non-current assets E(RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME BERKE 11 22,360 5,583
Interest in joint venture AEEDRIZE® 13 5,101 —
Rental deposits HEZS 17 1,086 =
28,547 5,583
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 15 6,256 7,293
Trade receivables EWE FRA 16 7,431 9,463
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables & & 8154 5078 & H 1t & We Bk 78 17 17,150 11,942
Debt investments at amortised cost BRBHERAFECERESE 14 17,350 51,638
Financial assets at fair value through profit or & A F{& 5+ A B %
loss LEREBE 18 110,260 145,744
Cash and cash equivalents BekBReSHEER 19 230,568 313,006
38901 539,086
Current liabilities RBAE
Contract liabilities EHEE 4(b) 1,548 9,169
Accruals and other payables JE & A N B A fE R 1B 20 12,022 6,961
Amount due to a related party F& < BB B 5 5ROR 21 46,930 <
Borrowings R 22 46,861 85,768
Provision for post-completion guarantee ERERER 24 - 58,565
Lease liabilities HEAE 23 7,089 5,823
Current tax payable JE £ B EA /5 18 27(a) 337 5,590
e el 14787 171876
Net current assets RBEEFE 274,228 367,210
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBER 302,775 372,793
Non-current liability kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEBRE 23 9,135 A

NET ASSETS

EEFE 293,640 372,793
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As at 31 As at 31
NOTE December 2022  December 2021
R-ZE=-Z NZE=-—F
+=A TZA
It 3 =+-8 =+-18
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TAET
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRREE

Share capital RA 28(b) 14,998 14,998
Reserves & 285,663 357,795

Total equity attributable to equity ARAERERR
shareholders of the Company PE G AR & 300,661 372,793
Non-controlling interests FERER (7,021) =
TOTAL EQUITY 4R 293,640 372,793

The consolidated financial statements on pages 139 to 279
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 31 March 2023, and are signed on its behalf by:

The notes on pages 145 to 279 form part of these financial

statements.

Jiao Shuge
Director

EF

BHRE

VE2IVA AU BBRER -F

O YTHATEETAREE:

Wu Guangze
REE
Director

BF

£
FZA=+—HREEFeHERKEET

HANFI45E279BE M A L ETBKREHD
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 143
mOEREAE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_S__F$+-_A=+—-HILEEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)(JA i 7t &t &)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

FRERERAES
Non-
Share Share ~ Translation Other  Accumulated controlling
capital ~ premium reserve reserve losses Total interests  Total equity

kx  RfaE ERRE  HbER  RHER £t FERER  fEd
HKS000  HKS'O00  HKSO00  HKSOO0 K000 HKS000  HKSO0D  HKS000
TAL  TEn  TRn TR TEr  TEn  TEn fE:

=y

Balance at 1 January 2021 CRC-E-f-RER 14,998 498,790 (417) (919) (17,448 495,004 - 495,004
Changes in equityfor 2021: 3I-ERREY.
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - (e () - (160
Other comprehensive income for theyear ~ RERAH2EHA - - 41 - - 41 - a1
Total comprehensive income (expense) PEUALE)ER - = 1 - (e () - )
Balance at 31 December 2021 E--%+-f=1-BR

and 1 January 2022 ZEIZE-R-RER 14998 498,790 (6) (919 (140,070) 372,193 - 372,193
Changes in equity for 2022; TRICERREY.
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - (508 (75,708) (2503 (821
Other comprehensive expense for theyear ~ AEEE {2 AR M - - (174) - - () (17) (946)
Total comprehensive expense PETLEE - - (174) - (75708)  (76,48)) 61 (19157)
Contributions by non-controllng shareholders 3% 3Bk & f 7 3 Ak 89

to newly incorporated subsiciaries KEAAEE - - - - - - 4 4
Partial disposalof a subsidiary o RERRRALE-RHEBLA

anon-controlling shareholder (Note 12) WeAER(RE) - - - 4,350 - 4,350 (4350) -
Balance at 31 December 2022 “ECCE{CACT-RER 14998 498,790 (780) 3831 (215,778) 300,661 (7.021) 293,640

The notes on pages 145 to 279 form part of these financial ZHRFE145F279E MM AL SHEHREN
statements. —EBD e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T__F+-A=+—-HLEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)(JA 7 7 &t &)

NOTE 2022 2021
it 3 - —E- %
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET
Operating activities REEH
Cash (used in) generated from operations K& E£K(FTA)FMEHRE 19(b) (4,279) 206,033
Bank interest received EKRRTHE 178 169
Income tax paid BRHEH (5,253) (3,200)
Income tax refunded BEREMGH - 324
Net cash (used in) generated from RETEH (TR B
operating activities ReRE (9,354) 203,326
Investing activities RETH
Payments for purchase of property, plantand BAYM % - BERREZH 2
equipment MIB (3,672) (12)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits EERRIETRD - 249,535
Payment for acquisition of a joint venture W —F A& & QA A 2 XK (3,660) —
Cash received from non-controlling kil DAV WJ% NGIIEEIS2:
shareholders on newly incorporated REEDA R &
subsidiaries 4 =
Net cash (used in) generated from REZBD(FAEGRLER
investing activities (7,328) 249,523
Financing activities MEZTDH
Repayment of bank and other borrowings B & 17T R E £ 5% 19(c) (38,986) (209,250)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENAEREMNERE S 19(c) (8,762) (6,012)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENEERSHNFEEHS 19(c) (304) (381)
Interest paid on bank and other borrowings R 7 R L fE R E [ 5 & 19(c) (5.800) (14,186)
Repayment to a related party ) B8 B 7 (BB A 19(c) (11,713) -
Net cash used in financing activities RETHFMBHEEHE (65,565) (229,829)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and B¢ RBLSEBEBB(RD)EM
cash equivalents FE (82,247) 223,020
Cash and cash equivalentsat 1 January R—BA—BzHREeRBREL%E
EHE 19(a) 313,006 88,475
Effect of foreign exchange rate NEERSH2XE
changes (191) 1,511
Cash and cash equivalents RTZA=+—-HZHEER
at 31 December BE¢EEER 19(a) 230,568 313,006

The notes on pages 145 to 279 form
statements.

MR E1ASZ279A MM AL EM B AR
— 4 -

part of these financial
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GENERAL

OCI International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the corporate information to the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in asset
management, provision of investment and financial
advisory services, provision of securities underwriting
and placing services, trading of wines and beverage, and
securities trading and investments.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a] Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 2(c) provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from
the initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Group for
the current accounting period reflected in these
financial statements.

REBEBRZERERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

87 5 ¥R % B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE-TS-_—"F+-_A=1+—-HLFE

—REM

REBBREERARARTRAT DR H
SHEEMALSERRER AR K
BN EBEBREXZMABER AR (TEX
FriDEm-RARAIEMMPERILU KT
BERHWHBERFRZIATDEHARKE -

ARA/—HREERAR  ENBA
AZEBXRBREEETRE RHKRER
MEBARE REZSFEHREER
B ETAEEMAREENESFEE
HigE -

HmaMBmRRIOABT(BTZ5
BLBARANPEEERAEENZ
5 g% -

EAEFTHR

) &HREH
HEMBRRDREAABEANSE
AHMBEHRESEN(ERMBREE
ADwmE EFEBERELGFMA
S((EREHMAEDEMNME
ERMENEEMEREER &
AEEMEREEND k2
B - BE—RARNSFT RN K
BAERAKROMNEEMRE - WEHY
BRETTAEBERBARSM
ERAREFLMRANERBE
EX e REBEBNEZEFBR
RTIXHEE-

EXEGHMASEEMRAEER
S HAERERKAHRERERA
WEBUBREEN 2B F
MBBRERAMRER A HER
REMZEERARAEERBNERES
BH g KRS E R RN M
2(c)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

a=

2.

TR g S S E R EE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”) and the Group’s interest in joint venture.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except that the financial assets at fair value
through profit of loss (“FVPL") are stated at their
fair value as explained in the accounting policy set

out in Note 2(qg).

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about the carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period

reviewed on an ongoing basis.

in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects

both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have a significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of

estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.

2.

2022 Annual Report

BABHEEE)
b) MHARFEREE

HE-_T-_—_F#+-_A=+—A1t
FESRAVMBRREEARARE
MEAR(REAEE) A RAE
BRNEERANES -

RAEVBHREREMANGEEER
RSBk 7R - M B B RE 2(g) K B EY
SRR 2R A FEFAEBR
(RAFPEFABRBEDZEREE
Tig R FEY R

RENTEBTEMBRESE DTG
BRAREEEBFLZERRNE
AREE AE WARIHHE

S BAHE - At RRE - B
MEBRRXOIREBERLR K% A
HMARGH  WERBHEMEX
gEaHteE MeRAZFMHE
&F“%%ﬂ%ﬁﬁé?&ﬁﬁm
FREENER -BERERATESR R
Nyl i

7 5 18 3% 48 B B 1 1 5T % AR D R 2R

EH A - @FF AT ZERTHURE
EEH AABESHHAEITINE
MR -MZBAE A 2B
EEHMLRERYE MAEBEETR

EHLRERYERER -

EHEERERBEEM B RELE
AISFIELHAMBRREEAY
EmHE ARG THBARERK
TERRE BINRME3-



2022 3R

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA to these financial
statements for the current accounting period:

J Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, plant and
equipment: Proceeds before intended use

° Amendments to HKAS 37, Provisions,
contingent liabilities and contingent assets:
Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a
contract

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period. Impacts of the adoption
of the amended HKFRSs are discussed below:

Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, plant and
equipment: Proceeds before intended use

The amendments prohibit an entity from deducting
the proceeds from selling items produced before
that asset is available for use from the cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment. Instead,
the sales proceeds and the related costs should
be included in profit and loss. The amendments
do not have a material impact on these financial
statements as the Group does not sell items
produced before an item of property, plant and
equipment is available for use.

Amendments to HKAS 37, Provisions,
contingent liabilities and contingent assets:
Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract
The amendments clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous, the cost of
fulfilling the contract includes both the incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract and an allocation of
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts.
Previously, the Group included only incremental costs
when determining whether a contract was onerous.
In accordance with the transitional provisions, the
Group has applied the new accounting policy to
contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all its
obligations at 1 January 2022, and has concluded
that none of them is onerous.

REBEBRZERERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE-TS-_—"F+-_A=1+—-HLFE

2. BEABHBKRAE)

(c)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

a=

2.

TR g S S E R EE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the
date that control commences until the date that
control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any
non-controlling interests either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

2.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and
the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans
from holders of non-controlling interests and other
contractual obligations towards these holders are
presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position depending on the
nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and
non-controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of a financial asset (see Note 2(g)) or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 2(j)(ii)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale).

REBEBRZERERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_ "+ _A=+-RL#FE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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a=

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the
Group or Company and other parties contractually
agree to share control of the arrangement, and
have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture
is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements under the equity method, unless it is
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale). Under the
equity method, the investment is initially recorded
at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s
share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of
the investment (if any). The cost of the investment
includes purchase price, other costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of the investment,
and any direct investment into the associate
or joint venture that forms part of the Group's
equity investment. Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the
Group's share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment (see
Notes 2(f) and 2(j)(iii)). At each reporting date,
the Group assesses whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment is impaired. Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the investees and any impairment losses for the
year are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

2.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate or the joint venture, the
Group's interest is reduced to nil and recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest
is the carrying amount of the investment under
the equity method, together with any other
long-term interests that in substance form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate or the
joint venture, after applying the ECL model to such
other long-term interests where applicable (see
Note 2(j)(i)).

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
and joint venture are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s interest in the investee, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method.

retained interest is not remeasured.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint
control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as
a disposal of the entire interest in that investee,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
investee at the date when significant influence or
joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and
this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see Note 2(qg)).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Associates and joint ventures (continued)]

In the company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates and joint venture are
stated at cost less impairment losses (see Note 2(j)),
unless classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the group’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain
on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(see Note 2(j)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during
the year, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit
or loss on disposal.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Financial instruments

(i)

(ii)

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables (see Note 2(m)) and debt
securities issued are initially recognised when
they are originated. All other financial assets
and financial liabilities are initially recognised
when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component)
or financial liability is initially measured
at fair value plus, for an item not at FVPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable
to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable
without a significant financing component
is initially measured at the transaction price
and is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A
right to receive consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is
classified as measured at: amortised cost; fair
value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI") — debt investment; FVOCI — equity
investment; or FVPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified
subsequent to their initial recognition unless
the Group changes its business model for
managing financial assets, in which case all
affected financial assets are reclassified on the
first day of the first reporting period following
the change in the business model.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement

(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

A financial asset is measured at amortised
cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as at FVPL:

- it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

— its contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it
meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVPL:

- it is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets; and

- its contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment
that is not held for trading, the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in the investment'’s fair value in other
comprehensive income (“OCI"). This election
is made on an investment-by-investment
basis.

2.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EASHHERE)
(g) Financial instruments (Continued) (g €@ A(E)
(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement (i) 7 BEREZEE)

(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

All financial assets not classified as measured
at amortised cost or FVOCI as described
above are measured at FVPL. This includes
all derivative financial assets. On initial
recognition, the Group may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise
meets the requirements to be measured
at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVPL if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise
arise.

Financial assets - Business model assessment:
The Group makes an assessment of the
objective of the business model in which
a financial asset is held at a portfolio level
because this best reflects the way the business
is managed and information is provided to
management. The information considered
includes:

-  the stated policies and objectives for
the portfolio and the operation of
those policies in practice. These include
whether management’s strategy focuses
on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate
profile, matching the duration of the
financial assets to the duration of any
related liabilities or expected cash
outflows or realising cash flows through
the sale of the assets;
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(Continued)

—  how the performance of the portfolio is
evaluated and reported to the Group’s
management;

—  the risks that affect the performance of
the business model (and the financial
assets held within that business model)
and how those risks are managed;

- how managers of the business
are compensated — e.g. whether
compensation is based on the fair value
of the assets managed or the contractual
cash flows collected; and

— the frequency, volume and timing
of sales of financial assets in prior
periods, the reasons for such sales and
expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties
in transactions that do not qualify for
derecognition are not considered sales for
this purpose, consistent with the Group’s
continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or
are managed and whose performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis are measured
at FVPL.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. BEBASFHBKRE)
(g) Financial instruments (Continued) (g €@ I AE)
(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement (i) 7 BEREZEE)
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Financial assets - Business model assessment: EREE-FBRAFRE: (&)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Classification and subsequent measurement
(Continued)

Financial assets - Assessment whether
contractual cash flows are solely payments
of principal and interest:

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’
is defined as the fair value of the financial
asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is
defined as consideration for the time value of
money and for the credit risk associated with
the principal amount outstanding during a
particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk
and administrative costs), as well as a profit
margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash
flows are solely payments of principal and
interest, the Group considers the contractual
terms of the instrument. This includes
assessing whether the financial asset contains
a contractual term that could change the
timing or amount of contractual cash flows
such that it would not meet this condition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers:

contingent events that would change
the amount or timing of cash flows;

—  terms that may adjust the contractual
coupon rate, including variable-rate
features;

- prepayment and extension features; and

— terms that limit the Group’s claim to
cash flows from specified assets (e.g.
non-recourse features).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Classification and subsequent measurement
(Continued)

Financial assets - Assessment whether
contractual cash flows are solely payments
of principal and interest: (Continued)

A prepayment feature is consistent with
the solely payments of principal and
interest criterion if the prepayment amount
substantially represents unpaid amounts of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, which may include reasonable
compensation for early termination of the
contract. Additionally, for a financial asset
acquired at a discount or premium to its
contractual par amount, a feature that
permits or requires prepayment at an amount
that substantially represents the contractual
par amount plus accrued (but unpaid)
contractual interest (which may also include
reasonable additional compensation for early
termination) is treated as consistent with this
criterion if the fair value of the prepayment
feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

2.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. BASFHHEKRE)
(g) Financial instruments (Continued) (g €@ A(E)
(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement (i) 7 BEREZEE)
(Continued)
Financial assets - Subsequent measurement THEE-HEFENEE:

and gains and losses:

Financial assets at FVPL

ERAFEFTABEZNS®M
3

Financial assets at amortised
cost

REBEHEAAGFTENEREE

Debt investments at FVOCI

BAFEFAEMEE KRS
MEBKRE

Equity investments at FVOCI

BAFEFAEMEE KRS
AT 1R B

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains
and losses, excluding any interest or dividend income, are
recognised in profit or loss.
ZEBEEBBUAAFEFE - FBam TEEEWNFHE K
BREWA HEBERER-

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by
impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain
or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
ZEEEBBGIAEBERMNBE ZRBHEKAGE - HEBSEER
BB BHEAER -FERA IIEERERERERER -
HARTERANEMNRERBERRNERER -

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest
income calculated using the effective interest method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI.
On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are
reclassified to profit or loss.
ZEEEBRBGRREATEAE - ERERMNXZEZFENNE
WA ERKRERBEAMBERERER R 3B
REMGERRBER RELEEIAK HtviEakad R
thakEREDER > EE R -

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends
are recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCl and
are never reclassified to profit or loss.
ZEEERERATEFE - REEBERTEI /KA
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Classification and subsequent measurement
(Continued)

Financial liabilities - Classification, subsequent
measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured
at amortised cost or FVPL. A financial liability
is classified as at FVPL if it is classified as
held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is
designated as such on initial recognition.
Financial liabilities at FVPL are measured at
fair value and net gains and losses, including
any interest expense, are recognised in
profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Interest
expense and foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain or loss on derecognition is also
recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire, or it transfers
the rights to receive the contractual cash
flows in a transaction in which substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and it does not retain control of
the financial asset.

2.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii) Derecognition (Continued)

(iv)

Financial assets (Continued)

The Group enters into transactions whereby
it transfers assets recognised in its statement
of financial position, but retains either all
or substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the transferred assets. In these cases, the
transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability
when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Group
also derecognises a financial liability when its
terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different, in
which case a new financial liability based on
the modified terms is recognised at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the
difference between the carrying amount
extinguished and the consideration paid
(including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed) is recognised in profit or
loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of financial position when, and
only when, the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and
it intends either to settle them on a net basis
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets arising from leases over
leasehold properties where the Group is not the
registered owner of the property interest (see
Note 2(i)) and items of plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses (see Note 2(j)(ii)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment, less
their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

Properties leased for  Over the period of the

own use lease term
Leasehold Over the shorter of the
improvements terms of the lease or 5
years
Furniture, fixtures 5 years

and equipment

2.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Both the useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

As a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of
a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on
a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
that rate cannot be readily determined, using a
relevant incremental borrowing rate. After initial
recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated
using the effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or rate
are not included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the
right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of
costs to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site
on which it is located, discounted to their present
less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see Notes 2(h) and 2(j)(ii)).

value,

The initial fair value of refundable rental deposits
is accounted for separately from the right-of-use
assets in accordance with the accounting policy
applicable to investments in debt securities carried
at amortised cost (see Notes 2(g)(i) and 2(j)(i)). Any
difference between the initial fair value and the
nominal value of the deposits is accounted for as
additional lease payments made and is included in
the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in
this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration
for a lease that is not originally provided for in
the lease contract (“lease modification”) that
is not accounted for as a separate lease. In this
case the lease liability is remeasured based on
the revised lease payments and lease term using
a revised discount rate at the effective date of
the modification. The only exceptions are rent
concessions that occurred as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and met the conditions
set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16 Leases. In
such cases, the Group has taken advantage of the
practical expedient not to assess whether the rent
concessions are lease modifications, and recognised
the change in consideration as negative variable
lease payments in profit or loss in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the rent
concessions occurred.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in ‘property,
plant and equipment’ and presents lease liabilities
separately in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In the consolidated statement of financial position,
the current portion of long-term lease liabilities
is determined as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance
for expected credit losses (“ECLs"”) on the
following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other receivables and debt
investments at amortised cost); and

- contract assets defined in HKFRS 15 (see
Note 2(1)).

Other financial assets measured at fair value,
including listed securities, unlisted investment
funds and debt securities measured at FVPL,
are not subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and
other receivables and contract assets:
effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition or an approximation
thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(). Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information about
past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible
default events over the expected lives
of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on
these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the reporting
date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises a loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECLs unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition,
in which case the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk (“SICR")

In assessing whether the credit risk of a
financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date
with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event
occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to
pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held); or
(ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due.
The Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

2.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(). Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (“SICR")
(Continued)

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either
an individual basis or a collective basis. When
the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics,
such as past due status and credit risk ratings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(j)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (“SICR")
(Continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date
to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECL amount is recognised as
an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account,
except for investments in debt securities that
are measured at FVOCI (recycling), for which
the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
the fair value reserve (recycling).

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance
with Note 2(s)(vi) is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based
on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.

2.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(j): Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
(Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; or

—  the disappearance of an active market
for a security because of financial
difficulties of the issuer.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(j)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, an
impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets;

- Goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the
Company’'s statement of financial
position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

2.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(). Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)  Impairment of non-current assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit). A portion
of the carrying amount of a corporate
asset (for example, head office
building) is allocated to an individual
cash-generating unit if the allocation
can be done on a reasonable and
consistent basis, or to the smallest group
of cash-generating units if otherwise.

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generated unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit (or group
of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or
value in use (if determinable).
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(j)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(i)  Impairment of non-current assets (Continued)
- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss
in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34 Interim Financial
Reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see Notes 2(j)(i) and (ii)).
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2022 3R

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

(U

Inventories
Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the
ordinary course of business.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period
the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see Note 2(s)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under
the payment terms set out in the contract. Contract
assets are assessed for expected credit losses (ECL)
in accordance with the policy set out in Note 2(j)(i)
and are reclassified to receivables when the right
to the consideration has become unconditional (see
Note 2(m)).
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
ZEZZFFTZA=T—HLEHFE

a=

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

(m])

Contract assets and contract liabilities
(Continued)

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue (see Note
2(s)). A contract liability would also be recognised
if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised (see Note
2(m)).

For a single contract with the customer, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets
and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are
not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method (see
Note 2(s)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration.
A right to receive consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue
has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset (see Note

2(1).

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component are initially measured at their
transaction price. Trade receivables that contain
a significant financing component and other
receivables are initially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs. All receivables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method and including an allowance for
credit losses (see Note 2(j)(i)).
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2022 3R

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
ECLs in accordance with the policy set out in (see
Note 2(j)(i)).

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. The
par value of the shares issued and fully paid is
recognised in the share capital account. Any excess
of proceeds from a new issue of shares (net of any
incremental costs directly attributable to the new
issue) over the par value of the shares issued is
recognised in the share premium account.

Employee benefits
(i) Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year
in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present

values.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥5 ¥ 2< Bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022

a=

2.

e

=
as A TEEN

F+-A=+-HILLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in a
capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the polynomial
model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to
meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will
vest.

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only
due to not achieving vesting conditions that
relate to the market price of the Company’'s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is included in the amount
recognised in share capital for the shares
issued) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained earnings).
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2022 3R

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

(q)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

REBEBRZERERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

87 5 ¥R % B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_ "+ _A=+-RL#FE

2. BEABHEKRGAE)

(p)

(q)

BE®F (&)

(iii) #& 1L %5 7
g =Rl NN SRR o gl
AT IR AR A - DA K i AN 5 B RE
RF RS #E 1L R A R E A K
AE(UREERE) T AR -

IECE!
AEEFEHREREEHHEMET
MBEEERABEMNES - EHHREA
MEEHBEEELRRBENEHTHE
BHEANER BEEEMEekENL
EEERSTHEIANMEMAER  H
HERES BN EEMES K
SRERERSTER -

EHRHBERRAFERRBRKA
RECHITHXERESHRELI LD
TR EAENEREAN A
MEREFERMNBRENETMAR -

EXHRBAEERBED B @Al K H
MERRERKUEEZEREL BRI
ZRARKEEERBBEEVEREN
FHERMEEERBENTRE
MONEZR - BELERBEEDLANAA
R AR A B IR 8 18 A AR SOR R B
EXE-

179



180

OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥5 ¥ 2< Bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022

a=

2.

TR g S S E R EE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(q)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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2022 3R

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(q)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the
Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation
or settlement of the carrying amount of the
assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantially enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥5 ¥ 2< Bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_E__F+-A=Z+-HLEFE

&

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(q)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separately
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities,
if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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2022 3R

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(r)  Provisions, contingent liabilities and onerous

contracts

(i)

(ii)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure
required to settle a provision is expected to be
reimbursed by another party, a separate asset
is recognised for any expected reimbursement
that would be virtually certain. The amount
recognised for the reimbursement is limited
to the carrying amount of the provision.

Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the Group
has a contract under which the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations under
the contract exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received from the contract.
Provisions for onerous contracts are measured
at the present value of the lower of the
expected cost of terminating the contract and
the net cost of continuing with the contract.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
ZEZZFFTZA=T—HLEHFE

a=

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the sale of goods, the provision
of services or other sources (including securities
trading and investments) in the ordinary course of
the Group’s business.

The Group is the principal for its revenue
transactions and recognises revenue on a gross
basis. In determining whether the Group acts as
a principal or as an agent, it considers whether it
obtains control of the products before they are
transferred to the customers. Control refers to
the Group'’s ability to direct the use of and obtain
substantially all of the remaining benefits from the
products.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer
takes possession of and accepts the products.
If the products are a partial fulfilment of a
contract covering other goods and/or services,
then the amount of revenue recognised
is an appropriate proportion of the total
transaction price under the contract, allocated
between all the goods and services promised
under the contract on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.
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2022 3R

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(s)] Revenue and other income (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Investment and financial advisory services
income

Depending on the nature of the services
and the contract terms, investment advisory
services fees and financial advisory services
fees are recognised in profit or loss over time
using a method that depicts the Group’s
performance, or at a point in time when the
service is completed.

Asset management fees

Asset management fees include periodic
management fees calculated based on assets
under management and performance-based
fee. The fees are recognised progressively
over time using a method that depicts the
Group's performance, to the extent that it is
highly probable that a significant reversal in
the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur.

Income from underwriting and placing of
securities

The Group provides placing or underwriting
services to customers for their fund raising
activities in equity and debt capital markets.
Revenue in respect of the commission on
underwriting and placing of securities is
recognised when the relevant placing or
underwriting activities are completed.
Accordingly, the revenue is recognised at a
point in time.

Dividends

- Dividend income from unlisted
investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established.

- Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of
the investment goes ex-dividend.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(s} Revenue and other income (Continued)

(vi) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost or
FVOCI (recycling) that are not credit-impaired,
the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset (see Note 2(j)(i)).

(vii) Realised/unrealised gains or losses from

financial assets at FVPL

Net gains (losses) on financial assets at FVPL
are recognised on the transaction dates when
the relevant contract notes are exchanged
and unrealised fair value gains (losses) on
financial assets at FVPL are recognised in the
period in which they arise.

(viii) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as
income in profit or loss on a systematic basis
in the same periods in which the expenses
are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in
profit or loss over the useful life of the asset
by way of reduced depreciation expense.

2.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

(u)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences
relating to that foreign operation is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss
on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

(v)

Borrowing costs (Continued)

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of

the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities

that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when

substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

(b)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

the entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

2.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

(w)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:
(Continued)

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’'s various lines of
business and geographical locations.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Segment reporting (Continued)
Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Group’'s accounting
policies, management has used its judgements and
made assumptions of the effects of uncertain future
events on the financial statements. The most significant
use of judgements and key assumptions concerning the
future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
period are described below.

(a) Loss allowances on financial assets at amortised
cost
In determining expected credit loss for financial
assets measured at amortised cost, the most
significant judgements relate to defining what is
considered to be a significant increase in credit
risk and in making assumptions and estimates to
incorporate relevant information about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of economic
conditions. A high degree of uncertainty is involved
in making estimations using assumptions that
are highly subjective and very sensitive to the risk
factors. Management reviews the loss allowance
on a regular basis. Changes in these assumptions
and estimates could materially affect the result of
the assessment and it may be necessary to make
additional impairment charge to profit or loss.

2.
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3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(b)

Fair value of financial instruments

The Group holds financial instruments that are not
traded or quoted in active markets. The Group uses
its judgement to select the appropriate methods
and make assumptions based on market conditions
existing at the end of each reporting period to
estimate the fair value of such financial instruments
classified as FVPL. Valuation techniques include the
market approach using prices and other relevant
information generated by market transactions
involving identical or comparable assets or
liabilities such as net asset values as provided by
fund administrators, broker quotes, last transacted
price and discounted cash flow approach which
utilises inputs such as projected cash flow and
discount rate. Broker quotes obtained from the
pricing sources (such as pricing agencies or bond/
debt market makers) may be indicative and not
executable or binding. The Group would exercise
judgement and estimates on the quantity and
quality of pricing sources uses. Although best
estimate is used in estimating fair values, there are
inherent limitations in any valuation technique.
Estimated fair values may differ from the values
that would have been used if a readily available
market existed.
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3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(c)

Income tax

Determining income tax provisions involves
judgement on the future tax treatment of certain
transactions and significant estimation are required
in determining the provision for income tax.
Management carefully evaluates tax implications
of transactions and tax provisions are set up
accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions
is reconsidered periodically to take into account
all changes in tax legislations. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for tax losses not yet used
and temporary deductible differences. As those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the unused tax
credits can be utilised, management’s judgement is
required to assess the probability of future taxable
profits. Management’'s assessment is constantly
reviewed and additional deferred tax assets are
recognised if it becomes probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset
to be recovered. The Group has not recognised
deferred income tax assets in respect of estimated
tax losses carried forward disclosed in Note 27(b)
as there is no evidence that future taxable profits
will be available.
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3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(d)

Determination of consolidation scope

All facts and circumstances must be taken into
consideration in the assessment of whether the
Group, as an investor, controls the investee. The
principle of control includes three elements: (i)
power over the investee; (ii) exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from involvement with the
investee; and (iii) the ability to use power over the
investee to affect the amount of investors’ returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

For structured entities, the Group assesses whether
the combination of investments it holds, if any,
together with its remuneration creates exposure
to variability of returns from the activities of the
structured entities that is of such significance
indicating that the Group is a principal. The
structured entities shall be consolidated if the
Group acts in the role of principal.
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. m

(a) Revenue (a)
The principal activities of the Group are asset
management, provision of investment and financial
advisory services, provision of securities underwriting
and placing services, trading of wines and beverage,
and securities trading and investments.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by major products or service lines is as
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RABPHRS
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AEEFEXHREESR RHE
BREMMBHARSE REIHFE
HEEERE BEERKMES
AEBEHFEBERKRE -
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O &g (N

follows:
2022 2021
—_E2-= —EFE - —4F
HK$000 HK$'000
FTET FH& T
Revenue from contracts with customers & 78 B % 3R &5 % B 55 15 55 &
within the scope of HKFRS 15 BREEFNEHARA
Disaggregated by major products or service ¥z = B & f =k iR 5 4R
lines gl o
— Asset management - BEER 28,274 85,450
— Investment and financial advisory —BRERMBENR
services AR %% 531 4,030
— Income from underwriting and placing - REBHFBREREE
of securities Z WA 1,560 =
— Trading of wines and beverage - EEAEBRRM 29,341 46,509
S i s O T e T Mgk L | 59,706 135,989
Revenue from other sources H fth I & RIR
Income from debt investments: RKEEBHERE WA :
— Interest income from debt investments —REBHEKAFEZER
at amortised cost ®EMB WA 145 3,181
— Income from debt investments at fair —BAFEFABRZZEB
value through profit or loss ®E WA 950 9,992
1,095 13,173
Change in fair value of financial assets at RAFEFABRGRZEREE
fair value through profit or loss NEEEE (30,156) (69,502)
Dividend income B 8 WA - 6,200
Gain on disposal of debt investments at HERBHKAGFEZERKR
amortised cost =l & - 464
Loss on disposal of financial assets at fair HERAFEFAEZZSR
value through profit or loss BEEZERE = (13,092)
LN MR - pl i el | St e R i (29,061)  (62,757)
Total e 30,645 73,232
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 4. SR DB E (&)
(a) Revenue (Continued) (a) Wz (E&)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with RN E LR WSS 5
customers by the timing of revenue recognition ZEREAEHWEHE BRI T4 -
and by geographic markets is disclosed in Note
4(c).
The Group has applied practical expedient in HRASEERREZSEERNK
paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to exempt the BERENVBHEARTREEER
disclosure of revenue expected to be recognised in WA MEXFEEEEEARE
the future arising from contracts with customers in LZSRIENKBAEYEE HAE
existence at the reporting date to its income from EEAEAUBHREERFEISHSE
investment and financial advisory services and asset NIBNEREE 2 AR
management as the Group recognises revenue BHRBRERHELEKRBEEFRERN
at the amount to which it has a right to invoice, i &
which corresponds directly with the value to the
customer of the Group’s performance completed
to date.
The Group has applied the practical expedient HRBHNEERZE —FXUAN
in paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to exempt the REMTFEREAN o WA
disclosure of revenue expected to be recognised in SECERBAEEMBHEELENFEIS
the future arising from contracts with customers in FEIVIBNERBEREZG B2
existence at the reporting date to its revenue from FEREERHRNBRERHELAHESD
sales of wines and beverage as the performance BN B 2 WaR o
obligation is part of a contract that has an original
expected duration of one year or less.
The Group will recognise the expected revenue EAAETHSROBEANRKFIE
in the future when the remaining performance TR AEEBERKBEREBHK
obligations under the contracts are satisfied (see A (2 BB 5 2(s)) ©
Note 2(s)).
(b) Liabilities related to contract with customers (b) EEHEEFEANERE
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TAET
Contract liabilities BHEE
~ Billings in advance of - BEEREHREN
performance in respect of BAKREE
asset management activity 1,548 9,169
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 4. BRNEBBIE(Z)
(b) Liabilities related to contract with customers (b) BEEEZEFEINAEHE)
(Continued)
Movements in contract liabilities EHNEEBEZZE
2022 2021
—E=-= —g = =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
Balance at 1 January N—A—Bz&#% 9,169 12,675
Decrease in contract liabilities as FANRARFENFTAGLNEED
a result of recognising revenue WABEHNEERD
during the year that was included
in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year (7,621) (12,675)

Increase in contract liabilities as a EEEEETINTENRZER

result of billings in advance of aRAaBEMm
asset management activity - 9,169
Balance at 31 December Rt-_A=+—RBz2&% 1,548 9,169

When the Group receives fee income before asset
management activity commences this will give rise
to contract liabilities at the start of the contract,
until the revenue recognised on the project exceeds
the amount of fee income received.

The amount of billings in advance of asset
management activity is expected to be recognised
as income within one year.

EASEEEEEETDRALIERE
RBBAR ERERHNRERELESLN
BE EEMERNAERRDEBEBAK
a8 RUWA -

BEEERPNBREXETHE—F
ANERSWEA -
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(c)

Segment reporting

The Group’s executive directors are the chief
operation decision makers (“CODM") as they
collectively make strategic decisions towards the
Group's operations based on nature of business.

In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the CODM
for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has presented
the following reportable segments:

(a) asset management

(b) investment and financial advisory services
(¢) underwriting and placing of securities

(d) securities trading and investments

(e) trading of wines and beverage
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4.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 4. BRABEWS(E)
Segment revenue and results D EBU = R EE
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers RERPE QR e %R U = A
by the timing of revenue recognition, as well as gl BRAEER _T-_—_FR-F
information regarding the Group's reportable segments T+ -_A=+—BLFEMNERS
as provided to the CODM for the purposes of resources @E EoBMERRIEMEEELLERERE
allocation and assessment of segment performance for REEBAESERAZ2H D HBHE K5
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are set R o
out below.
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE—_F_-_—_F+-A=+—-HULFE
Investment
and financial Underwriting Securities Trading of
Asset advisory  and placing of trading and wines and
management services securities investments beverage Total
RERHHE REAH RHEHE BEER
BEEE BARE REE RRE HmER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThAx AL TAx TAT TR TAT
Revenue from contractswith ~ REEFAHHKE
customers
- Atapoint i time -RE-BHE - - 1,560 - 29,341 30,901
- Over time -BH-RER 28,274 531 - - - 28,805
28,274 531 1,560 - 29,341 59,706
Revenue from other sources REEAREN NS - - - (29,061) - (29,061)
Revenue (loss) from external RENBEFHOUE
customers (B8 28,274 531 1,560 (29,061) 29,341 30,645
Inter-segment revenue 7 HEN R - - - - 1,573 1,573
Reportable segment revenue (loss) T 2 & 4 % (18 28,274 531 1,560 (29,061) 30,914 32,218
Elimination of inter-segment revenue 7 25 8 4 & %1 34 - - = = (1,573) (1,573)
Consolidated revenue FEUE 28,274 531 1,560 (29,061) 29,341 30,645
Reportable segment profit (loss) T2 &5 HHF (F#E) 238 526 1,560 (58,300) (1,118) (57,094)
Elimination of inter-segment profit 7 2 8 & 71 £ (34)
Reportable segment loss derived ~ REREENHEP R
from Group's external customers &£ A AR T 28
and joint venture PHEE (57,128)
Other income EMA 7,229
Unallocated corporate and other ~ RAR AR RE T
expenses (22,319)
Finance costs BBER (5,993)
Loss before taxation BRAER (78,211)
Income tax EH -
Loss for the year FERE (718,211)
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4.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

REZEFEZERABRAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_ "+ _A=+-RL#FE

4. BRNPIWS (&)
7 AR i e AR (E)
BE-_FE-_—F+-A=+—-HAILFE

Investment
and finandial Securities Trading of
Asset advisory trading and wines and
management services investments beverage Total
RERHH #AHEE SR
EEER AARE kkE  RHmEE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET TET TET
Revenue from contracts with REEF &M K&
customers:
- Ata point in time -RE-BEBH - - - 46,509 46,509
- Qver time — 18— B 85,450 4,030 = = 89,480
85,450 4,030 - 46,509 135,989
Revenue from other sources X B & fft 3 IR #9 Y & - - (62,757) - (62,757)
Reportable segment TERS HhE(ER)
revenue (loss) 85,450 4,030 (62,757) 46,509 73,232
Segment profit (loss) DEEM(ER) 30,481 4,030 (130,722) 2,119 (94,092)
Other income Hiap e A 2,902
Unallocated corporateand A AT A RE M % H
other expenses (16,028)
Finance costs MBER (10,063)
Loss before taxation BHAIER (117,281)
Income tax e (5,341)
Loss for the year FEEE (122,622)
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4.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
Segment revenue and results (Continued)

Revenue is allocated to the reportable segments with
reference to revenue and income generated by those
segments. Inter-segment sales are priced with reference
to prices charged to external parties for similar orders.

Segment profit (loss) represents the profit earned by or
loss from each segment without allocation of certain
other income, finance costs and unallocated corporate
and other expenses. This is the information reported to
the CODM for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment.

Segment assets and liabilities
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and
liabilities by reportable and operating segments:

As at 31 December 2022

2022 Annual Report

BRAPBIWS (&)
7 AR iR e AR (E)
WE T2 EDBMELE WaE RIRAR
TEEAERIE - DHBEHENZ2E
ABUTEWERINBALTNERMEE -

o EE A (BB & 2 BMRER 28 M =%
ELXZER HEYEFAETEMKA
MBERAERSBE QA REMTH -k
DREBEERREZRZER - NAE
DEERNFEREA -

PHEERERE
NTAEEREEEPBE 2 AEEEE
KaBzoi:

R-E-_—_F+-FA=+—-H

Investment
and financial ~ Underwriting Securities Trading of
Asset advisory  and placing  trading and wines and
management services  of securities  investments beverage Total
RERME BHaH E5EE BEE
EEEE i # Bk % kEE& kRE RHBREE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAR TAR TAR TAR TR
ASSETS BE
Segment assets PUEE 15,880 = = 136,958 15,329 168,167
Unallocated items: K2 BEE .
Property, plant and nE - BERIE
equipment 15,012
Deposits, prepayments ¢~ B FER
and Eth R
other receivables 3,815
Cash and cash ReRREEEE
equivalents B 230,568
Total assets BERE 417,562
LIABILITIES a8f
Segment liabilities PHEE 1,963 = = 54,007 4,122 60,092
Unallocated items: ~ K2 EEE .
Other payables Eth R RIE 4,818
Borrowings LS 46,861
Lease Liabilities MEBE 12,151
Total liabilities EELAE 123,922
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)
As at 31 December 2021
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_ "+ _A=+-RL#FE

4. BRNPIWS (&)
DTHEERBEE)
R-E-—-F+ZHA=+—-H

Investment
and financial Securities Trading of
Asset advisory trading and wines and
management services investments beverage Total
RERRH FHEE BE
BEER HARE k%E RY¥REE @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET AT TAT TET
ASSETS BE
Segment assets PREE 13,082 S 199,725 9,223 222,030
Unallocated items: AAPEER:
Property, plant and equipment  #1 %+ B & R & 5,163
Deposits, prepaymentsand &% BRHER
other receivables EfENEE 4,470
Cash and cash equivalents BehBeSHEER 313,006
Total assets BELAE 544,669
LIABILITIES g8f&
Segment liabilities FHEE 14,994 - 62,611 31 77,636
Unallocated items: RABESR:
Other payables EthEMERE 2,940
Borrowings B 85,768
Lease Liabilities MEEE 5,532
Total liabilities AELE 171,876
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4.  REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)
For the purpose of monitoring segment performances
and allocating resources between segments:

e all assets are allocated to reportable and operating
segments, other than certain property, plant and
equipment, certain deposits, prepayments and
other receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

o all liabilities are allocated to reportable and
operating segments, other than certain other
payables, borrowings and certain lease liabilities.

Other segment information
Amounts included in measure of segment profit or loss
or segment assets:

For the year ended 31 December 2022

4. BRAPBIWS (&)
THEERBEMHE)

2022 Annual Report

REEBEDPHBEZOBRARERDE :

s FMABEENH

=

IEE

ﬁ TUWE BE K&

R ROIR ROE b R KRR

ﬁi&ﬁ FEEB KR

s FMBRESR

HERBRRI -

Hft o #BE R

B RE=E

SRREEDHH

WA FE@%H%E

B RET

BRERFESIHBEMNIBEXDIBEE

Z KA

BE—_S-_—_HFf+-F=+—-—HLFE

Investment
and financial - Underwriting Securities  Trading of
Asset advisory  andplacing  tradingand  winesand
management services  of securities  investments beverage  Unallocated Total
RERME  BHEH  RHHE BEE
BEER  RARH REE kRE RUMEE APE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn TExn TEn TiEn TEn
Additions to property, ~ ¥1% - BE R
plant and equipment RERE - - - - 8,295 15,994 24,289
Depreciation of property, 1% K& &
plantand equipment  HEFE 3 - - 318 996 5,012 6,359
Impaiment losseson £ REERE
financial assets E#& 781 - - 24,326 - - 25,107
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Other segment information (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021
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4. BRNPIWS (&)
Htn #ER(E)
BE-_F_-_—F+-A=+—-HAILFE

Investment
and financial Securities Trading of
Asset advisory trading and wines and
management services  investments beverage  Unallocated Total
RERMH ErEE BB
EEER # AR % kEE RHMEE APE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TET TEL TET TET TEL
Additions to property, nE BER
plant and equipment RERE 10 - 705 - 2 717
Depreciation of property, nE -BER
plant and equipment RENE 25 - 602 6 5,439 6,072
Impairment losses on TREENE
financial assets BE - - 3,958 - - 3,958
Provision for post-completion & & & {R % f&
guarantee - - 58,565 - - 58,565
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
Information about major customers
The Group's customer base is diversified and includes
two (202 1: six) customers with whom the value of
transactions have exceeded 10% (2021: 10%) of the
Group's revenues as follows:

2022 Annual Report

BRABEWS(E)
BEREFEEFZER
REBEFPHEZT ERM(ZETZ—
FRNBBEPZRZBEHBAEE B
WI10% (ZZTZ—F :10%) r H I W T :

Note 2022 2021

Mizx Z=—T=Z=ZF Z—T-_—%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TH T

Customer A BEFEA (i) 19,750 46,400

Customer B =FB (ii) 10,130 13,739

Customer C BRFC (ii) - 13,000

Customer D EFED (i) - 9,609

Customer E =FPE (M, Gii) = 9,417

Customer F BEPF (i) - 8,532

Notes: (T
(i) Revenue from asset management business segment, ) KEBEEEEK B ZKRT KREEE
calculated in terms of assets under management. EitHE -

(i)  Revenue from trading of wines and beverage business
segment.

(i) Revenue from securities trading and investments business
segment.

iy, XEBAELORKMREBEEBY B2 U -

(iy KEBHFEBEBRREEZB DI 2= -
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 4. BRDEBBIE(E)

Geographical information ih 38 & ¥

The following table sets out information about the TERHENBEBOAEBERAIBREFLE K
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from HmRINAEEME BEEZEARR
external customers and (ii) the Group’s property, plant S8 P Az ER(ETERDHEED
and equipment and interest in joint venture (“specified BV EER - BFEAMEMNETRR
non-current assets”). The geographical location of REEBRBESIXNEMHNE - BT IER
customers is based on the location at which the services BEEMNHBUENEREEMNERM
were provided or the goods delivered. The geographical EMYE BMELEZEEMS)NEERN
location of the specified non-current assets is based MNEMEERAIZEZRME) °

on the physical location of the asset, in the case of
property, plant and equipment, and the location of
operations, in case of interest in joint venture.

Revenues from external

customers Specified non-current assets
REIBEFZWZH BEFRBEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E--F —ZFT-—F —E-——F —ZT-—=%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHE T TR T T
Hong Kong &8 30,645 73,232 22,326 5,192
The People’s Republic & ZE A R &£
of China (“PRC") (@l - - 5,135 391
30,645 73,232 27,461 5,583
5. OTHER INCOME 5. Hfthir A
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—fF
HK$000 HK$'000
TEx FH& T
Bank Interest income RAT A B A 178 169
Income from termination of RERIEFBEREZ

memorandum of understanding WA (R M 5E32(b))

(see Note 32(b)) 6,386 3,201
Government grants (note (i)) B AT %8 B (Bt 53X G)) 468 -
Gain (loss) on disposal of property, HEME BELEEREZ

plant and equipment W (EE) 120 (469)
Sundry income MIE U A 1,097 1

8,249 2,902
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Note (i)

2022 Annual Report

5. OTHER INCOME (Continued) 5. Hfhlt A(#&)
BT 5 (i)
In 2022, the Group successfully applied for funding support from RZEZ—F AEEKNBBFEBFANTH
the Employment Support Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund, SRRSO ERERES TR ] E
set up by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative BB BNIXUZEREERAT MEEREH
Region. The purpose of the funding is to provide financial support BxE REVESREMNES - BIEH
to enterprises to retain their employees who would otherwise MiER AEEREXHEBHEAIGEHEL R
be made redundant. Under the terms of the grant, the Group is HAIEHMEEARINEETLIER -
required not to make redundancies during the subsidy period and
to spend all the funding on paying wages to the employees.
6. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 6. PRI AEIESE
Loss before taxation is arrived after charging (crediting): BREAEERIRGIA) T EIERE
5
(a) Finance costs (a) K ER
2022 2021
—E2=-= - —fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEFE = 1,093
Interest on other borrowings HiEENE 4,881 7,300
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEMNER 304 381
Interest on amount due to JE 1~ A Bk 5 SRIE A R
a related party 164 -
Other borrowing costs H B EK A 644 1,289
5,993 10,063
(b) Staff costs (b) B I A
2022 2021
—F=-= 2 —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET
Directors’ emoluments (Note 8) EE50 2 (M E8)
— fees and other emoluments - e KEMHS 3,630 3,600
Other staff costs HtmBE THRX
— salaries, allowances and bonus —F & EEERIE 17,864 17,082
— retirement benefits scheme —iR K@ A E 2'“ =
contributions 750 633
22,244 21818
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_ "+ _A=+-RL#FE

6. PFRiAIEIE(E)

Other items (c) HMIEER
2022 2021
—E=-= —_E-—fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FH& T
Depreciation charge (Note 11) e HEET)
— owned property, plant and -BEVE BERZRE
equipment 338 307
— right-of-use assets —FREEE 6,021 5,765
6,359 6,072
Impairment losses BEREREE)REEE
recognised (reversed)
— debt investments —EBEE 24,326 4,535
— trade and other receivables —BYWESEKREREM
JE W BR 18 781 (577)
25,107 3,958
Auditors’ remunerations %2R B &
— audit services — % SR 7% 1,228 1,196
— other services —H fth AR 75 170 170
1,398 1,366
Legal and professional expenses FEREXER 6,247 6,874
Commission fee relating to asset HEEEREBEAEHA
management business Hes& 8,400 29,600
Cost of inventories (Note 15) T8 KA (K EE15)
— cost of sales — HEMKR 27,059 42,191
- general and administrative - R RITHXH
expenses 1,539 -
28,598 42,191
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BHE-_T-

7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 7. NG 6EaKEMEZEBRRBZXZAMNER
OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE 5w
INCOME
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or a) REcEEREMEZEWERAN
loss and other comprehensive income represents: BIEE -
2022 2021
—_E-= 2 = —&E
HK$000 HK$ 000
THERT FHET
Current tax BN 2 B 1|/
- Hong Kong Profits Tax - EBFEH
Provision for the year FERE - 5,341
- 5,341
(@) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the @) BEREHENEBERES
Cayman lIslands and the British Virgin Islands, BAR B R AR K& E H A
the Group is not subject to any income tax in Mz RDEE R B EA G
these two jurisdictions. e

F+-A=+-HILLEE

2022 Annual Report

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
has been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements as the Group has no
estimated assessable profits for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

For the year ended 31 December 2021,
Kong Profits Tax of the qualified entity of the
Group is calculated in accordance with the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime. Under the
two-tiered profits tax rate regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of a qualifying group
entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%.
The profits of other group entities in Hong
Kong not qualifying for the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at
the flat rate of 16.5%.

Hong

b) ERAKERBE_FT_——
TZRA=+T—HILFELEM
EL R 2 N =l e
R RBERBNEHEE -

BHE-_T-_—F+=ZA=+—
BEFE AEEEAERER
MEBMESH HRBERSHB
KA ETE o RIEF G B
KRB GEREEERA
B2E BB T AE K %K825%
BB ﬁﬁiﬁﬂz@%;‘%ﬁmﬂ
Al EZ165%HB B T HF 4
K5 mmwﬁ%um%l%
BHMEEOFNEKESERE
E R 16.5% B °
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BE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLEE
7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 7. NGB ahEMEZEBEWR XA KR
OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE swmE)
INCOME (Continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) REAMEFEZHREBIHESS
accounting loss at applicable tax rates: BiEZHER:
2022 2021
—Eg=-= - - —
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx T T
Loss before taxation i A& 18 (78,211) (117,281)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, PFrFiAIEIE 2 BEFIE @ &
calculated at the rates applicable to % B 7] A # & 2 % % i@ A
profits in the jurisdictions concerned ®{ X+ & (11,743) (19,654)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A/ 2z X HHHBE 2 &
for tax purpose & 1,824 530
Tax effect of income not taxable for HEZRH 2 WA BB Z &
tax purpose & (828) (2,469)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AR BEEBEYUREAZ &
e 11,179 26,933
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary RER LR Z BRI 2
differences FE (432) 11
Statutory tax concession EEMIBES = (10)
Income tax expense P15 B 32 = 5,341
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8. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8. EFHE
The emoluments paid or payable to the directors were ENSENES 2HFMAOT :
as follows:
Executive directors Non-executive directors Independent non-executive directors
#iEE FufEs BUfUGES
Chang ~ Tso Siu Lun Lo Wing Yan Total
Feng Hai WeiBin  WuGuangze  Jiao Shuge  Zheng Xiaosu Tat Joel Alan Li Xindan William 2002

) i RRE EHE LI BEH Eih I BAE Z®-ZEAG
HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOO0  HKSO00
TER TER TER TER TER TER TER TER TER TER

(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢) (Note d) (Note f)
(Wita) (B &b) UED) (i) ()
Fegs e = = = = = L} 210 40 10 960
Other emolumens Epe
Salaries £ - - 2640 - - - - - - 2640
Discretionary bonus miEes - - - - - - - - - -
Retirement benefit scheme RIAEAHE - - 18 - - 1 5 - - 3
- - 2,658 - - 2 0 0 10 3630
Evecutive directors Non-executive directors Independent non-executive directors
§17gs FHnEs g 4 H
Chang ~ TsoSiuLun Fei John Lo Wing Yan Total
Feng Hai WeiBin ~ WuGuangze  JiaoShuge  Zheng Xiaosu Tat Joel Alan Xiang Li Xindan William 2001
5§ ) REE EHE g0 gz Bk £ 20ft EXC 3C-FEj
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
Thn T Tin TEn T TiEn TiEn TiEn T TiEn TEn
(Note a) (Note b) (Notee) (Note )
(Hita) (H3th) (Hite) (W)
Fess Bt - - - - - "W yLi| 9l 0 119 90
Other emolumens LpHe
Salaries §¢ - - 2640 - - - - - - = 2640
Discretionary bonus Bk = = S = = = = - = = =
Retirement benefit scheme FYENIEE - - 18 - - 1 - - - - El

S = 26%8 = = 52 40 9 U 119 3,600
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
emoluments of independent non-executive directors
shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company.

During both years, no emoluments were paid or payable
by the Group to any directors as an inducement to
join, or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office. There was no arrangement under
which a director has waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration.

Notes:

(a)  Mr. Wu Guangze was appointed as an executive director on
8 March 2021.

(b)  Mr. Jiao Shuge was appointed as a non-executive director on
8 March 2021.

() Ms. Zheng Xiaosu resigned as an non-executive director on
31 March 2023.

(d) Mr. Chang Tat Joel resigned as an independent non-
executive director on 23 December 2022.

(e)  Mr. Fei John Xiang retired as an independent non-executive
director on 17 May 2021.

(f) Dr. Lo Wing Yan William was appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 2 July 2021.

REBEBRZERERAR
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EWE (&

FRATEETMEREREERLARAR
AEEEHHRGME - LB 3EH
TEENHERRFEETARAESTH
B E -

RBMEFE AEEHESFHEMNE
MEZEZME  AESRSHE AL
AXREEROBERIERBEREE - B
BESHEXRERETAHFS ILHE-

REEAER-_T-_—F=ANAEZ
TRARITES-

EHEEER -_TS-_—F=ANAEZ
EAFATESE-

BN ELLTR _E-_=F=A=+—AH
BAFNITES -

WMiEHEER _E-_—F+=-A=+=
HEEBYIENTES -

EAXER_ZT-_—FRATHERAE
BYFRITES

EXCHEt+TR-_E-_—F+tA_BEZ
ERBIYIENITES-
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INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, one is a director of the Company (2021:
one director) whose emoluments are disclosed in Note
8 above. The emoluments of the remaining four (2021:
four) individuals for the year ended 31 December 2022
were as follows:

REHH AL

AEBAZEERME2EANALT H
PN AAXRAERE(ZTE=—F: —
NER) - FE2ME&E R XK F8HE
B HE-_T-_—_F+-RAR=+—81
FE - HTHOU(ZZT=-—F:@O%)A
TZBMEnT

2022 2021

—E=-= —E-—%F

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FEIT

Salaries and other benefits e kH e R 6,601 6,600
Contributions to retirement benefits B KAE A 5T B4 =%

schemes 72 72

6,673 6,672

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

mEF M ER AT AR :

2022 2021
—Eg=-= —E-—F
No. of No. of
employees employees

BEAY BB AR

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000% 7T 0 0
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7% 7T & 1,500,000 7% JT 2 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7% 7T & 2,000,000 7% 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7% 7T % 2,500,000 % 7T 1 1
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10. SRENREEEE

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—
HK$'000 HK$000
TERT FHETT
Loss attributable to equity shareholders 7K 2 7] # 25 A% 3 J& 1k /&5 18
of the Company (75,708) (122,622)

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue

BERITEABRINEFGH

1,499,749,920 1,499,749,920

Basic loss per share was calculated as the loss for the
period attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Company divided by the weighted average number of

ordinary shares in issue.

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the
diluted loss per share is same as basic loss per share
because the exercise price of Company’s share options
was higher than the average market price for shares.

5% B AN 5 18 Y IR R A 7 AR I R
5 50 0 A5 4B T DA B2 B 45 2 0 AR I 4B 7 25
P E -

BE-_T-__FRkR-FT-_—F+=ZAH=
T—BLEFE BHRARRBERENT
FERRABRNFEEME BREFTER
HEREABEER-
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11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 1M1. ME-BERHK
(a] Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) BREIEHER
Properties

leased for Furniture,

own use Leasehold fixtures and
carried at cost  improvements equipment Total

DR EN B
BREENR BEXHE RERRHE aF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TAR TAR TR

Cost: R

At 1 January 2021 RZE--F—-f—H 22,265 2,766 1,618 26,649
Exchange adjustments 5B 32 - 13 45
Additions NE 705 - 12 717
Disposals RE (1,394) = (507) (1,901)
At 31 December 2021 RZFZ-5+ZA=+-H 21,608 2,766 1,136 25,510
At 1 January 2022 R-B--&-f-H 21,608 2,766 1,136 25,510
Exchange adjustments AR (36) - (16) (52)
Additions nE 20,431 2,793 1,065 24,289
Disposals EE (21,572) (2,766) - (24,338)

At 31 December 2022 RZB-ZZF+-R=+-H 20,431 2,793 2,185 25,409
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11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

(a)

Reconciliation of carrying amount (Continued)

REZEFEZERABRAE
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M. N¥E BMERXEE)

(a) PFREIEHR(E)

Properties

leased for Furniture,

own use Leasehold fixtures and
carried at cost  improvements equipment Total

MR AT &M B
BERAENE HELZE HERZHE 4y
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TR TER TERx

Accumulated depreciation: RAHE:
At 1 January 2021 W-_E-_-%-HF—H 11,322 2,756 855 14,933
Exchange adjustments AR 18 - 5 23
Provided for the year FREE 5,765 10 297 6,072
Written back on disposals REAMD (916) - (185) (1,101)
At 31 December 2021 RZFZ-5+ZA=+-H 16,189 2,766 972 19,927
At 1 January 2022 R-_BE--_%—-A-H 16,189 2,766 972 19,927
Exchange adjustments ER AR (20) - (12) (32)
Provided for the year ERNEE 6,021 187 151 6,359
Written back on disposals REAMD (20,439) (2,766) - (23,205)
At 31 December 2022 RZZ-Z§+ZA=1+—-A 1,751 187 1,111 3,049
Net book value: FHFE:

At 31 December 2022 WZ2--f+-A=+-H 18,680 2,606 1,074 22,360
At 31 December 2021 RZFZ-5+ZRA=+-H 5,419 = 164 5,583
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11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) M. ME- -BERXEB(E)
(b) Right-of-use assets (b) ERAEEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use REERNSTOERAEEENRK
assets by class of underlying asset is as follows: EHFEMAT :
2022 2021
—E-C - —fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TAT
Properties leased for own use, HMEBRNME
carried at depreciated cost LA 9T & A A 5 R 18,680 5,419
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases HEBRGZPHEIANEERTHAN I H
recognised in profit or loss is as follows: BHESWWT :
2022 2021
—E-C& -
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FTAT

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets REERFIE P MERAEEE

by class of underlying asset: NIFEER

Properties leased for own use HEBROWE 6,021 5,765
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 6(a)) ME & &M A FE6) 304 381
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11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

(b)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets
were approximately HK$20,431,000 which were
primarily related to the capitalised lease payments
payable under new tenancy agreements.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the
maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in
Notes 19(d) and 23, respectively.

Properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use properties
as its offices through tenancy agreements. The
leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to
4 years. Lease payments are increased on an
agreement-to-agreement basis to reflect market
rentals.

Some leases include an option to renew the lease
for an additional period after the end of the
contract term. Where practicable, the Group seeks
to include such extension options exercisable by
the Group to provide operational flexibility. The
Group assesses at lease commencement date
whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the
extension options. If the Group is not reasonably
certain to exercise the extension options, the
future lease payments during the extension periods
are not included in the measurement of lease
liabilities. The potential exposure to these future
lease payments is summarised as below:

Lease liabilities recognised
at the end of the reporting period
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M. NE-BERRZEBE)
(b) EREEEE)
FANFABEERNBENAR
20431 0008 T TZEFHEH
FETENERCHEHENKRER -

HERESTLEmNFMAEEMA
fﬁﬁﬁ’\]%ﬁﬁﬁm7Fﬁ’ﬁ)“u'JEWEI19(d)
K237 5 H -

HEBAWY X
rEECRABEBHEER=EE
XEBBLASOER -
VB 1E4FE - HENF
EAAUARBRMSZHES

BERAY
HERE
X 1R &8

RULEEEREEARBARSERE
HHEHEEMMBEINRIE - EATH
EAT AEENRKBEARAEET
THEMIERZER LEMHE
M- AEEREERBABRTRKZE
CEEMERTEEHEZRE - I
REAEETHEERTCTFEERE
EE AEHHENORRBEENK
T AHEAGBENGTE - ELERK
MENROBERRRAZDT :

'—'AAEE:
AR/

Potential future lease payments
under extension options not
included in lease liabilities

R & H R AT AHERBENEREERS
ERRANEESE TEEARBENN

(discounted) (undiscounted)

(1 R) (RHTR)
2022 2021 2022 2021
=0E= —E-—F =25 =B I =4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAET TER THET
Office premise - PRC MAEME-—TH - 291 - -
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12. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at
31 December 2022 are as follows:

2022 Annual Report

12 NBRAINIKRSE
ARG EEE s = =—E 2
FTEWRBRRFBOT

Place of Particulars of  Proportion of
incorporation Place of Issued and ownership
Name of subsidiary or registration operation paid up capital interest  Principal activities
AT BRTR HEEZC
WEATER f i 4 EXuy BRRAHG ol FTEXEK
0Cl Capital Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,000 100%"  Investment holding
REBXBRAT R & 1,000 % 7t REAR
0Cl Asset Management (Cayman) Cayman Islands Hong Kong Us$1 100%"  Fund management
Coltd HERE BA 17 EeER
OCI Asset Management Company Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$5,001,000 100%"  Asset management
Limited R EB 5,001,000 % 7t EEER
RREEERERAA
Real Treasure Investment Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100% Trading of wines and
EEREARAT 7k Bk 18T beverage
BEERSMER
OCI Administrative Services Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% Provision of management
REERTBRBERLAA &% &E 1,000 37T services to group companies
AEBRAREERRE
RE(LB)CXERRAERAAD  PRC PRC HK$14,750,500 100%""  Provision of financial
i G (2021: advisory service
HK$11,750,500) Rt %5 ARG
14,750,500 % 7T
(ZF=—F:
11,750,500/ 1r)
0CI Global SPC-OCI US Dollar Cayman Islands Hong Kong US$1,768,226 100%  Investment fund
Debt Fund SP RERE o (2021; REES
US$3,422,120)
1,768,206% L
(2=

3422,120% 7T)
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(i)  Indirectly held through subsidiaries of the Company.

(i) Registered as a wholly owned foreign enterprise
under PRC Law.

(iii) The Group considers that it has ability to control
through its representatives on the board of the
investment fund and acting as a fund manager. The
“paid up capital” disclosed above represents the
participating shares of the respective investment
fund at the end of the reporting period.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
at the end of the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results or assets or liabilities of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in
particulars of excessive length.

Partial disposal of a subsidiary

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
disposed its 49% shareholding of Title Success Limited to
a BVI company which is wholly owned by an employee of
a subsidiary at zero consideration. At the date of disposal,
the fair value of Title Success Limited was insignificant. The
disposal does not result in loss of control of the Group over
Title Success Limited and is treated as an equity transaction.
Title Success Limited become a partially-owned subsidiary
since then.
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RfELINKRE (&F)
(i) BEARFMNBAREERA -

(i WEFEZZEZMAIBBELE -

(iy AEERR EEBREEETE
FENRRLETESRERRE
B EXWEMNIHRBRA] B
AREESNREHRR 22 B RD -

A BARNFRGERITEMNER

ARABEZRR ERMAIIARBHKE
RAETBREAKEENXEREELER
E-ARAEFAR REEMHKBER
ANEBERERAFBEBR TR

HE—RNBLARAMNISD ER

BHE_T__F+A=t+—HILHF
B AEEUNZRER—HHWEQF
W—Z2EEXERENREERZESER
7] & H # A Title Success Limited #)49%
B #E o 74 H & B 8 Title Success Limited
MAFEITTEKN - HESZHI £ B
N £ @ 5k &£ ¥ Title Success Limited #y %
HlE BHERABRER S L% Title
Success LimitedfX B DB M B A A °
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13. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE

On 23 May 2022, the Group acquired 60% paid-up
capital of L R R M R F I & & 2 F R 2 & (the “Joint
Venture”) from a third party at a cash consideration of
approximately HK$3,660,000. As of the acquisition date,
the fair value of the Group'’s share of the Joint Venture's
identifiable assets and liabilities was approximately
HK$4,273,000, resulting a gain on bargain purchase of
a joint venture of approximately HK$613,000.

Pursuant to the Article of Association of the Joint
Venture, the Joint Venture is jointly controlled by the
Group and the other party because the relevant activity
affecting its returns from its involvement with the Joint
Venture requires the unanimous consent of the Group
and the other party sharing the control. Therefore, the
Joint Venture is accounted for as a joint venture of the
Group.

Details of the Group’s interest in joint venture, which
is accounted for using the equity method in the
consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

13. REERTXIER
A F
N

N—_TE ==

2022 Annual Report

FAAZT+T=B " XEEBI

I & KRB 43,660,000 7T A1 55 = 5 W &
WERMEAREEEERAB(TAEE
T EDEO%MEHMBA - RN UIRE R &
AEBELEALERAAAUHRNEERERE
ZANFEHX EAL273,0008 T ELHE
BEAZLE QA 2z 4613,000% 7T °

RESELENEAKERMAY a2
EBHAEERS-THRES  RAAS
FEE2AQLECEMGOMNMERESY
ARAEBEDOHENENS - —

= =
Al = °

B RAt
BELEARKR-

wEEEXERAKEEN

AEERGAMBRRPINRAGERT
ZED(ERBDZEARNFROT

Proportion of

Particulars of ownership
Form of Place of registered interest
Name of business incorporation and paid-up held by
joint venture structure and business capital the Group Principal activity
r&
ot it B L K Bk HEER
EENRER EBEREA X BRREFRE ZEANH TEER
Shandong Civil Aviation Incorporated PRC Registered share capital: 60% Provision of asset
Dongsheng Investment ik iz i RMB 10,000,000 management and
Management Company Paid-up capital: advisory services
Limited* RMB5,000,000 REUEBEEERE
LWRRMRERE RN AR
EERARAA AR #10,000,000 7T
BRRA:
AR 5,000,000 T
* For identification only & EHE5

The Joint Venture in which the Group participates is an
unlisted corporate entity whose quoted market price is
not available.

A

N
A

i

pl

KEE2EZE-BRERBRIIFLTA
ER O AUEBHHRE-
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13.

INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

Summarised financial information of the Joint Venture,
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and a
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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13. REELTAZIER(E)
BERARAZCHBEABMEBE(CREFR
RZEMEZREHFR) EEE MK R

reconciliation to the carrying amount in the consolidated XTAEEBECHREENT -
financial statements, are disclosed below:
2022
—s ==
HK$'000
THER
The Joint Venture’s N
Current assets e & E 16,848
Non-current assets FERBEE 4,006
Current liabilities mE A& (6,596)
Non-current liabilities EmEBAE (1,001)
Equity attributable to the equity shareholders P IR R PG A 8,502
Equity attributable to the non-controlling interest  3F 25 A% # %5 J& {h # 25 4,755
Total equity 1B T 13,257
Included in the above assets and liabilities: FALMMEERABE:
Cash and cash equivalents HekReFEIEE 14,764
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade nBERHEBEBTEEESR
and other payables) H b fE 1~ 5K I8) (608)
Non-current financial liabilities EnBEemaE (998)
Revenue W a5 10,876
Profit for the period attributable R 2= AR R FE (G R B R OE
to the equity shareholders 1,685
Included in the above profit: s A £t R
Depreciation and amortisation & & 8H (482)
Interest income E WA 120
Interest expense B X (53)
Income tax expense FTi8 % % (69)
Reconciled to the Group's interest in HEAEEREERATARZ
the Joint Venture DK
The Joint Venture’s net assets attributable EaBRRELEEEARIEE
to the equity shareholders F B 8,502
Ownership interest held by the Group AEBBFEAENMAERES 60%
Group's share of the Joint Venture’s net assets AEERLEEERARAIZEERE 5,101
Carrying amount of the Group's interest AEE#ERZEREE 5,101

221



OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

222 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥5 ¥ 2< Bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_F__f+-R=1+-HLEE

2022 Annual Report

14. DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST 14. BRBEH ARG BEACERIRSE
Note 2022 2021
Pt 5% St :3 —E-—-%
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FTETL
Corporate debt securities NAESEFH (a) 230,856 239,990
Less: Loss allowance (see Note 29(b)(i)) & : /&5 18 % & (B MY 55 29(b)(i)) (213,506) (188,352)
Total debt investments at amortised ~ Z# K RN E 2 B
cost, net of loss allowance REBBEMNBREBERB) 17,350 51,638
(a) Corporate debt securities a) RARAEBEHBRS
Corporate debt securities comprise the following: NEEBELFBRE
Note 2022 2021
i 3% e : 3 —E=—F%
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FTETL
8% senior guaranteed notes SEREREBEAER
("SP Note") ([SPEE]) (i 101,531 101,363
10% senior guaranteed notes WEEERELEER
("RD Note") (TRDEE]) (ii) 108,331 107,532
9% guaranteed bond (“CFLD Note”) 9B B ERE % ([CFLDE ) (iif) 20,994 20,959
7.25% senior unsecured bond JIEEEREELES
("GL Note") ([GLE &) (iv) — 10,136
Gross carrying amount at 31 R+-ZA=+—HZ@BEHEAE
December 230,856 239,990
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14. DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST
(Continued)
(a) Corporate debt securities (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

SP Note represented US$13 million (2021: US$13
million) 8% senior secured guaranteed notes issued
by Sanpower (Hong Kong) Company Limited (“SP
Note Issuer”) maturing on 30 July 2019 with a right
to extend the maturity date by further 12 months
exercisable by the Company. The SP Note is secured
by a charge over 131,000,000 shares of C.banner
International Holdings Limited, a company listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Group
does not have the right to sell or re-pledge the shares
held as collateral in the absence of default by SP
Note Issuer. In addition, the SP Note is also secured
by corporate guarantee provided by Sanpower Group
Co., Ltd. (the “Corporate Guarantor”) and personal
guarantee provided by Yuan Yafei (the “Personal
Guarantor”).

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Sanpower
Group Co., Ltd and Yuan Yafei, being the guarantors
of the SP Note failed to provide additional collateral
requested by the Company pursuant to the terms of
the SP Note and this has resulted in occurrence of
events of default (“EOD") under the terms of the SP
Note. In October 2018, the Group has issued EOD
notice to SP Note Issuer in respect of all outstanding
sums owing by SP Note Issuer. The Company has made
announcements on 29 October 2018, 20 November
2018 and 10 January 2019 in relation to the default of
the SP Note.

REBEBRZERERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

87 5 ¥R % B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLEE

14. RBEARGECEBEREE

() DEEHKESGE)
GEE

(i)

SPEERIEBR=MR(FEE)ER A A
([SPEEBEITADBEITR=ZZF—AN
FEtA=THIHEMI3EEEXT(Z
T —F:13BEERL)SERKR
EERBEAZR MAAREBET
EEHAENR@EA -SPEEMNATH
EEEZRERAA(—HERES
BMAXSHBERAA LM 2ZAT)
131,000,000 % A% 19 1 & # £ IR - £

SPERBTARLEBELNNBRT
AEBEELEXBRBHABIRMD
BRI SPEBIIUA =R E
EERA2ATABERAL R
MR ERERBIE(TEAAERAD
IZE R 8 A R B KA -

T-NFE+=-A=+—8
CSPEBERA-BEES
AIRRDIERERBSPERE I
AR BRBHBINKIF SR
’]$1¢([EZ’]$1¢J)E’]§;§EE
E—N\F+ A XEEE HSP
ZRBETABRNNBEAREERE
MSPEEBEITABRHENEHEN -
NABERZE-NE+AZ+N
CZE-NF+—-AZ+HEZ
E-NE-—A+ARSPEBERENSE
HiERE A% -

S S i S8 E = R
S|SB Sy B
%%%amw

7

D

Mmoo

%
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14. DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST 14. #Z#HEM NI BZERRE(E)

(Continued)

(a) Corporate debt securities (Continued) (a) DAEBEHEERE)
Notes: (Continued) i : (&)
(i) (Continued) i) (&)

On 1 November 2018, the Group appointed a legal
adviser and the Group brought legal proceedings
against the Corporate Guarantor and the Personal
Guarantor at the Intermediate People’s Court of
Jiangsu Province (the “Court”) by the end of November
2018 for all outstanding sums owing by the SP Note
Issuer under the SP Note. On 20 December 2018, the
Court issued a & = # fi# £ (the “Mediation Order”,
order numbered (2018) Su 01 Min Chu N0.3422) in
relation to the payments obligations of the Corporate
Guarantor and the Personal Guarantor, in respect of
the amounts owed under the SP Note recorded in
the i # i (the “Settlement Agreement”) entered
into between OCI Capital Limited (“OCI Capital”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, the
Corporate Guarantor and the Personal Guarantor on
the same day as a result of the mediation conducted
by the Court. Although the Corporate Guarantor
and the Personal Guarantor are required under the
Mediation Order and the Settlement Agreement to
repay amounts owed under the SP Note to OCI Capital
by making an initial US$2,000,000 payment by 28
December 2018 and twelve further monthly payments
during 2019, no payment was received by OCI
Capital based on the Mediation Order and Settlement
Agreement. Given such failure to pay in accordance
with the agreed schedule, all amounts payable under
the Mediation Order and the Settlement Agreement
became immediately due and payable. Accordingly, on
9 January 2019, the Group submitted an application to
the Court for the enforcement of amounts due under
the Mediation Order and the Settlement Agreement.
Up to the date of these financial statements, such
court application is still in progress.

The Company received notice from the Sanpower
Group on 8 December 2021 that the Restructuring
Plan (the “Plan”) of Sanpower Group was passed.
The Plan is scheduled to resolve the defaulted debts
and part of the related interest due through business
restructuring and improving fund pool through
disposal of certain assets or investments. The Plan
will last through 2021 and 2028. The Company is
registered as one of the Sanpower’s debtors and will
be notified by Sanpower Group for their updates on
the Plan.

As at 31 December 2022, the net carrying amount of
the SP Note was approximately HK$15,038,000 (2021:
approximately HK$33,471,000), after a provision for
impairment loss of approximately HK$86,493,000
(2021: approximately HK$67,892,000) (see Note
29(b)(i)).

%:?—)\i-ﬁ- A—H A& H
ZEZZEBR MAEER =T —
NE+— ﬁEmﬁwTﬁ%ﬁA@
BSPEEAMEREZEAEEZEREAR
ﬂﬁ%¢mAE%ﬁ(£FD%%
NAERARBAERARZER
ﬁ“ R=_FE—NF+=-A=+H"
FRELREABE(THABE] X
E 1R 9 A(2018)8 01 & #)34225%) -
RNAREBERARERARBAERA
HERBARAZEMBARRE
BAEBRAB(REER] Al
BRARBAERAFMETHORAEM
%EE%I%@%%%U@%%%D
et MSPEBEB N & R RBEZ
HEMFE- 1*“TV%A&IAV
RABEBRBEABESLMNBEHERE
BEAEESPERBE NARNRIE -
FRAR-_Z—NF+_A=+N
E%iﬁ%%ﬂmmm%ﬁ&%:

TN EXIHBI+ZHiE AR

m%gﬁ$m$wumﬁm%

R W E B AR ﬁmx
mﬁﬁmEMMﬁﬁﬁﬁv%ﬁﬁ
EBERABERNBHEEMOREY
ERANEEHEEMN - Bt A&
Eam:%—ni BN B[k

2 mﬁﬁﬁ’ﬁﬁ%&ﬂ%%
%ETU% I8 ° E?%%%%ﬁ
XBHBAEL EBERBEBEDNER
3B P ER o
AARKR-—_TE-_—F+=-_ANBE
—hREEEEFBM-REE2EA
FRIZARDEBRBOBEN - ZAH
RAZEBEBERANELESR T
EEIREUNEES O RFERE
NEBRITDEHOEBEAE - &
FREEBENR -_S-_—FFE_T-_N\F
HHER - NRAREBELA-ZRHNE
BAZ— BEE=-"REBRMNE
BZARNRHTEE -

RZZE-_—_F+=ZA=+—8" 'SP
ZEME@FAESRAESERB
#)86,493,0008 (=T = —F : 4
67,892,000% L)% %) /15,038,000 %5
TT(=F = — 4% : 433,471,0007% 7T)
(2 B W 5E29(b)(i)) °
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14. DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST
(Continued)

(a) Corporate debt securities (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(i)

RD Note represented US$15 million (2021: US$15
million) 10% senior guaranteed notes issued by
Rundong Fortune Investment Limited (“RD Note
Issuer”) maturing on 15 April 2019. The RD Note
is secured by a charge over 78,000,000 shares of
China Rundong Auto Group Limited (“China Rundong
Shares”), a company listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The Group does not have the
right to sell or re-pledge the shares held as collateral
in the absence of default by RD Note Issuer.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, RD Note
Issuer failed to repay the outstanding interest and
handling fee receivable and this has resulted in
occurrence of event of default under the terms of the
RD Note. The Company has made announcements on
8 August 2019 in relation to the default of the RD
Note.

In 2019, following the RD Note Issuer’s failure to
repay the outstanding principal amount and the
outstanding interest and handling fee receivable
of the RD Note, the Group exercised its right as a
chargee in possession of the charged shares and sold
2,019,000 China Rundong Shares on the market for
HK$3,648,440 and subsequently contracted with two
third parties, LanHai International Trading Limited
and Ms. Ding Yi (“Potential Purchasers”) which are
independent of the Group, to sell the remaining
75,981,000 China Rundong Shares (“Remaining
Shares”) for HK$80,000,000. LanHai International
Trading Limited is the wholly owned subsidiary of
Lanhai Holding (Group) Company Limited, which is in
turn 99% controlled by Mr. Mi Chunlei. Nonetheless,
neither of the Potential Purchasers paid any of
the consideration to the Group. The Group has
commenced legal proceedings against the Potential
Purchasers. On 16 August 2019, a Writ of Summons
to LanHai International Trading Limited and Ms.
Ding Yi was filed to the High Court of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region. The legal proceedings
between the Group against the Potential Purchasers of
Remaining Shares are still in progress. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, the Company attended
the mediation but no agreement was reached with
the Potential Purchasers. Further Witness Statement
was exchanged and the case management conference
hearing was held on 29 November 2021.
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14. DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST
(Continued)

(a) Corporate debt securities (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(iiy  (Continued)
The case trial is scheduled on 5 October 2023.

In 2021 and 2020, the Group further disposed of
800,000 and 5,491,000 China Rundong Shares,
respectively, on the open market for HK$612,000
and HK$4,495,200, respectively. The China Rundong
Shares were suspended for trading since 1 April 2021
and subsequent delisted on 31 October 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, the net carrying amount of the
RD Note was HK$ Nil (2021: HK$ Nil), after a provision
for impairment loss of approximately HK$108,331,000
(2021: approximately HK$107,532,000) (see Note
29(b)(1).

(ili)  CFLD Note represented US$2.69 million (face value)
of 9% guaranteed bond issued by CFLD Cayman
Investment Ltd (“CFLD Note Issuer”) matured on 31
July 2021.

The Group received a default notice in respect of
CFLD Note on 9 March 2021. Accordingly, the Group
made a provision for impairment loss of approximately
HK$18.68 million (2021: approximately HK$12.93
million) as at 31 December 2022 (see Note 29(b)(i))
and at 31 December 2022, the net carrying amount of
CFLD Note was approximately HK$2.31 million (2021:
approximately HK$8.03 million).

On 24 January 2023, a restructuring scheme was
approved by the court, under which the creditors
were offered with different new bonds for selection
by 9 January 2024 to exchange for the CFLD Note.
Up to the date of this report, the Group was making
assessment on the offer and yet to decide the
selection of the new bonds.

(iv)  GL Note represented US$1.3 million (face value) of
7.25% senior unsecured bond issued by Greenland
Global Investment Limited matured on 12 March
2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the GL
Note was redeemed upon maturity.

All debt investments held by the Group were past due
and impaired at 31 December 2022. Except for SP Note,
RD Note and CFLD Note, the Group did not have any
debt investments that were past due but not impaired at
31 December 2021. Further details on the Group’s credit
risk arising from debt investments at amortised cost are
set out in Note 29(b)(i).
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15. INVENTORIES 15. &
2022 2021
—E-= — s = =4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT T 7T
Goods purchased for resale HEE s/ EBER® 6,256 7,293
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as 2 ARSI ABEZNEESES
expenses and included in profit or loss is as follows: m
2022 2021
—_E-C - —fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TE T T 7T
Cost of sales 5 & B A 27,059 42,191
General and administrative expenses —RETERI S 1,539 -
Carrying amount of inventoriessoldand EENEHHEAEE Z
RmEE 28,598 42,191
16. TRADE RECEIVABLES 16. EWEZIRIA
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T T T
Trade debtors in respect of wines and EHRBEEGRARKMZ
beverage trading B5E®A 34 -
Fees receivable from asset management, REEEEE 2 W E A
net of loss allowance (MR EBEEHE) 7,397 9,463
7,431 9,463

All of the trade receivables are carried at amortised cost.

FRERKE ZERBEDRBEHKAE-
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16. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
Ageing analysis
The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables,
net of loss allowance, arising from the business of wines
and beverage trading based on date of invoice at the
reporting date:

16.

EE 5% RIA (&
AR iR o AT

2022 Annual Report

RBEEEH BEERAREEREBE
EZRBEBEZRBANBRBERRB ZE

SEMZKREONMT

2022 2021
—E-C —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FTAT
0 to 60 days 0260H 34 -
34 -
The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables, ReERH EEERBEBEEZRE 1451
net of loss allowance, arising from the business of asset ESRBEBMREERE KBAYKE
management based on date of revenue recognition at HZERETOT :

the reporting date:

2022 2021

— g —E-—fF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THER TET

0 to 60 days 0Z60H 889 3,669
61-90 days 61290H 484 1,517
91-180 days 912 180H 1,466 3,093
181-365 days 1812365 H 1,739 1,182
Over 365 days 365H A 2,819 2
7,397 9,463

AEBRFHBAEOANAREEE ST
FEWZE1I20B2FHEEH - -BEE

The Group allows an average credit period from 90
to 120 days to its trade customers in respect of wines

and beverage trading. Fees receivable in respect of the BXBNERERBEERAZREIEZI0
business of asset management are normally due within H KW E e

30 days upon presenting the invoice.
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17. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17. & & - AT RMIANR Hith U8R IA

2022 2021
—E2-C T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TE T FET
Other receivables H fth & AR 1B
— Interest and handling fee receivables from —{E#HK K& 2 U F 2 K
debt investments, net of loss allowance of FE&E  HBEBEEREEYD
approximately HK$5,026,000 5,026,000 7% 7T
(2021: HK$5,035,000) (=% = —4% : 5,035,000/ 7T) = 223
— Other receivables —E fh fE U BR 1B 3,876 1,238
Deposits with brokers RELHFER 769 1,522
4,645 2,983
Rental and other deposits HMEREMEZS
— Non-current portion —JERNHAE » 1,086 -
— Current portion — B3 6 o 323 2,394
Prepayments BB
— Prepayments for bank and —BRNRITREMEEKRAR
other borrowing costs 200 338
— Prepayments for fund sub-advisory —-BRNEES EDBAREKE
services 1,277 2,067
— Prepayments for legal and professional —BREEREXEA
fees 9,573 =
— Other prepayments —H B HE 1,132 4,160
Less: Non-current portion of rental deposits 5l : A & &z & JEBN R 2 o (1,086) -

17,150 11,942
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18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

2022 Annual Report

18. RRAFEFABBCEMNEE

2022 2021
2= = —E-—fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAET
HK Dollar Fund linked note (Note) BILESBYDEE K - 20,000
Unlisted investment funds FETHREES
- ICBC US Dollar Debt Fund SP —I|CBC US Dollar Debt Fund SP - 28,827
- OClI Equities Fund SP —OCI Equities Fund SP 92,013 96,917
- OCI Real Estate Fund | SP (Note) —OCI Real Estate Fund | SP (Pff &%) 4,620 =
Investments in listed securities REMBEBLFEHNERE 13,540 =
Investments in listed warrants RETRBEEZFNERE 87 =
Total financial assets at fair value through BATEFAER RMEE
profit or loss B 110,260 145,744
Note: Bt 2% -

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group redeemed
all HK Dollar Fund linked note amounted to HK$20,000,000, of
which HK$14,000,000 was settled by cash, and the remaining
HK$6,000,000 was offset by the transfer of corresponding
participating shares in OCl Real Estate Fund | SP by the issuer of HK
Dollar Fund linked note to the Group (see Note 19(e)(i)).

BE-_Z-_—_F+-A=+—BLEE &K
E fE [@ £ %8 /220,000,000 7T 89 BT A 38 T &
B O E 4 H 14,000,000 T AR S EHE -
# 76,000,000 8 THATE B ARTEETA
[ 7K £ @ ¥ 3 ¥ OCI Real Estate Fund | SPEY 4H &
2 8 R 5 F7 K 85 (R W 3E19(e)()) »

I A
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19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(a)

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated
statements of financial position and cash flows

REBEBRZERERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
87 5 ¥ 2 Bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_ "+ _A=+-RL#FE

19. REKRRESEHIRAE
@) RGEEMBHRARERRERERDH
BekBESEEHRBRERE:

comprise:
2022 2021
—E-C —EBE-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT
Cash at bank and on hand BITRFENES 230,568 313,006
Cash and cash equivalents in the REEMBERALREERERF
consolidated statements of financial miEehIHeEEEE
position and cash flows 230,568 313,006

At 31 December 2022, there were bank balances
and cash denominated in RMB amounting to
approximately HK$238,000 (2021: approximately
HK$2,292,000). Remittance of funds out of PRC
is subject to the relevant rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.

RZEZZ_F+ZH=+—H8"
REARBHEZETEH LR S
#) /R238,0008 T(ZE=Z—F: 4
2,292,000 L) - P HE H & &
78 38 <7 /1 B X T 78 6 B AN EE B
B #5 Bl K g 1 o
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19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 19.
(b) Reconciliation of loss before taxation to cash
(used in) generated from operations:

2022 Annual Report

RekReESERB(E)
b) BRBEABEEKEXEK(FIRAME
ReHk:

NOTE 2022 2021
B 5% —E-C —E-—4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Loss before taxation B % A& 1B (78,211) (117,281)
Adjustments for: RATEEELRE:
Depreciation e 6(c) 6,359 6,072
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BERZEZ
plant and equipment (M) B8 5 (120) 469
Impairment losses (reversal of EWE 5 KRB R HAM
impairment losses) on trade fE W AR IB R E B B OR
and other receivables BEEEED) 6(c) 781 (577)
Impairment losses on debt BEEKREREBSB
investments 6(C) 24,326 4,535
Provision for post-completion EREREE
guarantee 24 - 58,565
Foreign exchange gain, net HNEE M 3 F R (419) (606)
Change in fair value of financial BEATEFABRRRZ
assets at fair value through profit & @& E QX FEEZ
or loss 4(a) 30,156 69,502
Finance costs BEER 6(a) 5,993 10,063
Bank interest income BITF B A 5 (178) (169)
Share of profits of joint venture JE1E & & 1 alg Al (1,011) -
Gain on bargain purchase of ajoint ZEBESZE N T2
venture I #= (613) =
Changes in working capital: LEESEY:
Decrease (increase) in inventories FER L GEm) 1,037 (1,647)
Decrease (increase) in trade FEWE 5 BRE 7
receivables (3£ 1) 1,251 (1,700)
(Increase) decrease in deposits, Re BEMNFEBEBREA
prepayments and other fE W BR 1B (i* m)
receivables (6,294) 16,201
Decrease in debt investments at REHEKAFEZER
amortised cost & m D 9,971 80,802
Decrease in financial assets at fair R AFEFABREZ
value through profit or loss TREERD 5,328 88,785
Increase (decrease) in accruals and  [& 5T X I8 I £ i & {+f
other payables RRIBIE I COR D) 4,986 (3,475)
Decrease in contract liabilities ERHEERD (7,621) (3,506)
Cash (used in) generated from rEEBFRMGEHRS
operations (4,279) 206,033
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19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 19.

(c)

REBEBRZERERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities from financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are liabilities for which cash
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified
in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash
flows as cash flows from financing activities.

87 5 ¥R % B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLEE

ReERBRESHERE (&)
) REBMEFZTDHHAEBEYHK

TRFANAKEEREBRERDH A
EREH(BRRENIFRESED) -
BRELTHMELENBBEDNREN
IAXRRERARAKEZEARER
EXNDERABMETHZRERE
mEE-

Amount
Accrued duetoa Lease
interests  Borrowings related party liabilities Total
EREER
RIS BE ¥E  HERE aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TEx TEx TR TR
Allanuary2022 R-%--%-f-B o1 & - 88 a9
Changes from financing cash flows: REBENREHELH:
Repayment of shareholder's loans ~ EER R E X - (38,986) - = (38,986)
Capital element of lease rentals paid = 2R EHHEE 2 ERHFH - - - (8,762) (8,762)
Interest element of lease rentals paid  EMEHEE 2 F 8 H 5 - - - (304) (304)
Interest paid BEXfFIE (5,800) - - - (5,800)
Repayment to a related party MEBREEDE - - (11,713) - (11,713)
Total changes from financing REZTBRERERDAE
hflows ] (58000 (38986)  (11713) (9.066)  (65565)
Echangeadistments ~ ~ EXA®® - B B s "
Other changes: BEegs:
Finance costs (Note 6(a)) BHBER (HE6() 5,689 - - 304 5,993
Transfer from provision of BRAEKERER
post-completion quarantee - - 58,565 - 58,565
Increase in lease liabilities from entering 4 /A 3 17 31 # & & 4 #)
into new leases during the year HEABEN - - - 20,431 20,431
Farly termination of a tenancy RASILRERZ
agreement - - - (1,253) (1,253)
Totalotherchanges = R#2BRE S - %8565 1M 8736
At 31 December 2022 WZB-ZZ%+-F=1-H 250 46,861 46,930 16,224 110,265
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19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)
(c)] Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities (Continued)

19. RERRESFERE(AE)

(c)

2022 Annual Report

RERMETHNEEHRAE)

Accrued Lease
interests Borrowings liabilities Total
fE 57 8 BE HEGRE 2%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TEn TET
Atllanuay2021 — R-®--F-A-B 6044 341060 1450 358,554
Changes from financing cash flows: RERENBLFEED:
Repayment of bank loan EERTER - (155,000) - (155,000)
Repayment of shareholders' loans BEERREH - (54,250) - (54,250)
Capital element of lease rentals paid =~ EREAHE 24T H = = (6,012) (6,012)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ~ ERBHH 2 2 FIEHH - - (381) (381)
Interest paid on bank and other EXARIREMERTE
borrowings (14,186) - - (14,186)
Totd changes from financing cesh flows BEESREAEZDAE | (14185 09250) | 6393) (2989
Bhange adjustments  ER®E - W no 9
Other changes: s
Finance costs (Note 6(a) FEER (M E6() 9,682 = 381 10,063
Increase in lease liabilities from entering % R &7 3 31 1 € & £ &)
into new leases during the year BERBEM - - 705 705
Early termination of a tenancy agreement #2 A1 &% I E 2 - = (331) (331)
Decrease in accrued interests and HEEREHHEN
borrowings being set off with purchase & # 8 R fE 5UR &
consideration (Note 19(e)fii) (B 19(e)i)) (1,179) (46,590) - (47,769)
Totelotherchanges ~ AmEgE® 853 46590) N (7330
At 31 December 2021 R-B--£+-8
=t+-H 361 85,768 5,823 91,952
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19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the statement of cash flows

REEFEZERERAA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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19. RERRESFERE (&)
d HERESRHAHE
AAHEREREXRNEEERT

for leases comprise the following: 5| & 18
2022 2021
—_E-— - —&F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx T 7T
Within financing cash flows MERSRER 9,066 6,393

These amounts relate to the lease rentals paid
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.

Major non-cash transactions

(i)

(i)

(iii)

During the year ended 31 December 2022,
part of the proceeds from the redemption
of HK Dollar Fund linked note amounted to
HK$6,000,000 was offset by the transfer of
corresponding participating shares in OCI Real
Estate Fund | SP from the issuer of HK Dollar
Fund linked note (see Note 18).

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
part of the proceeds from the sales of certain
amount of Class B shares in ICBC US Dollar
Debt Fund SP (“Sale Share”) amounted
to approximately HK$47,769,000 was
offset by the repayment of the outstanding
shareholder’s loan and the accrued interests
due to Orient Finance Holdings (Hong Kong)
Limited (“Orient Finance”) amounted to
HK$47,769,000 (see Notes 22(b)(ii) and 24).

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the proceeds from the sales of a corporate
debt security amounted to HK$116,250,000
was offset by the fulfillment of the obligations
under repurchase agreements.

ZESHEBE _T__FRK_-_F
T+ A=t+-—"HIEFEXf[
2B AR -

le)] EXKBEERS
() BE-ZET-_—_F+-_A=+—
HEFE BB TtESHY
ZE B/ 5 P15 518 6,000,000
BELTHEEBTESHIOZERH
7T A ¥ ;2 72 OCl Real Estate Fund
| SPHYIEE 2 B RR D FT K 85 (R
BizE18) ©

(i RBEE=ZZT=_—F+=A=+
—BIEFE - H % RICBCUS
Dollar Debt Fund SPH & T & &
WBERM(EER B 2 &
7 BT 18 3K I8 #947,769,000% 7T
REEBEENRTERIERA
BERAR(IRASB] AR
BERRERKEFTHNERH
47,769,000 7% 7T AT K 88 (R Bt 5
22(b)(ii) 2 24) -

iy MBEE_T-——F+—A=1+—
HIEFE HERQRIEKEIZHFRN
18 X 78116,250,000/8 7T & B 17 B
El I TR E TS -
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20. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 20. [EStMIE N H fth [E (T B8R IE
2022 2021
—Z:=-= - —
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET % 7T
Accrued legal and professional fees JEEtZEZ R EXER 4,627 3,285
Accrued interest JE 5T 7 & 250 361
Advisory fee payable B AER 404 701
Other accruals H ith fE 5T K IE 2,991 1,147
Other payables H & 1 BR 18 3,750 1,467
Financial liabilities measured at RHEHEKANETEZ
amortised costs T EBE 12,022 6,961
21. AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED PARTY 21. [EfTEEE R FRIA
As disclosed in Note 24, the Group have to pay the M 24T HE - AEBEARRELS @
shortfall of approximately US$7.51 million, equivalent to BMENEZBEAN7SIBEEEZT(HERD
approximately HK$58.57 million to Orient Finance. After 5857TEEBIL) cKEEH S mEmE
the negotiation with Orient Finance, this amount will be e AHSEHERLHZFN X%
repaid in five equal installments and bears interest rate FF R e

of 8% per annum.
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22. BORROWINGS 22. &8
(a] The analysis of the carrying amount of borrowings (a) ERZBREEINMUT :
is as follows:
Note 2022 2021
P = —®=-Z —E_—fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAT
Shareholder’s loan, unsecured X 3 & 3 - &K #
— Cheer Hope Holdings -BREERERA A
Limited ("Cheer Hope") (TERZER) 22(b)(i) 46,861 85,768
All of the borrowings are carried at amortised FTBEBREREHEKANGE-
costs.
(b) Significant terms and repayment schedule of b) BERZEEKRIRAREMRKRB X
borrowings
(i) Unsecured loan from Cheer Hope (i) RERZBERIWNEHRHEE
The loan from Cheer Hope bears interest KEREERNE XILL.15%
at fixed rate of 4.15% (2021: 4.15%) and TETEMNE(=ZFE = — F:
was denominated in US$ and repayable on 415%)st B AETEtE I
demand (2021: within one year from the end BARREHRE —FRIZEK
of the reporting period). BiE o
According to the facility agreement with BIEEEEERITIZLZME
Cheer Hope, the net asset value of the Group HBE AEEBREMKRZ
at all times shall not less than HK$300 million. BEEFEITHFINI0BEE
As of 31 December 2022, the Group’s net T -R_BE__F+_/=+
asset value was below HK$300 million and —B XEBZEEFEER
event of default occurred. The loan balance 300BE BB L BRLEENSE
has become repayable on demand. o BEHERBIEEREIE -
(ii)  Unsecured loan from Orient Finance (i) RERTZTHIERHFEFH

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the loan was fully repaid by cash and offset
by the consideration payable for the Sale
Shares by the Group (see Notes 19(c) and 24).

REBEE-ZF-_—F+ZA=+
—BLEFEE ZEFRARSHE
BYBAEEREERNHE
R B A 88 (R MR 1900 &
24) o
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23. LEASE LIABILITIES 23. lHEGRE
The following table shows the remaining contractual TRITAEEHEABNR TS AT
maturities of the Group's lease liabilities: BB R
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
ZEC-CE “E_-F%
R [oipa +-B=1-H
Present value Present value

of the minimum ~ Total minimum of the minimum Total minimum
lease payments  lease payments lease payments lease payments

BRERE BRERE ERE ERE

HRZBE HHEH NHZRE Naes

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TER TEL TEL
Within 1 year g T8 7803 583 5,936
After 1 year but within 2 years BB EETBELIE 3,174 3,553 = =
After 2 years but within 5 years BEIFETBASE 5,961 6,218 = =
R 1% s T

16,224 17,574 5,823 5,936

Less: total future interest expenses W RRABHT B8 (1,350) (113)
Present value of lease liabilities HERGZHE 16,224 5,823

24. PROVISION FOR POST-COMPLETION GUARANTEE 24, SEERES

HK$'000
FERT
At 1 January 2022 R-—E-_—_F£—HF—H 58,565
Transfer to amount due to a related party (see Note 21) & = & < B8 B 5 30 18 (58,565)
(2 R MaE21)
At 31 December 2022 RZEBE__F+-A=+—H -
On 23 May 2019, the Company entered into the RZE-—NFRAZ-_FT=ZH AAAH
subscription agreement with the ICBC AMG China ICBC AMG China Fund | SPC ([SPC]) st &
Fund | SPC (the “SPC"), in respect of its segregated AIEEE(RR)ERANEERNE I
portfolio, ICBC US Dollar Debt Fund SP (the “Sub-Fund"”) #& & 45 4 ICBC US Dollar Debt Fund SP ([ &
managed by ICBC Asset Management (Global Company PEEDIYREHZE B X220
Limited), pursuant to which the Company subscribed for RER D EDAEITBARD - AE20
the Class B Shares issued by the Sub-Fund in an amount BEET(HERNIS6BEE BT °

of US$20 million (equivalent to approximately HK$156
million).
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24. PROVISION FOR POST-COMPLETION GUARANTEE

(Continued)

On 23 June 2021, the Company as the Vendor (the
“Vendor”) and Orient Finance as the Purchaser
(the “Purchaser”) entered into a sale and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which the Company
conditionally agreed to sell and Orient Finance
conditionally agreed to purchase the Company’s entire
right, title and interest in certain amount of Class
B Shares (“Sale Shares”) in the Sub-Fund of SPC at
the consideration of no more than US$8,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$62,400,000) with a
post-completion guarantee clause that in the event that
the SPC redeems the participating shares held by the
Purchaser at the expiry of the investment term of the
Sub-Fund (i.e. 2 June 2022), the sum of entitlement
of the Purchaser as the holder of the Sale Shares
comprising the aggregate of all the returns, distributions,
income, and other payments received or accrued on the
Sale Shares since the completion of the disposal of the
Sale Shares in the Sub-Fund of SPC plus the redemption
proceeds paid or payable to the Purchaser is less than
the consideration of the disposal of the Sale Shares
paid by the Purchaser, the Vendor shall pay to the
Purchaser such shortfall within five business days upon
receipt of written notice from the Purchaser. Proceeds
of the disposal of the Sale Shares will be used to repay
the outstanding loan in the amount of US$6,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$46,590,000), together
with all accrued interest, owing from the Company to
Orient Finance. In August 2021, 7,900 shares were sold
to Orient Finance at the consideration of approximately
US$7.51 million.

As at 31 December 2021, the fair value of the
investment in the Sub-Fund was approximately
HK$28.83 million. The fair value of the investment in
the Sub-Fund dropped substantially on the last quarter
of 2021 due to the market value of those bonds issued
by PRC properties developers in the Sub-Fund’s portfolio
decreased sharply upon the PRC government’s tightened
control policies over credit.
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BHE-TS-_—"F+-_A=1+—-HLFE

EBERBEEE)
R—FE-—FSA=-+=H ' &x28

REF)(BFNERFERUWERER)
(BEFDITLEEHZE Bt XA F
ERHRELHE MERASBREGHER
EBEARARARSPCR D ESFETH
ENBERGOIHEERG DN ZBER -
Fr B # & # &= - X {8 T # 88,000,000 %
JC (8 & 7 4962,400,00078 7)) - Kt % & 1%
BRIEF WSPCERSES MK EH
REam(E T -_—_FXAZ-RH)EMD
BEFFBN2ERG EFEREER
MHFEABEBTK L ESPCK D E
& H 8 E R M 1& 58S IR D U E 3K FE 5T
WATAER- 2K YA KE MM
FEXNSERGEFHER S RIE
MBI LREFAINNEEHERND
ZCRE BEFEEKRIEFZE@DBAE
FEIEFRAMESASZE=8 HE
HEBRNASREBRANRNEELRARALE
REFH & @K K E B 5£6,000,0003 7t (48
& 7 446,590,000/ JT) - & R FT B FE &
FME-RZZTEZ—FNA UHTSTEXE
TTHRERRFT B L E 77,9000 87 -

RZEBEZ—F+=-A=+—H Ko HE
CIRENRAFENE2883EBEB TR
KAEERENAFEE-_ZS = —F&
—EAZTEABTH RRAEAR+TEH
BEREEEEEHERE ZRI>ESR
BHATMAFAEEHEREEBETHZ
EEHEMBEEBANEBRD -
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a=

24.

25.

T g S A =S E e EE

PROVISION FOR POST-COMPLETION GUARANTEE
(Continued)

The net asset value (the “NAV") of Class B shares of the
Sub-Fund continued to decreased further as the prices
of those bonds and notes in the Sub-Fund’s portfolio
dropped further in early 2022. The value of Class B
shares turned to zero by 31 Jan 2022 and further cut
loss actions were taken by the Sub-Fund’s manager. As
at 28 Feb 2022, the NAV of Class B shares is zero. The
chance of regaining value to acquisition value by the
expiry of the Sub-Fund is remote, hence a full provision
for the post-completion guarantee on the 7,900 Class
B shares sold to Orient Finance on their acquisition
value of approximately US$7.51 million, equivalent to
approximately HK$58.57 million is made in 2021.

After the negotiation between the Group and Orient
Finance during the current year, the shortfall will be
repaid by the Group in five equal installments. The
provision amount has been transferred to the “Amount
due to a related party” (see Note 21) under current
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement plan

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance and not previously covered
by the defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF scheme
is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan vest
immediately, there is no forfeited contributions that may
be used by the Group to reduce the existing level of
contribution.

24,

25.
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ERERBEE)

HRZKDEEREHETNZEEFH
EBEER T =

K- ZKDESBERMNEEFE(E
EFEDEBERL BERMHEABAR
ZTEZZF-A=+—HREAT K
SPESKBEECENE— S LEBEREBE - R
T FZRAR=-Z+NA - BEBRMH
BEEFERT RS> EEWAKE
ZRBEEEMNTREERN BEHERZF
T FREREBEELN7SIBEEELUE
ERAS8S7TEBB T AR AERESE
#7900 kB R D 2 REATIRE R ERE
1# o

RAFE KAEBERF S RERE -
AEBBESAHEREEZ=E -BED
HEHRZEAUWBMRAXRARY A
BIE T A MBS RE] (25K
21)°

i 8 R i@ il

REMAEB KRS
AEBEREEFBGRH EQE S E K
IR EERBEHEINDEEA LA AR
ERNRTEHARENRFTENEE LT B
mAlM A B E((RESE] &
BeEe—EHHBIUSTAETEMNR
EHRAEKRFE -RERBESTE &
FREEEHELREEMRBERANSY
M ECHE MR EEEHANAEEA
g A KA &SR AE30,000% T o % &t
BICHRUNEB  ASETEFERNR
WE R REEIR BB HERKF-
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25.

26.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued)
Defined contribution retirement plan (Continued)

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group
established in the PRC (excluding Hong Kong) participate
in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan
managed by the local government authorities. Employees
of these subsidiaries are entitled to retirement benefits,
calculated based on a percentage of the defined salaries
level in the PRC (other than Hong Kong), from the above
mentioned retirement plans at their normal retirement
age.

The Group has no other material obligation for the
payment of pension benefits associated with those
schemes beyond the annual contributions described
above.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was
adopted on 17 December 2012 whereby the directors
of the Company are authorised, at their discretion, to
invite employees of the Group, including directors of
any company in the Group, to take up options at nil
consideration to subscribe for shares of the Company.

On 15 October 2021, the Company granted a total of
105,000,000 options (the “Share Options”) to certain
directors. The Share Options will be vested in five equal
tranches in accordance with the vesting schedule of
the Share Options, subject to the fulfilment of certain
performance targets (the “Vesting Condition”). Where
performance targets have not been met, the share
options of a specific tranche will not vest. The estimated
fair value of the five tranches of the share options using
the polynomial model was approximately HK$1.55,
HK$1.78, HK$1.94, HK$2.07 and HK$2.19 at the grant
date. The share options are exercisable within a period
of 10 years from the date of grant. Each option gives
the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share
in the Company and is settled gross in shares.

The Group recognises share-based payments expenses
in its consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income based on awards ultimately
expected to vest.
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BE_Z-_ "+ _A=+-RL#FE

& SR k1@ ml ()
REHKBRIKGE (E)
AEBEFBE(TEEETR)KILNNEB
REIZBREZNAEHBNEENRTE
HARBRARBEMNTE - ZEFMHERR 2R
BEEREHE LR EMNFRMN LA RKG
FPESGHEPBEGEBERINHAEILEK
FOBEDOLLAENRKBER -

B bl F E RO - AR B E A %
ZFEMEANEEERANLEELMERK
e R

MESGBEUUNBRNMRERNRZ
KABIRZE—Z—ZF+=A+EBEHR
—IEEREE B ARRESE
FERNBEEFASERE(REAEE
TEHARNEST)IASAREZNERE -
NRBARRBKRMD -

RZEZ—F+A+HEB AQRRAE
F E £ & H 4 #£105,000,00017 B A% #
(B ED) BRESZBERENS
BEREARI>DDHEERE HEERS
TEEEZ(EBEMGD - MARFEKZE
BEE BTHAIANBRESETSES -
FHEREARLBSENAFEFERE
KB fH 54 B1.5558 7T 1.78%8 7T »
1948702078 L 22198 7T - B % 1
ATERYBHELI0OFRTE - FHER
EETFTHREAREBEARR —BRETAKD
BEF - WARNDBEHLEE -

AEBEENKRBHNREBOHEBDNELKR
ERmkEtE2EBERTERURND
RERONRFAXZ -
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26. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 26. NIEEBEUIABRNDREBRNXRZ(E)

(Continued)
(a) The terms and conditions of the grants are as (a) REMBERREGDOT :
follows:
Number of Vesting date
instruments (note) Expiry date
IAHEA ) EEIGE) J&w B 8
Options granted to directors on RZEZ-F5+A+HA
15 October 2021 KTEENERE
— First tranche -F—H 21,000,000 1 April 2022 31 March 2028
—T_C _?_Ai
mA—-H = H =+-H
- Second tranche —-E -1 21,000,000 1 April 2023 31 March 2029

—T_=F _:_ni

MA—H ZA=1+—H

- Third tranche = 21,000,000 1 April 2024 31 March 2030
“TIME ZE=ZTF

MA—HB ZA=1+—H

- Fourth tranche —FME 21,000,000 1 April 2025 31 March 2031
“T-ZnE ZE=—F

MA—H ZA=1+—H

- Fifth tranche -FaH 21,000,000 1 April 2026 6 June 2031
ZEZRE ZE=—-F
mA—H ~NARE
Total share options granted REMERERYE 105,000,000
Note: The number of options to be exercised after each MR EEEBHESTTEORRKRE
vesting period is subject to fulfillment of certain HEXHEERUGMEANE TXER
performance targets as set out in the the Vesting IEERFTARR -

Condition.
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26. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

REBEBRZERERAR
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(Continued)

(b)

(c)

The number and weighted average exercise prices (b)
of share options are as follows:

87 5 ¥R % B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_ "+ _A=+-RL#FE

26, NIERBBEUARDRERORZ(AE)

BREHBERMNEFIITEEOT :

2022 2021
“E-CE “E-_-F
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options exercise price options
mELH mET S
ke EREHA ke ERESE
Outstanding at the beginning ENREaE HK$4.53
of the year 45381 105,000,000 = =
Granted during the year ERR HK$4.53
- - 4538 T 105,000,000
Lapsed during the year ERXH HK$4.53
453E T (21,000,000) - -
Outstanding at the end of the year EXRRATE HK$4.53 HK$4.53
453% T 84,000,000 4533 T 105,000,000
Exercisable at the end of the year EXRTMH HK$4.53 HK$4.53
45381 = 453ET -
The options outstanding at 31 December 2022 had RZEBEZ—_F+ZA=+—HB X1
an exercise price of HK$4.53 (2021: HK$4.53) and FHERENTER AE4538 (=
a weighted average remaining contractual life of T~ — 4 : 4538 T) R ntETH ek
7.3 years (2021: 8.3 years). TEAEHNFHAEIIF (T - —F:
8.3%) °
Fair value of share options and assumptions ) BREAFERRBRK

The fair value of services received in return for
share options granted is measured by reference
to the fair value of share options granted. The
estimate of the fair value of the share options
granted is measured based on a polynomial model.
The contractual life of the share options is used as
an input into this model. Expectations early exercise
are incorporated into the polynomial model.

Bh I BB B 1 4 R & B $ B9 AR
BRAFESERHIBRENQ T
EfE-REBERENAFELE
REZBAARE T A - BREN
EHRFHRAEZEEN —HE AR
B-REBETENHEEMAZERN
B o
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26. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 26. iR GSE W NN BEENXKZA(E)
(Continued)
(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (c) BREAFTERRBRK(E)

(Continued)

Options

granted on

15 October

2021

R-ZB-—%

Fair value of share options and +A+&A

assumptions BREAFERRBR &0 e R

Share price at the grant date KEBAEOKRE HK$4.15

4.15% 7T

Exercise price TEE HK$4.53

4.537% 7T

Expected volatility T8 HA R 1R 54%

Option life (expressed as weighted average BEREFH(XRTAZEABRE T 8.3 years

life used in the modelling under AR AR N T 5 F ER) 8.3%F

polynomial model)

Expected dividends T8 B B% B 0%

Risk-free interest rate B = b R X 1.36% — 1.60%

Exercise multiple TR B 2.47

The expected volatility of share price is calculated
based on the statistical analysis of historical
volatility of the Company, adjusted for any
expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. Expected dividends
are based on historical dividends. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect
the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service
condition. This condition has not been taken into
account in the grant date fair value measurement
of the services received. There were no market
conditions associated with the share option grants.

No expense was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2022
(2021: Nil) as the directors of the Company were
of the view that the relevant performance targets
under the Vesting Condition will not be satisfied.

B (8 10 T8 B0 34 0 T3 AR R AR 2 B4R 2
0 B 19 5 4 9 1 (7 T8 39 o 3R 34 08 B
CEELE S TR LY L
g oEBBEERELRE X
BABBBROEDTREYHAF
BT ELEAVE -

Y

B R DR B OBR RS AR AT R T o TR
BERBORFEAFEREL BT
BEEZGMH -BEEBRERT
16 B8 5 R AT o

BHE-_T-_—_F+=-A=+—8H1L
FE TERGKEBEzRHEMEZE
Wk BERAI(ZZTEZ —F:
E) RARARAEERERE
BEHETHEAEEBZE N REENX-
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27.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a)

(b)

Current taxation in the consolidated statement of
financial position represents:

REBEBRZERERAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_ "+ _A=+-RL#FE

27. GEMBRRNXPBIFREH

) HEEMBMRRNKF BB A :

2022 2021
—E == —E=—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx T 7T
Tax payable at 1 January RN—A—BZENHIE 5,590 3,121
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax 78 4 £ & & & 15 1 B &
for the current year - 5,341
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EHEBFEH (5,253) (3,200)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded EREFBNNEM = 324
Exchange adjustment b H 38 B - 4
Tax payable at 31 December w+—A=+—HZ
J& 5 T 18 337 5,590
Representing: 5 -
Hong Kong Profits Tax EENEBR
— Payable —JE 337 5,590

Deferred tax assets (liabilities) not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set
out in Note 2(q), the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax
losses of approximately HK$427,020,000 (2021:
approximately HK$366,958,000) as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which
the losses can be utilised will be available in the
relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses
do not expire under current tax legislation.

The Group had no other significant potential
deferred tax assets and liabilities as of 31
December 2022 and 2021.

(b) ABERELHEBEE(AME)

B E W 20 & 8 5 B K-
AEBHRARE2ABHEBEBEIED
427,020,000 T(Z T = — F : &
366,958,000 ) R E L 1H &
E - DEAREANBEEEERER
BRI EBEEZ RRERT G
MAREM TR - BREBERTHE &%
MIEBEBEK TS EH-

N

HE—
A=+—B A&EBITEEMEKX
BEREHBEEERAR-
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28. CAPITAL AND RESERVES 28. BN
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) BEZILHEE
The reconciliation between the opening and AEBHGZEEESH DN FA &i
closing balances of each component of the Group's BRERNEERIENGEERE
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated ®eoANDQAERERE DR E %ﬂi
statement of changes in equity. Details of the FROEFHFBFEHIOT
changes in the Company’s individual components
of equity between the beginning and the end of
the year are set out below:
Accumulated
Share capital ~ Share premium losses Total
Company N Rx RHEE 2itFR @t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TER TR TEn TEn
Balance at 1 January 2021 \ZEZ-F-F-RHuER 14,998 498,790 (13,879) 499,909
Loss and total comprehensive expense AEEBERZENLEE
for the year - - (144,830) (144,830)
Balance at 31 December 2021 and R-F--#t-A=1+-BR
1 January 2022 “E-5-f-Brk8 14,998 498,790 (158,709) 355,079
Loss and total comprehensive expense AEEFRR2EXLAE
for the year - - (75,594) (75,594)
Balance at 31 December 2022 R-EZ-#+t-f=1-H
5% 14,998 498,790 (234,303) 279,485
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28. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

Share capital
Ordinary share of HK$0.01 each

REEFEZERERAA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
87 5 ¥ 2 Bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_ "+ _A=+-RL#FE

28. ERKREEBE)
(b) P&

FREE0NEITLZ & A

Number of Share
Shares capital
R&oHA R 7
‘000 HK$'000
TR TR
Authorised: ETE
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, RZZE-Z—-F—-HA—-H"
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 —E--%+ZA=t—H"
“E__f¥-f-H"
—E__f+-A=t—H 100,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRAE:
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, RZZE-_—-F—-HA—-H"
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 i e =
“E__¥-A-H"
—E-__Ff+-A=+-H 1,499,750 14,998

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings
of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally
with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

EEARKEABRBREDNITEEIRD
BRERBEEERRARE L EMR
BE—R-FAEBRYARRANER

TEEFZFERFMAMA-
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28. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Share premium
Under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands,
the funds in the Company’s share premium
account are distributable to the equity
shareholders provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will
be in a position to pay off its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.

(ii) Translation reserve
The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in Note 2(t).

(iii) Other reserve
The other reserve comprises the changes in
equity as a result of change in the Group’s
interests in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set
out in Note 2(d).

(d) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for equity shareholders
and benefit for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the
level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns that might be
possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

28.
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28. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(d)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors its capital structure by
reviewing its gearing ratio and cash flow
requirements, taking into account its future
financial obligations and commitments. For this
purpose, the Group defines gearing ratio as total
borrowings (including borrowings, amount due to
a related party and lease liabilities) over total equity
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position. As at 31 December 2022, the Group's
gearing ratio was 37.5% (2021: 24.6%).

There were no changes in the management’s
approach to capital management of the Group
during the year. In order to maintain or adjust
the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares,
raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce
debt.

OCl Asset Management Company Limited, a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company (the
“Regulated Subsidiary”), is granted licenses by the
Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission
(the “SFC") for the business they operate in. The
Regulated Subsidiary is subject to liquid capital
requirements under the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (the “SF(FR)R").
Management of the Group closely monitors, on a
daily basis, the Regulated Subsidiary’s liquid capital
level to ensure compliance with the minimum
liquid capital requirements under the SF(FR)R.
The Regulated Subsidiary has no non-compliance
of capital requirements imposed by the SF(FR)R
throughout the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group's business.

The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial
risk management policies and practices used by the
Group to manage these risks are described below.

(a) Market risk

()

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value or
cash flows of an asset, liability or forecast
transaction denominated in foreign
currency (that is, a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which
the transactions relate) will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
functional currency of the Hong Kong
subsidiaries is HK$ and the functional currency
of PRC subsidiaries is Renminbi (“RMB"). The
Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
arising from investments and borrowings
denominated in United States Dollars (“US$").
Currency exposure arising from investments
denominated in US$ is mitigated in part by
funding a portion of the investments through
external borrowings in the same currency.
As HK$ is pegged to the US$, the Group
considers the risk of movements in exchange
rates between the HK$ and the US$ to be
insignificant.

29.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Currency risk (Continued)

As most of the Group’s financial instruments at
31 December 2022 and 2021 are denominated
in either HK$ or US$, management does not
consider there to be any significant currency risk
associated them.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk
arises primarily from interest-bearing financial
assets and borrowings. Borrowings issued
at variable rates and fixed rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk and
fair value interest rate risk respectively. The
Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate debt securities
and borrowings issued at fixed rates. The
Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk mainly from balances with banks
and borrowings carrying interest at prevailing
market rates.

Management of the Group monitors the
related interest rate exposure closely to
ensure the interest rate risks are maintained
at an acceptable level. The Group’s cash flow
interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of the Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate arising from the Group’s HK$
denominated financial instruments. The
Group currently does not have interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management
will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES  29.

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(ii)
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(a) miEZEKE)
Interest rate risk (Continued) (i) FFE (&)
The following table, as reported to the MASEEEEEBMZ2®H TX
management of the Group, details the FINAEERBE RO A
interest rate risk profile of the Group's TREERERABGEZNER
interest-bearing financial assets and financial % B
liabilities at the end of the reporting period:
Note 2022 2021
P = g Juugeng 2 —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET
Net fixed rate financial assets ZEE+HEE(EE)
(liabilities): FEE
Debt securities measured at BREHKEFAENER
amortised cost & 75 14 17,350 51,638
Amount due to a related party JE 1< 8 Bk 75 k1B 21 (46,930) -
Borrowings — shareholder's loan ~ fE X~ R E & 22 (46,861) (85,768)
Lease liabilities HER®E 23 (16,224) (5,823)
(92,665) (39,953)
Net variable rate financial FELtHEE
asset: FE
Cash at bank RITIH & 19 230,568 313,006
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for interest-bearing financial assets and
financial liabilities. The analysis is prepared
assuming interest-bearing financial assets and
financial liabilities outstanding at the end of
respective reporting period were outstanding
When reporting to
management of the Group on the interest
rate risk, a 50 basis points (“bps”) increase
or decrease in the relevant interest rates will
be adopted for sensitivity analysis, assuming
all other variables were held constant, which
represents a reasonably possible change in
interest rates. Interest-bearing bank deposits
are not included in the sensitivity analysis

for the whole year.
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Ne S -RE=)

(a) 7% E k(&)

(ii)

T JE Bz (48 )

WREEZ DR

ATHRED>HTLDERAER
RMEELETBMABENHXER
BEE - ZOoMDIBRIKNERS
HRANAEARSREERS
REBEERBREFEHREEM
RE - ERAASEEEERS
MERERE SRBERBMEX
50 f& £ B &0 3B 1 S BURE 2
fr-EBRIXAMBEEMEZEEDR
FAZMBERTE BN R
HIRNAEEH HRRTHE
RAMERREEKRFE BEAXRE
BEEERSRITERMNER
FEUIAEN AUEMNEEY
MBREINMIERE I ER
TER-UATEBEXRREAEE

for the change of interest rate as the bank BRMEBERIEM RZIMRA -
deposit rate is at a low level and management
of the Group considers such the impact
of bank deposit interest is insignificant. A
positive number below indicates an increase
in loss after taxation of the Group or vice
versa.
2022 2021
—¥=Z= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TETT
Loss after taxation for the year FRKRRIEZEEE
Increase by 50bps EFASOEEE 387 167
Decrease by 50bps T B 50 & & B (387) (167)
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in
a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit
risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables,
other receivables, interest receivables and debt
investments. The Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from cash and cash equivalents is limited
because the counterparties are banks and financial
institutions with sound credit ratings, which the
Group considers to represent low credit risk.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
the event of counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies
The board of directors delegates to a risk
management team the duties to monitor the
credit risk of the Group. Members of this risk
management team include, inter alia, the chief
executive officer, responsible officers, the chief
financial officer and the head of investment
department. This risk management team is
responsible for monitoring, pre-warning and
detecting the credit risk.

Debt investments

The Group focuses on decentralising investments
for the credit-type fixed income securities
investments which are mainly high return products.
The Group pre-controls the exposure of the
credit risk by setting investment position limit,
classifying the sub-investment varieties, sub-credit
rating limits and concentration limits. Moreover,
the Group continuously tracks the bond issuer’s
business conditions and credit rating changes
through monitoring, pre-warning, risk detecting,
etc. At the same time, the Group is highly prudent
in the investment of the asset-based securities
products and strictly evaluates the quality of the
underlying asset pool and the effectiveness of the
credit enhancement.

29. MBRERREEBREMRTIRAZA

(b)
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country
in which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. At the end of the reporting
period, the Group has no significant concentration
of credit risk.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer
operates.

—  Trade receivables in respect of wines and
beverage trading are due within 120 days
from the date of billing. Debtors with
balances that are more than 3 months past
due are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from these customers.

—  Fees receivable from asset management
mainly represent regular management fees
based on a predetermined fixed percentage of
the assets value under management and paid
out in the priority of the funds’ distributable
cash flow.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
Impairment and provisioning policies
The Group performs individual and collective
impairment assessment on debt investments at
amortised cost and trade receivables.

—  For debt investments at amortised cost,
the Group identifies individual impairment
through methods such as risk classification
and early warning. For assets for which an
allowance for impairment loss is provided
individually, the Group determines the
allowance amount by assessing the losses of
each debt investment at amortised cost at
the reporting date. During the assessment
stage, the Group generally considers the
financial status of the borrower, the disposal
of collateral, the repayment ability of the
guarantor and related parties to estimate
the recoverable future cash flows and
discounts the recoverable future cash to the
present value of the significant impaired
debt investments at a reasonable discount
rate. The difference between the carrying
value and the estimated present value of the
significant impaired debt investments shall be
provided for as the impairment loss on debt
investments at amortised cost.

- For trade receivables, the Group measures loss
allowances at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs, which is calculated using a provision
matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on
past due status is not further distinguished
between the Group’s different customer
bases. Expected loss rates are based on actual
loss experience over the past two years.
These rates are adjusted to reflect differences
between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has
been collected, current conditions and the
Group's view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs

In accordance with HKFRS 9, the Group constructed

a “three-stage” ECL model to manage its financial

assets’ credit risk:

(b)

Stage 1:

Stage 2:

Stage 3:

Financial assets have not experienced
a significant increase in credit risk
since origination and impairment
recognised on the basis of 12 months
expected credit losses.

Financial assets have experienced
a significant increase in credit risk
since origination and impairment is
recognised on the basis of lifetime
expected credit losses.

Financial assets that are in default and
considered credit-impaired.

The ECL is the result of the discounted product
of probability of default (PD), exposure at default
(EAD) and loss given default (LGD). The definitions
of these terms are as follows:

PD represents the likelihood of a borrower

or debt issuer defaulting on its financial

obligation;

- EAD is based on the amounts the Group
expects to be owed at the time of default.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

- LGD represents the Group's expectation of
the extent of loss on a defaulted exposure.
LGD varies by type of counterparty, type and
seniority of claim and availability of collateral
or other credit support. LGD is expressed as
a percentage loss per unit of exposure at the
time of default (EAD).

The ECL allowance is determined by projecting
the PD, LGD and EAD for every six months and for
each individual exposure or collective segment.
These three components are multiplied together
and adjusts their duration (if there is no early
repayment or default). This effectively calculates
an ECL allowance for every six months, which
is then discounted back to the reporting date
and summed. The discount rate used in the ECL
allowance calculation is the original effective
interest rate.

For debt investments in stage 1, the Group first
calculates the annual 12-month PD and then
transfer it to monthly PD. For debt investments in
stage 2 and 3, the lifetime PDs are developed by
monitoring how defaults develop in a portfolio
from the point of time when a debt experienced
SICR to its lifetime. The lifetime PDs are based on
historical observed data taking into consideration
forward-looking factors. This is supported by
historical analysis.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The lifetime LGDs are determined based on the
factors that affect the recoverable amounts post
default. These vary by product type.

—  For secured debt investments, this is primarily
base on the projected collateral values,
historical discounts to market/book values due
to forced sales and recovery costs observed.

- For unsecured debt investments, the Group
closely monitors their status and it believes
that the Group's credit risk exposure on them
is minimal.

Forward-looking information included in the
expected credit loss model is as follows:

The calculation of expected credit losses involves
forward-looking information. After the historical
analysis, the Group identified the key economic
indicators related to expected credit loss, such as
gross domestic product (GDP), consumer price
index (CPI). The Group forecasts these economic
indicators at least annually and provides the best
estimates of the economic conditions for the
coming year.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum credit risk exposure
(i) Debt investments at amortised cost and
fees receivable from asset management
The following tables provide information
about the Group’s exposure to credit risk and
ECLs for debt investments at amortised cost
and fees receivable from asset management
as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December
2021:

As at 31 December 2022

29.
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(b) FEREMRE)

RAGGEREHO
il RBEANRGFENERRER
EEERENKER

TREHBEBEASER =T =
S+ -_A=+—"HRERZ-ZZE=
—F+ A=+ HEHNK
BENRAGTEZEBKRERE
EEEMNEBERNEERR
LIEHEEBEMNER

R-EBE-_—_F+=-HA=+-—H

Gross carrying Loss  Net carrying
Loss stages amount allowance amount
BRER BEEE BREAR FEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER
Debt investments at REHKATEL
amortised cost EBRE
- RD Note (note (aa)) -RDEE Stage 3
(Bt 7 (aa)) F3ER 108,331 (108,331) -
- SP Note (note (b)) -SPEE Stage 3
(Bt £ (b)) F3ER 101,531 (86,493) 15,038
~ CFLD Note (note (cc)) —CFLDEE Stage 3
(P 3 (cc)) F3ER 20,994 (18,682) 2,312
ol RN 20,550 (213,508) 508
Trade receivables EWESER
— Fees receivable from -EEEEM Stage 1
asset management EWE A &R 7,397 = 7,397
- Fees receivable from -AEEEM Stage 3
asset management EIE E3[E B 781 (781) =
To R 6118 | (8 ... 1397
Total @t 239,034 (214,287) 24,747
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum credit risk exposure (Continued)
(i) Debt investments at amortised cost and fees
receivable from asset management (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021

REEFEZERERAA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
87 5 ¥ 2 Bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_ "+ _A=+-RL#FE

29. MHERERRENTIRAZ LA TEE)
(b) FEREMRE)
RAEERBE MO (&)
i) RBHEARGFENBEHRE -
EEEERKERE)

R=—FB=-—-%+t=-A=+—-H

Gross carrying Loss Net carrying
Loss stages amount allowance amount
BERR BEEE BEEER REFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TET TET
Debt investments at REHEKATEL
amortised cost EBRE
- RD Note (note (aa)) -RDEE Stage 3
(Bt 7 (aa)) FIER 107,532 (107,532) -
- SP Note (note (bb)) -SPERE Stage 3
(Pt & (bb)) F3KE K 101,363 (67,892) 33,471
~ CFLD Note (note (cc)) —CFLDR & Stage 3
(M & () FIER 20,959 (12,928) 8,031
- GL Note -GLEE Stage 1
SRR 10,136 - 10,136
Total @t 239,990 (188,352) 51,638
Trade receivables EWE SRR
— Fees receivable from asset -EEERN Stage 1
management EKER 1R 9,463 - 9,463
Total @ 249,453 (188,352) 61,101
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BHE-_T-

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

F+-A=+-HILLEE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum credit risk exposure (Continued)

(i)

Debt investments at amortised cost and fees
receivable from asset management (Continued)
Movement in the allowances for impairment
for debt investments at amortised cost is as

follows:

2022 Annual Report

29. MBRERREEBREMRTIRAZA

(b) FEREMRE)
RAGGEREE M OGE)

VEEE)

i) REWHEANSHENERERSE -
EEEERKERE)
HHEKAGFEZEBTRER

BERE2EHWT

Loss allowance

BRER
HK$'000
THER
At 1 January 2021 WZ_E_-_—%—HF—H 183,817
Impairment losses recognised during the year FRAEHRBREERE 17,221
Impairment losses reversed during the year FREERREEIS (12,686)
4,535

At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RZE-_—F+-_A=+—-8BERK
—E-_-_%—8—H 188,352
Impairment losses recognised during the year FABHERREERE 24,326
Exchange adjustment BE 3 3 & 828
25,154
At 31 December 2022 R_E-_—_F#+_-_A=+—H 213,506

Notes:

(aa) In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the RD Note is considered to be credit-impaired
based on the facts and circumstances as detailed

in Note 14(a)(ii).

(bb) In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the SP Note is considered to be credit-impaired
based on the facts and circumstances as detailed

in Note 14(a)(i).

(cc) In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the CFLD Note is considered to
be credit-impaired based on the facts and
circumstances as detailed in Note 14(a)(iii).

B -
(a2) KAFESER
e
BREERE-

R A B W R 14(a)i)
15N RDZE 8 % 18

(bb) ARABEFTRA REM 1430 PT
HEOEERBRL SPEEEER

EERE-

(cc) ANRA

ER A B E K E14()ii)
E= % |EJ S+ CFLD Z i #
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum credit risk exposure (Continued)
(i) Debt investments at amortised cost and fees
receivable from asset management (Continued)
The directors of the Company, with the
assistant from an independent valuer (the
“Independent Valuer”), reviewed and
assessed RD Note, SP Note and CFLD Note for
impairment using reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort in accordance with the
requirement of HKFRS 9. The results of ECL
in respect of RD Note, SP Note and CFLD
Note as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are
summarised as follows:

REBEBRZERERAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_ "+ _A=+-RL#FE

29. MFEREEBREMTIB2AFEE)

(b) EERMKE)

BAEERREHOE

(i) HBHEAKRFTENBEERE -
EEERRENKEMRE)
AARESEE— BB ILIGER
(B fEERD)EY 1 Bh T 1R &
BEEMGHREERFIORBRTE -
FTREEASRKUEBHEETE
BARS DA ERMNE R
REBNFERDERE - SPERE
NKCFDEBEMRBE RZ_T =
ZHFERZEZ—FF+ZA=F
—H ' BBRDERE  SPEE X
CFIDEEBEMEHEEBBEEZR
BENOT:

At 31 December 2022
R-ZE-_Z+ZHA=+—-H

PD EAD LGD ECL
BHEE

BOBE EHNER EBHOESR E#5
%  HK$'000 %  HK$'000

BT FERT B TERT

RD Note RDZE & 100 108,331 100.00 108,331
SP Note SPEE 100 101,531 85.19 86,493
CFLD Note CFLDE# 100 20,994 89.00 18,682
At 31 December 2021

RZE-_—%+ZA=+—H
PD EAD LGD ECL
HHEE
BAOME EBHRER BAOEBR R
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
Ant TET ANt THET
RD Note RDE & 100 107,532 100.00 107,532
SP Note SPE 100 103,363 66.98 67,892
CFLD Note CFLDE & 100 20,959 61.70 12,928
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum credit risk exposure (Continued)
(i) Debt investments at amortised cost and fees
receivable from asset management (Continued)
In respect of LGD of CFLD Note, the
Independent Valuer has made reference to
reports by major credit rating agencies.

In respect of LGD of RD Note and SP Note,
valuations are based on residual method,
which is essentially a means of valuing the
collaterals held against the RD Note and SP
Note. As at 31 December 2022, the fair value
of collaterals held against RD Note and SP
Note that are assessed for lifetime expected
credit losses amounted to approximately
HK$21,484,000 (2021: approximately
HK$47,815,000). The collaterals mainly
include listed shares in Hong Kong. The
fair value of collaterals were estimated by
the Group based on the market price of
the collaterals, adjusted in light of disposal
experience and current market conditions, by
reference to the valuation report issued by an
independent valuer.
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SERER(E)
RAGGEREMOGE
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EEERENRERE)
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EAHBENRE -

FLRDE & MSPE I /) Z 4 18
KEmME  HEDBERGME
BEEH ZHBEBEERLE
2 ARDEE MSPEE M A
CHERRETHEN T X
RZEZZF+ZHA=+—
H B GFEHRAEESHE
EE B WRDE B MSPR B M
BREZEHRRNRAFEN A
21,484,000 T(Z T = — & :
#747,815,000% 7T) - | # @ =
ZREEELTRE-EEY
MATEAREEREERRD
BB & BB AT 5 AR R E K
HROMEETHEBENER L
BE WR2EBLGHEMER
B fl B 3 E o
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum credit risk exposure (Continued)

(i)

Debt investments at amortised cost and fees
receivable from asset management (Continued)
The table below summarises the information
about the fair value measurements of the
collaterals held against RD Note and SP Note.

REBEBRZERERAR
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87 5 ¥ 2 Bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_ "+ _A=+-RL#FE

29. MFEREEBREMTIB2AFEE)

(b) EERMKE)
RAGEERREOE
(i) REBENRFENBEHRRE -
CEEERENRERE)
T R B B B BARDZE & K SP
ERMBEEY 2 AFTERE
ZER

Significant Relationship of
Valuation method  unobservable inputs Value of input unobservable inputs
FTAEE
(RPN EXTOBERAE BAEEE WAEZHE
RD Note Adjusted quoted Discount for lack of 30% (2021: 30%) The higher the discount,

prices marketability the lower the fair value

RDE & RABRE REzmBHzTE 30%(ZT=Z—F: fEgs ATESE
30%)

SP Note Adjusted quoted Discount for lack of 30% (2021: 30%) The higher the discount,

prices marketability the lower the fair value

SPEE RABRE RZmEHzE 30%(ZTZ—F: hEds ATERE
30%)

During the year ended 31 December 2022,

the Group recognised loss allowance of

approximately HK$781,000 (2021: Nil) on
fees receivable from asset management.

BHE-_T-__F+=H=+
—BLEFE AEBEHEKRE
EEBERABRRAEBEERAED
781,000 L (Z T =-—F &) -
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum credit risk exposure (Continued)

(ii) Trade receivables in respect of wines and
beverage trading
During the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Group did not recognise any loss
allowance (2021: Nil) on trade receivables in
respect of wines and beverage trading.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity is managed on a daily basis by the treasury
and finance departments. They are responsible for
ensuring that the Group has adequate liquidity
for all operations, ensuring that the funding mix
is appropriate so as to avoid maturity mismatches.
The Group manages liquidity risk by holding
sufficient liquid assets of appropriate quality to
ensure that short-term funding requirements are
covered within prudent limits.

29. MBEREEBREMTRAZA

(b)

(c)

2022 Annual Report

VEEE)
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BAEERREHOE)

(i) BREAEBENGRREE 2EW
BHKRIE
BE-_T-_—_F+=ZHA=+—
HEFE AEBTEREE
BREREEZEKE SHEKRE
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

REBEBRZERERAR
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BE_Z-_ "+ _A=+-RL#FE

29. MBEEREEBREMTIB2 A FEE)

Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) RBELEARKE)
The following tables show the remaining THREJIRBRAEBENREHRIR
contractual maturity at the end of the reporting BRRBBEREREBERELN
period of the Group’s non-derivative financial MEAEX(WRZHAN )RR E
liabilities, which are based on contractual BHARMRBITHMEXFENFNE SR
undiscounted cash flows (including interest RAEEAEHREREFNN&TFH
payments computed using contractual rates or, if HAEMETELRBEBENEOFR
floating, based on rates current at the end of the BREH o
reporting period) and the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay.
Liquidity risk tables TEE LR R
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-ZFE-_—_f+=-HA=+—HL
FE
On demand After  After 2 years Total Carrying
or within 1 year but but within  undiscounted amount at
1year within 2 years 5 years cash flows 31/12/2022
i
ZE-CZE
KR =
REXKS RBB1EE  BBE2EE BeNE =+-H
-ERy  THE2E  FHESE By ZEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThAx TERL ThAx TER TR
Financial liabilities: ERER:
Accruals and other payables ~ fEEF B R
Eft N ER 12,022 - - 12,022 12,022
Amount due to a related party  JE{ B B 7 %8 49,277 = = 49,277 46,930
Borrowings fE = 47,628 - - 47,628 46,861
Lease liabilities HEER 7,803 3,553 6,218 17,574 16,224
116,730 3,553 6,218 126,501 122,037
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BE_F__f+-R=1+-HLEE

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 29. i RRBEENREM I A2 A FEE)
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) RBELEARKE)
Liquidity risk tables (Continued) REELRERE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-ZFE-_—-f+=-H=+—HLt
FE
On demand After Total Carrying
or within 1 yearbut  undiscounted amount at
1 year within 2 years cash flows 31/12/2021
i
—B-—F
REH T+Z A
REREH HBB1EE Beng =+-H
—FR/ T2 BE ZEHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR
Financial liabilities: tRaf:
Accruals and other payables JEE FIE R E A
Ef&RR 6,961 - 6,961 6,961
Borrowings fé & 87,172 - 87,172 85,768
Lease liabilities HEBRE 5,936 = 5,936 5,823

100,069 = 100,069 98,552
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value measurement

(d)

(i)

Financial assets measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group's financial instruments measured
at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS
13 Fair Value Measurement. The level into
which a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not available

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs

The Group has a team headed by the
financial controller performing valuations
for the financial instruments, including an
unlisted investment fund which is categorised
into level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The
team reports directly to the chief financial
officer and the audit committee. A valuation
report with analysis of changes in fair value
measurement is prepared by the team at each
interim and annual reporting date, and is
reviewed and approved by the chief financial
officer. Discussion of the valuation process
and results with the chief financial officer and
the audit committee is held twice a year, to
coincide with the reporting dates.
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BE_Z-_ "+ _A=+-RL#FE

MBEREERENTEZ2 R FEGRE)

) AFEHE

(i)

UAFETENEHBEE

¥ EEBR
TRITAEEEREHRE
HAENemI AN TE
BEEMBRELEANF 13K
FEHAEFREZRBO B=
BAFEFH - A FEFERE
R REBEMGEERMAERE A
BEEAABEREERMHEL
AT o8

s FEAKE:EERE
—ER@AECAIARBZ
BEXABRFEBENE
REFEBRTIG 2 RECK
RBER)FEZRFE

s F-_EHMHE:-FRAEZ=
EBHm ABEBBREFE
F—ER 2B RE A
B - BYEFEREATT
BERag ABHTEZAF
BT TABRHGAEBERE
EREMBEECH AR

« FCEAMGE:EMEA
AUBEHABGE LA
FE

AEEA-—BaMBREERS
MEKS R T AETMHE:
BEIBERE=ZRATEER
MELELMREES ZEBKE
ERMERVEENRERZES
BE ZEFESPHRFE
BEBHMBRE— O ONQTE
AERPNMGERS LHE
FHHeERIME - BFE
TMRAEFRMBEREREZE
SR mAERENMNGER  ER
TEEHH -2
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

2022 Annual Report

29. MFEAREEREMTIB 2 FEE)

(d) Fair value measurement (Continued) (d) AFETEE)
(i) Financial assets measured at fair value (i) UAFETEHNLHEEGE)
(Continued)
Recurring fair value Fair value as at Fair value as at  Fair value Valuation technique(s)
measurements 31 December 2022 31 December 2021 hierarchy and key input(s)
R=%=Z R-ZB=-%
+ZB=1+-H tTZA=t-H
REMATESE ZATE ZAYE AYERR MBEEWRIESY
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
Assets:
BE:
HK Dollar Fund linked note - 20,000 Level 2 Referenced to recent transaction price
BTEGHARE - 20,000 =8 SERMRHER
Unlisted investment funds
FLTREES
- |CBC US Dollar Debt Fund SP - 28,827 Level 2 Quoted from brokers/financial institutions
~ICBC US Dollar Debt Fund SP - 28827 E=H REBR/CHBENEE
- OCl Equities Fund SP 92,013 96,917 Level 3 Discounted cash flows model adjusted for
fund specific credit risk
- 0CI Equities Fund SP 92,013 96,917 £=# BRREREREN(RESKERFER
BIELAE)
- OCl Real Estate Fund | SP 4,620 - Level 2 Referenced to recent transaction price
- 0Cl Real Estate Fund | SP 4,620 - EZ8 SERMRHER
Listed securities 13,540 - Level 1 Unadjusted quoted price
FmES 13,540 - -4 AERELE
Listed warrants 87 - Level 1 Unadjusted quoted price
EHRBRESE 87 - B8 AEEERE
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

()

Financial assets measured at fair value
(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and
Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3
(2021: Nil). The Group's policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy
as at the end of the reporting period in which
they occur.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in
Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair values of financial instruments that
are mainly traded in over-the-counter are
determined by using market observable
broker quotes or valuation techniques with
observable market data as key parameter
inputs without management judgment.

REBEBRZERERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

87 5 ¥R % B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE_ZT__F#+_RA=+—HLEE
HERARBEERRENTAZ A FEREE)

RFEFEE)

URFEIAENEZHEE(E)
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HE2_Z=-=

F+-A=+-HILLEE
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 29. i RREENREM I B2 A FEE)

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Fair value measurement (Continued)

()

d AFEFEE)

Financial assets measured at fair value (i)
(Continued)
Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements
Valuation Significant
techniques unobservable inputs  Range
CRER R EARTBEGAE BE

URFEIAENETHEE (B

BRAF=R FESFENER

Relationship of
unobservable
input to fair value
TABEBAER
AVEZHHER

Investment fund  Discounted cash flows

model

REHES MRRERERY

Discount rate taking into 10.34%-12.08%
account the credit risk ~ (2021: 5.58%-

of the fund 6.10%)
BESEERRE 10.34%-12.08%
B/ R (ZB=—%:

5.58%-6.10%)

The higher the discount rate,
the lower the fair value

MREER AATE
B

As at 31 December 2022, it is estimated
that with all other variables held constant,
an increase/decrease in discount rate by
2% (2021: 2%) would have increase/
decrease the Group’s loss for the year
by approximately HK$1,797,000 or
approximately HK$1,869,000 respectively
(2021: increased/decreased the Group’s loss
for the year by approximately HK$3,600,000
or approximately HK$3,800,000 respectively).

RZEZZF+ZR=+—
B EMBEHMEEHREFT
BRER T BIR R NR
P2%(ZFE = —F:2%) 4 &
BEERAEBZAFEEIR
5 B3 A,/ 4 #91,797,000 7%
7T 3% 491,869,000/ T (= & —
—FAEBEZAFEEBEERES
Bl 18 40,8 4 493,600,000 T
5 #93,800,0005% 7T) °
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

30.

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(d) Fair value measurement (Continued)
(i) Financial assets measured at fair value
(Continued)
The movements during the period in
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
87 5 ¥ 2 Bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLEE

29. MHERERRENTIRAZLATEGE)

d 2FEFEHE)
(i) URFEAENZHEEE)

ZEE=ZBAFEFELZHRRN

the balance of these Level 3 fair value HARM AT
measurements are as follows:
2022 2021
—_E-= =E= — — 4
HK$'000 HK$ 000
T & T FA T
At 1 January ®n—H—H 96,917 —
Additions nNE = 95,000
Distributions received U B #9250k Y A (4,750) =
Unrealised (losses) gains recognised & A 18 %5 A 7 32 #9
in profit or loss during the year AER(EB) K a (154) 1,917
At 31 December R+t=-—A=+—H 92,013 96,917

The (losses) gains arising from the
remeasurement of the Group’s unlisted
investment fund are presented in the “loss
from securities trading and investments” line
item in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

(ii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value
The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets
and liabilities carried at cost or amortised cost
were not materially different from their fair
values as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
an outstanding commitment not provided for in the
financial statements of RMB3,000,000 contracted for
the capital injection in the Joint Venture.

Except for the above, the Group has no other
outstanding commitment not provided in the financial
statements.

EMEAKREFLTREER
TEEAZ(BER)KRANKEE R
mhkEMEERERESRIE
SEBERREZEBRE]

(i) B R-FEUF TR 2 A
EERBEELAFE
7N £ B 4R BK AN 8 8H A AR B BR
MemEERABRABERA
RZEBEZZFRZE=Z—F+
A=+ HMATFEIES
RKEE-

30. 7RI
RBEHR AEBRASGERRIEE
EFTHNRERNIBREBEENREEE
¥ B AR % 3,000,000 7T °

B Lt & 5h - AN 5 B3 Al R X B S
WRBERREEALE-
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31.

COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 31.

2022 Annual Report

NCIN=R AR 7 &

POSITION
31 December 31 December
Note 2022 2021
—8=-= Ty = =42
s +=ZA=+-B +Z-A=+—H
HK$'00_0 HK$'000
TR TET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE THRRE 15,012 5,162
Investments in subsidiaries RBLRA 2K E 12 1 1
Rental deposits Hele 1,086 -
16,099 5,163
Current assets RBEE
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables & & « B FIB R £ fE W BB 1,037 3,860
Amounts due from subsidiaries [T PEES: 213,050 324,835
Financial assets at fair value through profitorloss B A FEHABZZEREE - 28,827
Cash and cash equivalents RekHReEBEEE 169,345 154,004
R, - T
Current liabilities RBEE
Accruals and other payables EHES RE HEfEMERIE 2,259 2,185
Amount due to a related party B B 5 2B 46,930 -
Amounts due to subsidiaries &5 BT B 2 ET 8] 11,846 9,561
Borrowings BE 46,861 85,768
Provision for post-completion guarantee ERERER - 58,565
Lease liabilities HEARE 3,015 5,531
Net current assets RBEEFE 272,521 349,916
Total assets less current liabilities EEABHRBDAR 288,620 355,079
Non-current liability (¥RBERE
Lease liabilities HERE 9,135 =
Net assets EERE 279,485 355,079
Capital and reserves EXRfkfE
Share capital RA 14,998 14,998
Reserves f# 264,487 340,081
Total equity ERAH 279,485 355,079
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of RZEZ=F=A=T—HEZEEFgiHt
directors on 31 March 2023: N PR T

Jiao Shuge £ i [

Director & &

Wu Guangze & &2

Director & &
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32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had the following transactions with its related
parties during the year.

(a)

(b)

Transaction with key management personnel

The Company’s directors are key management
personnel of the Group whose remunerations are
disclosed in Note 8.

The remuneration of directors of the Company is
determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends.

Balances and transactions with related parties

Name of related party

BRI B
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32. EAMBAXS
REEVBRREMBBIARENRS
REERIN REBRAFEEEBE S
ETTINEARS

ol

(o) EETEEBEAEETZRES
$&T%$%$$IE’UIK
B HEMWE AMESHEE -

B A

AKAREE2EMEE Mé%@
EBRAXRBEMEGBEELET

(b) BAMS AR EBBLTETZIRS

Relationship
RES

Orient Securities (Hong Kong) Limited
REBEHREB)BERAA

A wholly owned subsidiary of a major shareholder
of the Company
RARABFERRZ2EMEB AT

2022 2021
—E-C —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FTAT
Transaction: X5
Fund sub-advisory services expense B R E L D E & #H R
recognised* &R~ - 580
2022 2021
—E-C —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FTAT
Balance: e
Payables for fund sub-advisory ERNESHDEDARE
services HIE - 29
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32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. S AMB AR (&)

(Continued)
(b) Balances and transactions with related parties (b) BHMAERKEBBHIETZIRS
(Continued) (&
Orient Finance Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited A wholly owned subsidiary of a major shareholder
RATemERBFERE)ERAA of the Company
RAARFERRZEZEMB R A
2022 2021
—E2-= —E-—fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAET
Transaction: R5:
Sales of financial assets* HEERMEE~ - 58,211
Future Strategy GP Limited A company whose ultimate shareholder is Mr. Jiao

Shuge, the non-executive director and chairman
of the Company

Future Strategy GP Limited —EHBHARAFATESREIFEEEBEEE
EFEEBREB QA

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Transaction: X5
Management fee income* BB WA 774 =
2022 2021
—E-C-F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT
Balance: Fpo

Receivables for management fee EREREWRAFRE
income 774 -
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32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b)

Balances and transactions with related parties
(Continued)

Capital Ally Holdings Limited

REBEBRZERERAR
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R RA(E)

A|
/|

BLOEHREEABLTETZRS
(,,.*)

A company whose major shareholder is Mr. Jiao

Shuge, the non-executive director and chairman of

the Company
—EHHARAFUTESRIFEEBELEETEE

Capital Ally Holdings Limited

ERERERMNA T
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHE T
Transactions: x5
Income from termination of KB I RR R
memorandums of understanding* Z WA+
— Interest income from -RBEAREERESZ
refundable deposits B U A 5,489 2,310
— Break-fee income - IEBUWA 897 891
* The above transactions were conducted on mutually & PRSI —REBERPIZHE
agreed terms in the ordinary course of business. A 1 & 2 IR FETT °

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Group entered into a memorandum of
understanding (the “2021 MOU") with Capital Ally
Holdings Limited (the “Seller” or “Capital Ally")
for a proposed acquisition of 51% of the issued
share capital of Rising Phoenix Investments Limited
(the “Target Company”) which is a subsidiary of
Capital Ally (the “Proposed Transaction”). During
the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
extended the 2021 MOU (being the “2022 MOU ")
and further extended the 2022 MOU | (being the
“2022 MOU 11") as additional time is required to
perform due diligence investigations in connection
with the Proposed Transaction. The consideration
for the Proposed Transaction under 2021 MOU was
proposed to be US$330,000,000 and was revised
to US$204,000,000 and US$280,000,000 under
2022 MOU I and 2022 MOU I, respectively.

Mr. Jiao Shuge is a director and major shareholder
of Capital Ally and acts as the Seller's guarantor
(the “Seller Guarantor”) that shall unconditionally
and irrecoverably agree and undertake to procure
the due and punctual performance by the Seller
of all of its obligations under and in the definitive
transaction documents.

RBE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—
H Ik F B & & B HECapital Ally
Holdings Limited ([ & 7% | 3k [ Capital
Ally ) 5t 22 & U B Capital Ally Z Fi B
A A] Rising Phoenix Investments Limited
(TBEERAFANEEHTRANSI%([E
BRXBDIIL— DO HEEESH=
E--FHRBHESE) - REEC
E-__F+-A=T—BILFE"
HRFERIRHEEZRHET
EBRFALT AEEHEEER T = —
FHrEETgR(AI T _FmE
Bl TE-—FPLER_FT -
FRBESHI(ANIZZTEZZFR
BEZHID  —_2Z—FREHE
EERETNTZEBRERIZRERER
330,000,000% 7t * D RIERT R T
——iu/‘?\%¢1ﬁxmﬁ|l§—|—&_f::
F R AR = 8kI1T8 N 2 204,000,000
= 7T &% 280,000,000 % 7T ©

£ 15 M L & JhCapital Ally 2 & = 3
FTERE - TEETEHFNERAE
EFRAD'%ﬁMW&TTﬁ@
WREREABREE H X 4 B
Eﬁﬁmr%x%X#ET&%ﬁ
ZFIBEME-
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32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b)

Balances and transactions with related parties
(Continued)

The Seller, the Group and the Target Company are
collectively referred to as the Parties.

2021 MOU, 2022 MOU | and 2022 MOU Il merely
serve to record the intention of the Parties as at
the date of these memorandums of understanding.

As stipulated in 2021 MOU, 2022 MOU | and
2022 MOU I, the Group will pay US$11,500,000,
US$11,500,000 and US$14,000,000, respectively
as refundable deposits (together, the “Deposits”)
to the Seller on or before 9 July 2021, 19
January 2022 and 19 July 2022, respectively, for
purposes of costs and expenses incurred by the
Seller in entering into these memorandums of
understanding with the Company and co-operating
with the Company in respect of due diligence
investigations in connection with the Proposed
Transaction.

Upon termination of 2021 MOU, 2022 MOU | and
2022 MOU I, the Seller and the Seller Guarantor
shall jointly and severally return to the Group
the Deposits together with interest (6.5% per
annum) of the Deposits within 5 days following the
termination of 2021 MOU, 2022 MOU | and 2022
MOU II. A break-fee in the amount of 1% of the
Deposits was only applicable to 2021 MOU and
2022 MOU I.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Proposed Transaction under 2022 MOU | and 2022
MOU Il were terminated in accordance with the
expiry date as stipulated in 2022 MOU | and 2022
MOU I, respectively (the Proposed Transaction
under 2021 MOU were terminated during the year
ended 31 December 2021). Deposits paid by the
Group were refunded from the Seller and interest
and break-fee of approximately HK$5,489,000 and
HK$897,000, respectively (2021: approximately
HK$2,310,000 and HK$891,000 respectively) were
paid by the Seller upon the refund of the Deposits.

32. EKF

(b)

2022 Annual Report

AR %A (&)
BT ERREEARE T ETZRS
(&)

BERFh ASEREERARBAS
\EO
:%é: fﬁﬁ%ﬁ{%/u\ﬁ 7:::
FRBETHRIR S - _FHM#E
BTIERERNZETREE S

BHRZHSHEM-
BN —_EZ—FREBEESE =
T _FRBRESRIEN T - =

i:ﬁﬂﬁmﬁnﬁﬁ AT AEEB

DRANR_FE-_—FtA LB =
;::i—ﬂ+ha&_;::
F+tAtT+AEHSZRAE XN
11,500,000 JT * 11,500,000 3 T &
14,000,000 T E B 7] R B 1L € (4
HwelRE]) BEEFHEAEARQA
FYZERTMEBETBEARERR S
CERBRBAEHRARRAENELEN
AN ER -

RZEZ—FRBESH®
CFERRBESHRIR-_EZ_FR
BESHBIKRILEE BEHAREHE
BRABR-_E-Z—EH5REBSHE-
TEZZFRBHESEHRIE
TFERBESRIKRIEEBESRARNER
FEREAEERERSERIRK
TR E(FFE65%) - T~ —
FRBESE R R 15
SEIERHEES %E’J%\%Jt;%?o

RBE-_ZT-_—_F+=-_A=+—H

= —

— =

—-:F——

HEFE T _FRBEESHIK
TR FERMERBEIBETZE
FRXSGEREBE T - _ERMBES
BRI T _FRBESEIME]

ArzEmBBEmMERE(Z=ZTE=—%F
FRETHETZEZRIERE
E_E-_—F+_-_A=Z=+—BL#HF
ERIE) - BEFEREAER I
Mk BEEFEREEREEX
Hﬂ S Rk 1EE 5 545,489, ooo;%
JC 897,000 (=& = — F :
A 492,310,0007% 7T 891,000/ 75)
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33. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2022
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of new or amended
standards, which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2022 and which have not been adopted in
these financial statements. These developments include
the following which may be relevant to the Group.

REBEBRZERERAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_ "+ _A=+-RL#FE

3. ERHmERBEEZE_F__F+"H=
T—BLEFREERERNIES - #HET
HARERNEBERE

BELSEMBRRNNERY FBG
A CEMZ BT REFTER - %
EBRARFIENRBE-_FT__F+
“A=t-HLEFERKRER BRI
EMBHRERRELARB -ZFHREBEN
TARERNREEHEBANAR -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUTEH
Gk 3ok g

R TES:

HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements. Classification of liabilities as current or
non-current

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements and HKFRS Practice Statement 2,

BERMBREENFE IR REAA

BREEHENFIRBIR) HEH
KZZINRBRABBREERE

1 January 2023

—ZE-=%—H—H
BB EHERNEIRUETAR)  HEH 1 January 2023
XZEZD RBAFETEHEESHE —E-=Z#—H—H

1 January 2023
—E_=Ff—-A—H

Making materiality judgements. Disclosure of
accounting policies

Amendments to HKAS 8, Accounting policies, changes

in accounting estimates and errors: Definition of
accounting estimates
Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes: Deferred tax

BEREENFSR(BIA) G5t H

BREFE2HR(BAAX) (FLHEAH
BB BERE
1 January 2023

£oGHGHEDRER: @S —FoZE-A-F

E %
BREFEUNF12RUERT X)) A7

1 January 2023

W EHE-XZELHEERRER

—E-=%—H—H

related to assets and liabilities arising from a single
transaction

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these developments is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

B8 4 4F 2 B E

AEBEFBZERRNERERHE
BHMRMELE R E LB REMNZS
BREHGAVBRRALBBRENTE -
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Year ended 31 December
BZ+-BA=+-HBLFE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—®R-C-F —F--F —2-%F —B-NF —F-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FTAT FTAT THET FAT
RESULTS E
Revenue W = 30,645 73,232 126,834 101,521 124,614
Loss before tax BRI &R (78,211)  (117,281) (18,366) (93,024) (60,413)
Income tax expense P 15 5 2 - (5,341) (1,233) (4,404) (419)
Loss for the year KEFER (78,211)  (122,622) (19,599) (97,428) (60,832)
Attributable to: FE1h:
Equity holders of ENYNETE -
the Company HAEA (75,708)  (122,622) (19,556) (96,897) (60,792)
Non-controlling interests FERER (2,503) - (43) (531) (40)

(78,211) (122,622) (19,599) (97,428) (60,832)

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+-—8H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
ZBCZCf —T-—%F Z2-%F ZE-hF —T-N\F

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAT TAT TAT TAT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Total assets EEBE 417,562 544,669 956,622 923,412 805,412
Total liabilities aE8E (123,922)  (171,876) (461,618) (694,259)  (478,551)

293,640 372,793 495,004 229,153 326,861

Fquity attributable to equity AR AERIFTA A

holders of the Company FE 1 #E & 300,661 372,793 495,004 229,863 327,040
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR = (7,021) = = (710) (179)

293,640 SY28/98 495,004 229,153 326,861
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